File No. AERA/20010/MYTP/AAI-Bhubaneshwar /CP-I/2018-19

Order No. 46/2018-19



Airports Economic Regulatory Authority of India

In the matter of determination of aeronautical tariffs in respect of Biju Patnaik International Airport (BBI), Bhubaneswar for the first Control Period (01.04.2018 to 31.03.2023)





Table of contents

1.	Introduction
2.	Summary of stakeholders' comments7
3.	Methodology for tariff determination
4.	Multi-Year Tariff Proposal of BBI12
5.	Traffic forecast
6.	Allocation of Initial Regulatory Asset Base
7.	Initial Regulatory Asset Base
8.	Capital Expenditure for the 1st control period
9.	Depreciation
10.	Regulatory Asset Base for the 1st control period
11.	Fair Rate of Return (FRoR)
	Non-aeronautical revenue
13.	Operation and maintenance expenditure
	Taxation
15.	True-up
16.	Aggregate Revenue Requirement for the 1st control period
17.	Annual Tariff Proposal
18.	Summary of Decisions 106
Ann	exure 1 – Tariff card for Bhubaneswar Airport for the 1 st Control Period 107
+2 53	भा.वि.आ.वि.प्रा.



List of Tables

Table 1: Technical details and terminal building details 5 Table 2: Summary of stakeholders' comments. 7 Table 3: Passenger and aircraft traffic 15 Table 4: Traffic projections proposed by AAI 15 Table 5: Comparison of traffic growth rates as per AAI's submission and actual CAGR CAGR 16 Table 6: Traffic projections for the first control period as per Authority - Final . 21 Table 8: Ratios used for allocation of assets into aeronautical and non-aeronautical 22 Table 9: Allocation of gross block of assets between aeronautical and non-aeronautical 22 Table 10: Terminal area ratio 23 Table 11: Allocation of gross block of assets and its justification 24 Table 12: Allocation of assets proposed by AAI 34 Table 13: Initial RAB as per AAI's submission (figures in INR crores) 32 Table 14: Capital expenditures proposed by AAI 34 Table 15: Capital Expenditures proposed by AAI 34 Table 16: Ratio of terminal building and electrical installations at other AAI 34 airports (Figures in INR crores) 46 Table 19: Depreciation rates proposed by AAI 48 Table 19: Depreciation rates proposed by AAI 49 Table 19: Depreciation
Table 27: RAB for the 1 st control period as per AAI's submission
Consultation Paper (figures in INR crores)
Table 29: RAB for the 1 st control period after Authority's examination – Final
(figures in INR crores)
crores)
Table 31: Growth rates assumed by AAI for non-aeronautical revenue
Table 32: Growth rates in non-aeronautical revenue considered by the Authority
- Consultation Paper
Paper
Paper
Order No. 46/2018-19 Page 3
Order No. 46/2018-19 Page 3

Table 35: Non-aeronautical revenues as per the Authority - Final
Table 36: Operation and Maintenance (O&M) expenditure as per AAI71
Table 37: Growth rates in O&M as per AAI72
Table 38: Allocation of O&M expenses as per AAI
Table 39: Difference in ratio of non-aero portion of common staff expenses 73
Table 40: Comparison of allocation of O&M expenses with other AAI airports 73
Table 41: Allocation of O&M expenses as per the Authority 74
Table 42: Growth rates in O&M expenses considered by the Authority -
Consultation Paper
Table 43: Operation and maintenance (O&M) expenses as revised by the
Authority - Consultation Paper
Table 44: Revised electricity expense after considering proposed solar power
plant
Table 45: O&M expenses' growth rates as considered by the Authority - Final . 82
Table 46: Operation and maintenance (O&M) expenses considered by the
Authority - Final
Table 47: Depreciation rates for tax purposes as per AAI 84
Table 48: Taxation as per AAI 84
Table 49: Difference in depreciation rates for tax purposes 85
Table 50: Tax expense as per Authority – Consultation Paper (figures in INR
Crores, except those in %)
Table 51: Tax expense considered by the Authority - Final (figures in INR crores)
Table 52: True up calculation as per AAI (Figures in INR crores)
Table 53: True up calculation as per the Authority – Consultation Paper (Figures
in INR crores)
Table 54: True up calculation as per the Authority – Consultation Paper (Figures
in INR crores)
Table 55: True up calculation as per the Authority – Final (Figures in INR crores)
Table 56: ADD and Vield an are AAT. Correction Department 22
Table 56: ARR and Yield as per AAI – Consultation Paper
Table 57: ARR and Yield as per Authority – Final
Table 58: Landing charges proposed for the first control period
Table 59: Existing landing charges 94 Table 60: Darking and housing charges 95
Table 60: Parking and housing charges proposed for the first control period 95
Table 61: Existing parking, housing and night parking charges
Table 62: Computation of shortfall or surplus from proposed aeronautical
charges (in INR crores) – Consultation Paper
Table 63: Revenue from cargo operations at Bhubaneswar Airport- Final (in INR
crores)
Table 65: Computation of ARR for Cargo Operations- Final (in INR crores) 104
Table 66: Final computation of shortfall or surplus from proposed aeronautical
charges (in INR crores)



1. Introduction

Order No. 46/2018-19

- Biju Patnaik International Airport (BBI Airport), located in the city of 1.1 Bhubaneswar is the 15th busiest airport in India. The airport was accorded international status in October, 2013 after which international operations were commenced at the airport.
- 1.2 Details of the terminal building and other key assets of BBI Airport are provided in the table below:

Details of	BBI Airport
Particulars	Details
Total airport area	836 acres
Runway orientation and length	05/23: 1,380m 14/32: 2,743 m
No. of taxi tracks	4
No. of apron bays	13
Operational hours	24 hours
Terminal building details (domestic plus international)
Particulars	Details
Terminal building area	32,244 sq. meters
Immigration counters	जयत
Customs counters	-
	2
Departure conveyors	6
Departure conveyors Arrival conveyors	5
	and and there are all the state of the state
Arrival conveyors	5

- 1.3 In the financial year ending March 31, 2016, BBI Airport crossed annual passenger throughput of 1.5 million to become a Major Airport, as defined in Section 2(i) of Airports Economic Regulatory Authority of India (AERA, the Authority) Act. Accordingly, starting from financial year 2016-17, tariff determination of aeronautical services at the airport is to be undertaken by the Authority.
- AAI had submitted its Multi-Year Tariff Proposal dated 10/08/2018 to 1.4 the Authority for determination of aeronautical tariffs for the 1st control period.
- 1.5 The Authority conducted a detailed review of the Multi-Year Tariff Proposal submitted by AAI. The Authority's proposals regarding the same were placed for stakeholder consultations by way of Consultation Paper No. 24/2018-19 dated 16th November, 2018.
- A meeting with the stakeholders for inviting responses on the proposed 1.6 decisions taken by the Authority was held on 10/12/2018.

Airports Regulatory Authon

1.7 This Order of the Authority takes into account the proposals of AAI, views expressed by stakeholders in the meeting, the written submissions received from the stakeholders and examination by the Authority with reference to its guidelines for airport operators.



भा.वि.आ.वि.प्रा. AERA

2. Summary of stakeholders' comments

2.1 In response to Consultation Paper No. 24/2018-19 dated 16/11/2018, the Authority had received several responses from stakeholders, which were uploaded on the website of the Authority vide Public Notice No. 31/2018-19 dated 18/12/2018 for information of all the concerned stakeholders. The list of stakeholders, who have commented on the Consultation Paper No. 24/2018-19 is presented below.

S. No.	Stakeholder	Issues commented
1.	Airports Authority of India	 Traffic projections O&M expenses Tax expenses Allocation of RAB
2.	Federation of Indian Airlines (FIA) स्तत	 Shortfall in projected aeronautical revenues Increase in tariff ANS and cargo handling services Traffic projections Capital expenditures Allocation of RAB Initial RAB Useful lives of assets O&M Expenditure Non-aeronautical revenues Tax expenses Tariff determination methodology
3.	Business Aircraft Operators Association	Fuel Throughput Charges
4.	Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited (HPCL)	Fuel Throughput Charges
5.	State Government of Odisha	Additional facilities at the airport

Table 2: Summary of stakeholders' comments

2.2 The Authority has carefully considered the comments made by stakeholders (produced as-is in this Order) and has obtained response of AAI on these comments. The position of the Authority in its Consultation Paper No. 24/2018-19, issue-wise comments of the stakeholders on the Consultation Paper, the response from AAI thereon, Authority's examination, and its decisions are given in the relevant sections of this Order.



3. Methodology for tariff determination

- The Authority, vide its Order No. 13/2010-11 dated 12/01/2011 3.1 ("Airport Order") and Direction No. 5/2010-11 dated 28/02/2011 ("Airport Guidelines"), had issued guidelines to determine tariffs at major airports based on Single Till mechanism. Subsequently, the Authority has amended guidelines vide its Order No. 14, 2016-17 dated 12/01/2017 to determine the future tariffs using Hybrid Till.
- The Authority had decided the 1st control period for the airport to be 3.2 the five year period from FY 2018-19 till FY 2022-23. However considering that the airport came under the definition of a major airport by FY 2016-17, the Authority decided to include FY 2016-17 and FY 2017-18 under its regulatory ambit and accordingly consider the shortfall/surplus of these two financial years towards determination of aeronautical tariff for the 1st control period. The tariff determination process consists of determination of regulatory building blocks for the 1st control period under Hybrid Till.
- The Aggregate Revenue Requirement (ARR) under the regulatory 3.3 framework of the Authority is calculated as under:

 $ARR = \sum_{t=1}^{5} ARRt$

- $ARR_t = (FROR \times RAB_t) + D_t + O_t + T_t \alpha \times NAR_t$ Where,
- 3.3.1 t is the tariff year in the control period, ranging from 1 to 5
- 3.3.2 ARRt is the Aggregate Revenue Requirement for tariff year t
- 3.3.3 FRoR is the Fair Rate of Return for the control period
- 3.3.4 RAB_t is the Aeronautical Regulatory Asset Base for tariff year t
- 3.3.5 D_t is the Depreciation corresponding to the Regulatory Asset Base for tariff year t
- 3.3.6 Ot is the Aeronautical Operation and Maintenance expenditure for the tariff year t
- 3.3.7 T_t is the aeronautical taxation expense for the tariff year t
- 3.3.8 α is the cross subsidy factor for revenue from services other than aeronautical services. Under the Hybrid Till methodology followed by the Authority, $\alpha = 30\%$.
- 3.3.9 NARt is the Non-Aeronautical Revenue in tariff year t.
- 3.4 Based on ARR, Yield per passenger (Y) is calculated as per the formula given below:



- 3.4.1 PV (ARR_t) is the Present Value of ARR for all the tariff years. All cash flows are assumed to occur at the end of the year. Further, the date considered by the Authority for discounting of cash flows is one year from the start of the control period, i.e., 1^{st} April, 2019.
- 3.4.2 VE_t is the passenger traffic in year t.
- 3.5 Further, shortfall/surplus of FY 2016-17 and FY 2017-18 was adjusted for time value of money and added to the ARR as computed above. For this purpose, ARR for FY 2016-17 and FY 2017-18 was computed in a manner similar to para 3.3. This ARR was compared with actual aeronautical revenues of the airport for these two financial years. The future value of this shortfall/surplus was added to the ARR computed for the control period.

Stakeholder comments

3.6 Federation of Indian Airlines:

Authority ought to follow Single Till Model for determination of Aeronautical Tariff:

As per para 2 of the CP, it is stated that the Authority shall determine tariffs for AAI using the Hybrid Till model. It is to be noted that FIA has from time to time, advocated the application of a Single Till model across the airports in India. It is submitted that Single Till is premised on the following legal framework being:

- Section 13(1)(a)(v) of AERA Act envisages that while determining tariff for aeronautical services, the Authority shall take into consideration revenue received from services other than the aeronautical services.
- Clause 4.2 of AERA Guidelines recognizes Single Till approach which sets out the following components on the basis of which ARR will be calculated:
 - Fair Rate of Return applied to the Regulatory Asset Base
 - o Operation & Maintenance Expenditure
 - o Depreciation
 - o Taxation
 - Revenues from services other than aeronautical services
- It is submitted that determination of aeronautical tariff warrants a comprehensive evaluation of the economic model and realities of the airport – both capital and revenue elements. The Authority's approach of Hybrid Till for AAI deserves to be discarded.
- In the Single Till Order, Authority has strongly made a case in favour of the determination of tantf on the basis of 'Single Till'.



It is noteworthy that the Authority in its inter alia Single Till Order has:

- Comprehensively evaluated the economic model and realities of the airport – both capital and revenue elements.
- Taken into account the legislative intent behind Section 13(1)(a)(v) of the AERA Act.
- Concluded that the Single Till is the most appropriate for the economic regulation of major airports in India.
- The criteria for determining tariff after taking into account standards followed by several international airports (United Kingdom, Australia, Ireland and South Africa) and prescribéd by ICAO.
- The Authority in its AERA Guidelines (Clause 4.3) has followed the Single Till approach while laying down the procedure for determination of ARR for Regulated Services. In this respect, the matter must be dealt with by the Authority considering the ratio pronounced by the Constitutional Bench in the Hon'ble Supreme Court Judgment in PTC vs. CERC reported as (2010) 4 SCC 603 (please ref: Paragraph Nos. 58 to 64 at Page Nos. 639 to 641) wherein it is specifically stated that regulation under a enactment/statute, as a part of regulatory framework, intervenes and even overrides the existing contracts between the regulated entities inasmuch as it casts a statutory obligation on the regulated entities to align their existing and future contracts with the said regulations.
- The fundamental reasoning behind 'Single Till' approach is that if the consumers/passengers are offered cheaper airfares on account of lower airport charges, the volume of passengers is bound to increase leading to more foot-fall and probability of higher non-aeronautical revenue. The benefit of such non aeronautical revenue should be passed on to consumers/passengers and that can be assured only by way of lower aeronautical charges. It is a productive chain reaction which needs to be taken into account by the Authority.

• FIA therefore submits as under:

- Single Till Model ought to be applied to all the airports regulated and operated by the Authority regardless of whether it is a public or private airport or works under the PPP model and in spite of the concession agreements as the same is mandated by the statute.
- Single Till is in the public interest and will not hurt the investor's interest and given the economic and aviation growth that is projected for India, Fair Rate of Return (FRoR) alone will be enough to ensure continued investor's interest.
- MoCA's views with respect to any issue at best can be considered as that of a Stakeholder and by no means are binding to Authority's exercise of determination of

Order No. 46/2018-19



aeronautical tariff as is admitted by MoCA itself before the AERAAT.

In view of the above, it is submitted without prejudice that determination of aeronautical tariff on Hybrid Till basis for the First control period would set the tone and precedent for determination of aeronautical tariff in subsequent control periods contrary to the applicable legal framework. Thus, it is submitted that Authority should discard the option of determination of aeronautical tariff on Hybrid Till and follow Single Till scrupulously.

AAI's reply to stakeholder comments

3.7 AAI did not respond to these comments.

Authority's examination of stakeholders comments and AAI's submission to stakeholders comments

- 3.8 The Authority has noted the comments from FIA regarding the regulatory Till applicable for the airport. The Authority has decided to adopt Hybrid Till as per the revised guidelines issued vide its Order No. 14, 2016-17 dated 12th January 2017.
- 3.9 The Authority has provided detailed reasoning and adequately responded to the stakeholders' comments on the adoption of Hybrid Till in its Order No. 14, 2016-17 and passed the following order:
 - (i) The Authority will in future determine the tariffs of major airports under "Hybrid Till" wherein 30% of non-aeronautical revenues will be used to cross-subsidize aeronautical charges. Accordingly, to that extent the airport operator guidelines of the Authority shall be amended. The provisions of the Guidelines issued by the Authority, other than regulatory Till, shall remain the same.
 - (ii) In case of Delhi and Mumbai airports, tariff will continue to be determined as per the SSA entered into between Government of India and the respective airport operators at Delhi and Mumbai.
- 3.10 In view of above, the Authority decides to determine aeronautical tariffs at Bhubaneswar Airport for the first control period on Hybrid Till basis.

Decision No. 1: Methodology for Tariff Determination

1.a. The Authority decides to determine aeronautical tariffs at Bhubaneswar Airport for the first control period on Hyprid Till basis.



4. Multi-Year Tariff Proposal of BBI

- 4.1 AAI made submissions dated 10/08/2018 to the Authority for determination of tariffs for the 1^{st} control period (01/04/2018 to 31/03/2023) on the basis of Hybrid Till.
- 4.2 AAI provides Air Navigation Services (ANS) in addition to landing, parking and other aeronautical services at BBI. AAI had submitted that the tariff proposal does not consider revenues, expenditure and assets on account of ANS. This order discusses the determination of tariffs for aeronautical services at the airport excluding ANS.
- 4.3 AAI had further submitted that all cargo operations have been transferred to AAI Cargo Logistics and Allied Services (AAICLAS), its wholly owned subsidiary and the tariff proposal does not consider revenues, expenditure and assets on account of cargo operations. This Order discusses the determination of tariffs for aeronautical services at the airport excluding cargo operations. The tariffs for cargo operations will be determined separately since the operations are carried out by a separate entity.
- 4.4 AAI had informed that accounts of AAI are audited by C&AG of India as mandated by the AAI Act. The C&AG's resident audit party audits the financial records and statements of AAI airports, regional and field offices. However, the C&AG issues the final audit certificate for the AAI as a whole and only trial balance is available for BBI. The Authority had considered the trial balance for BBI Airport as submitted by AAI while determining tariffs for BBI Airport.

Stakeholder comments

4.5 Federation of Indian Airlines:

Revenues from Air Navigation System (ANS) & cargo operations have not been included in computation of aeronautical revenues, thereby resulting in the increase of the projected shortfall.

FIA submits that as per para 3.2 & 3.3 of the CP, it is observed that the tariff proposal submitted by AAI did not consider revenues, expenses & assets related to air navigation services provided by AAI and cargo services provided by AAI Cargo Logistics and Allied Services (AAICLAS), a wholly owned subsidiary of AAI.

As per section 2 of AERA Act 2008, under sub-section (a), "aeronautical services means any services provided-

(i) For navigation, surveillance and supportive communication thereto for air traffic management

(iv) For ground handling services relating to aircraft, passengers and cargo at an airport

(v) For the cargo facility at an airport"

Considering the above provisions, FIA submits that revenue from both services (ANS & cargo services should form part of aeronautical revenues and accordingly the Authority should take into account of the corresponding revenue and revise tariff card accordingly. As highlighted in Para 57 of DIAL TDSAT judgment, "...Even if DIAL engages in providing an Aeronautical Service through its servants or agents, in essence the service must be deemed to be one provided by DIAL".

Hence applying the same principle at BBI Airport, cargo operations which have been transferred to AAI Cargo Logistics and Allied Services (AAICLAS), services will deemed to be provided by AAI. Therefore, revenue from cargo services should be considered for determining tariff for first control period.

Accordingly, FIA submits that Authority should consider the revenue from air navigation services and cargo services while determining tariff for first control period & propose a new tariff card accordingly.

AAI's reply to stakeholder comments

4.6 Revenue from cargo operations cannot be the part of tariff proposal as the cargo operation have been hived off to the AAICLAS, and air navigation services cannot be formed part of tariff proposal as the same is determined by the MoCA.

Authority's examination of stakeholders comments and AAI's submission to stakeholders comments

- 4.7 The Authority has noted the comments of FIA regarding ANS and AAICLAS operations.
- 4.8 The Authority carries out separate exercise for tariff determination of ground handling service providers and cargo handling service providers. Therefore, any expenses, revenues, and assets for the same should not be considered in determination of aeronautical tariffs for the airport operations. The Authority, however, recognizes that monies earned by AAI from AAICLAS as a concessionaire of cargo business at Bhubaneswar Airport should be accounted for in the current Order and has discussed the same in 17.11.3 below.



- 4.9 For ANS, the tariffs are determined by MoCA. Because it is a separate exercise, which considers ANS specific assets, expenses and revenues, these should not be considered in determination of aeronautical tariffs for the airport operations.
- 4.10 The Authority, hence, decides to not consider the ANS and cargo operations for the purposes of determination of aeronautical tariffs except for monies earned by AAI from AAICLAS for undertaking cargo business at Bhubaneswar Airport.

Decision No. 2: Regarding consideration of ANS and AAICLAS operations

2.a. The Authority decides to not consider the assets, expenses and revenues pertaining to ANS and AAIOLAS operations for the purposes of aeronautical tariff determination of Bhubaneswar Airport except for monies earned by AAI from AAICLAS for doing cargo business at Bhubaneswar Airport.





5. Traffic forecast

5.1 The traffic handled by BBI Airport during the past years is given in the table below:

Year	Domestic passengers	International passengers	Domestic ATM	International ATM
2007-08	7,02,201	2	12,272	2
2008-09	6,71,861	O	9,962	0
2009-10	8,25,958	a la o	10,708	0
2010-11	10,44,860	SHOULD O	11,788	0
2011-12	12,53,263	0	14,672	2
2012-13	13,89,552	0	13,883	0
2013-14	13,35,832	0	11,752	0
2014-15	14,93,342	17	12,506	6
2015-16	18,78,559	16,173	14,032	4
2016-17	23,03,623	28,810	17,071	7
2017-18	31,58,916	91,719	22,532	623
Past 10 years CAGR	16.2%	NA	6.3%	NA
Past 5 years CAGR	17.9%	सत्यमेव जयते NA	10.2%	NA

Ch L'- CC

The traffic growth rates as submitted by AAI for the 1st control period 5.2 are as follows:

Veen		Passenger		and the second se	ATM	
Year	Domestic	International	Combined	Domestic	International	Combined
			Growth ra	ites		
2018-19	16%	35%	16.54%	15%	35%	15.54%
2019-20	16%	35%	16.62%	15%	35%	15.63%
2020-21	16%	35%	16.72%	15%	35%	15.73%
2021-22	16%	35%	16.83%	15%	35%	15.86%
2022-23	10%	20%	10.51%	9%	18%	9.45%
			Traffic			
2018-19	3,664,343	123,821	3,788,163	25,912	841	26,753
2019-20	4,250,637	167,158	4,417,795	29,799	1,135	30,934
2020-21	4,930,739	225,663	5,156,402	34,268	1,533	35,801
2021-22	5,719,658	304,645	6,024,303	39,409	2,069	41,478
2022-23	6,291,623	365,574	6,657,198	42,955	2,442	45,397

Table 4: Traffic projections proposed by AAI

5.3 AAI submitted that the passenger traffic and aircraft movement projections are based on past trends, econometric and regression analysis, and various economic factors including policy framework.



Authority's Examination at Consultation Stage:

5.4 The Authority carefully examined the submissions from AAI. As part of its examination of AAI's forecast of traffic at BBI Airport, the Authority calculated Compounded Annual Growth Rate, or CAGR, for passenger traffic and ATM from FY 2007-08 to FY 2017-18 (10 year CAGR) and FY 2012-13 to FY 2017-18 (5 year CAGR). There is no historical data on the international operations at BBI Airport since they began only in FY 2014-15. Hence the Authority did not compute CAGR for international passenger traffic and ATM. The details have been provided in the table below:

Particulars	Growth rates as per AAI	10 year CAGR	5 year CAGR
Passengers:			81 101
Domestic	16% (reduced to 10% in year 5)	16.2%	17.9%
International	35% (reduced to 20% in year 5)	NA	NA
ATM:			
Domestic	15% (reduced to 9% in year 5)	6.3%	10.2%
International	35% (reduced to 18% in year 5)	NA NA	NA

Table 5: Comparison of traffic growth lates as per AAI's submission and actual CAGR

- 5.5 The Authority observed that the domestic passenger traffic grew from 7.02 lakh passengers in FY 2007-08 to 31.58 lakh passengers in FY 2017-18, i.e., a 10 year CAGR of 16.2%. The traffic in FY 2012-13 was 13.89 lakh domestic passengers, which grew at a CAGR of 17.9% up to FY 2017-18 (5 year CAGR). The Authority noted the spurt in traffic in the recent past, which causes CAGR for 5 year period to be higher than that for 10 year period. The Authority also notes that existing traffic at BBI Airport (3.25 million for FY 2017-18) exceeds its terminal capacity (at 2.5 million) and to that extent, the future growth may not follow the high growth trend of recent past till capacity expansion is undertaken by BBI Airport, Having considered 5 and 10 year CAGRs of passenger traffic and likely capacity constraint, the Authority is of the view that 10 year CAGR provides more realistic traffic growth rates for future projections of domestic passenger traffic. The Authority noted that domestic passenger traffic growth rate proposed by AAI is closer to 10 year CAGR, and hence the Authority did not propose a change in the same, except the last year's projection, which the Authority proposed to change from 10% to 16%.
- 5.6 The Authority noted that AAI projected ATMs to grow at a much higher rate (15% per annum except for FY 2022-23 where it is 9%) than historically observed at BBI Airport (10 year CAGR at 6%). For domestic ATM, AAI submitted that it considered trends in passengers to aircraft movement ratios combined with the load factors. The Authority noted that BBI Airport is experiencing high load factors and

Order No. 46/2018-19

Regulatory Author

there will need to be more aircraft movements to address likely increase in passenger traffic. Data for the past 6 months of current Financial Year 2018-19 indicates that aircraft movements at BBI Airport have exceeded passenger traffic movements. On account of these patterns, the Authority is of the view to not follow 10 year CAGR in case of ATMs. The Authority is of the view to accept ATM projections made by AAI, except the last year's projection, which the Authority proposed to change from 9% to 15%.

- 5.7 The Authority noted that the international operations at BBI Airport began in FY 2014-15 and international traffic has increased in multiples over the last 3-4 years. However the international traffic base for FY 2016-17 at 91,719 is still low and the airport is likely to experience similar growth pattern in the recent future. The Authority noted AAI's proposal to consider traffic projection for international segment at 35% per annum except at 20% for the 5th year of the Control Period. Given the volatility in international traffic since then, the Authority proposed to consider the growth rates as submitted by AAI for international passenger and ATM traffic, except for the reduction proposed by AAI in 5th year of the control period, FY 2022-23.
- 5.8 The traffic growth rates and the corresponding traffic for passengers and ATM as considered by the Authority for the 1st control period as part of its proposal in the Consultation Paper have been given in the table below.

Veen		Passenger		ATM			
Year	Domestic	International	Combined	Domestic	International	Combined	
(*)		T Tal S	Growth rates		9		
2018-19	16%	35%	16.54%	15%	35%	15.54%	
2019-20	16%	35%	16.62%	15%	35%	15.63%	
2020-21	16%	35%	16.72%	15%	35%	15.73%	
2021-22	16%	35%	16.83%	15%	35%	15.86%	
2022-23	16%	35%	16.96%	15%	35%	16.00%	
			Traffic	Ser.			
2018-19	36,64,343	1,23,821	37,88,163	25,912	841	26,753	
2019-20	42,50,637	1,67,158	44,17,795	29,799	1,135	30,934	
2020-21	49,30,739	2,25,663	51,56,402	34,268	1,533	35,801	
2021-22	57,19,658	3,04,645	60,24,303	39,409	2,069	41,478	
2022-23	66,34,803	4,11,271	70,46,074	45,320	2,794	48,113	

Table 6: Traffic forecast as considered by the Authority – Consultation Paper



Based on the material before it and the analysis, the Authority had proposed the following regarding traffic forecast:

- 5.9.1 To consider the ATM and passenger traffic as per Table 6.
- 5.9.2 To true-up the traffic volume (ATM and passengers) on the basis of actual traffic in 1st control period while determining tariffs for the 2nd control period.

Stakeholder comments

5.10 Airports Authority of India (AAI):

The Authority has though accepted projection of AAI from FY18-19 to FY21-22 for 4 years and also requested to consider the same growth rate for FY22-23.

Further, the projections made by AAI as same has been done based on trend analysis for last fifteen years and also considering GDP as predictor variable.

5.11 Federation of Indian Airlines (FIA):

Traffic projections are based on the data received from AAI and Authority has not conducted independent study of its own. Projected growth rates for passenger traffic are not in line with the historical 5-year CAGR of domestic traffic.

FIA submits that in respect of the projections of traffic, the Authority sought historical passenger & ATM traffic from FY 08 to FY 18 and its projections for the first control period from BBI Airport. FIA observed that the Authority has done an upward revision in BBI airport for YoY growth rates for domestic passenger traffic from 10% to 16% in FY23 and from 20% to 35% in FY23 in case of international passenger growth (refer table below). For FY19 to FY22, growth rate projections submitted by AAI for passenger traffic have been accepted by the Authority.

Table #5 on Page	10 of CP No.	24/2018-19	10.1	K ARA	自居國	1 -1	11 1	A LER LE	YoY		MER	
Particulars	FY 19	FY20	FY21	FY 22	FY23	Grand Total	Common size	FY20	FY21	FY22	0.0000	5-year CAGR FY19 - FY23
Passenger traffic Domestic	3,664,343	4,250.637	4.930,739	5.719.658	6.634,303	25,200 160	. 95%	16%	165	16%	16%	165
International	123.821	167,158	225.663	304.645	411,271	1,232,558	55	35%	35%	35%	35%	35'
Total	3,788,164	4,417,795	5,156,402	6,024,303	7,046,074	26,432,738	100%	17%	17%	17%	17%	175
ATM Domestic International	25,912 841	29,799 1,135	34,268 1,533	39,409 2,069	45,320 2,794	174,708 8,372	95% 5%	15% 35%	15% 35%	15% 35%	15% 35%	155
Total	26,753	30.934	35,801	41,478	48,114	183,080	100%	16%	16%	16%	16%	16



Passenger traffic – Domestic

FIA submits that The Authority has noted that domestic passenger traffic growth rate proposed by AAI is closer to 10 year CAGR, and hence the Authority does not propose a change in the same, except the last year's projection, which the Authority proposes to change from 10% to 16%. However, the historical 5 year CAGR for passenger growth rate is 17.9%. FIA submits that considering the above, we

recommend Authority to conduct an independent study on passenger growth rate, as the ATM growth has been projected at c.16% (YoY) (refer table above) which is higher than both 5-year CAGR and 10-year CAGR. FIA wish to submit that any increase in ATM growth will tantamount to increase in passenger throughput over the control period. Hence, FIA submits that the Authority should consider the historical 5-year CAGR of 17.9% for YoY growth rate projections for domestic passenger traffic for first control period.

Passenger traffic – International

FIA has noted that the BBI Airport was accorded international status in October, 2013. However, based on Table 1 of the CP, FIA understands that the international operations have started in FY16. Hence, the 5year CAGR or 10-year CAGR could not be computed for the control period. However, FIA noted that the volume for traffic international passengers have increased by 78% in FY17 & 218% in FY18 i.e. CAGR of 138% during 2 years. However, the Authority has considered the growth rate of 35% for the control period which is significantly lower than past.

सत्यमव जयत AAI's reply to stakeholder comments

5.12 AAI did not respond to these comments.

Authority's examination of stakeholders comments and AAI's submission to stakeholders comments

5.13 Authority's examination of comments by AAI:

The Authority has noted the comments of AAI as regard traffic forecast. The Authority understands that AAI has asked for the traffic growth rate of the last year of the control period to be consistent with its proposal in MYTP. However, despite several requests, AAI has not provided any reasonable justification in this regard. Without any reasonable justification for a drop in the growth rate of passenger traffic from 16% to 10% in the last year of the first Control Period, the Authority is unable to accept AAI's proposal. The use of past CAGR for future projections takes into account the year-on-year volatility in traffic. Therefore, the Authority decides to keep the growth rates constant for the fifth year of the control period.

5.1 Authority's examination of comments by FIA: 5.14

The Authority has carefully examined the comments from FIA regarding traffic projections.

order No. 46/2018-19

Airports

and Regulatory Autho

- 5.14.1**Domestic traffic projections:** FIA has suggested that the Authority should consider the 5-year CAGR of 17.9% for domestic passenger growth projections instead of the 10-year CAGR of 16%. The Authority has already provided the reasoning behind the use of 10-year CAGR of 16%. To reiterate, following are the reasons for the same:
 - There has been a spurt in traffic growth over the past 5 years. For example, traffic grew at 37% in FY 2018, 23% in FY 2017, and 26% in FY 2016. These are very high traffic growth rates, leading to a higher 5-year CAGR of 17.9%, as against the 10year CAGR of 16%.
 - The Authority also notes that existing traffic at BBI Airport (3.25 million for FY 2017-18) exceeds its terminal capacity (at 2.5 million) and to that extent, the future growth may not follow the high growth trend of recent past till capacity expansion is undertaken by BBI Airport. This capacity expansion, by way of an additional terminal, is expected to be operationalized only by the last year of the control period.
 - FIA has pointed out that domestic ATM projections have been considered at a higher rate than the 5 or 10-year CAGRs. As mentioned during the consultation stage, the Authority noted that BBI Airport is experiencing high load factors and there will need to be more aircraft movements to address likely increase in passenger traffic. Data for first 8 months of current Financial Year 2018-19 indicates that aircraft movements at BBI Airport have exceeded passenger traffic movements. Domestic passengers, grew by 39.2% from April to November 2018 as compared to the previous year. Domestic ATM grew by 45.5% in the same period. On account of these patterns, the Authority is of the view to not follow 5 or 10 year CAGR in case of ATMs.
 - Due to the above reasons, the Authority is of the view that the 10-year CAGR provides a more realistic estimate to project passenger traffic growth rates up to the next 5 years.

The Authority contemplates conduct of an independent study for traffic projections of AAI airports.

5.15 The Authority observed the actual traffic growth during the current FY 2018-19, for which data up to December 2018 was available. The Authority observed that the airport served 3.02 million domestic passengers from April to December, 2018. Extrapolating this to 12 months, the estimated domestic passenger traffic for FY 2018-19 comes out to be 4.03 million. This is annual growth of 28% over FY 2017-18 traffic, as against the projected 16% during the consultation stage. Because of these significant differences, the Authority has

Order No. 46/2018-19

SPATE Airport

Constitic Regulatory Auto

decided to consider a revised 10-year CAGR from FY 2008-19 to FY 2018-19. This revised 10-year CAGR was found to be 20%. Based on these assumptions, the revised traffic projections are given in the table below.

N.		Passenger			ATM	
Year	Domestic	International	Combined	Domestic	International	Combined
40 C		4	Growth rate	s		
2018-19	28%	35%	27.80%	15%	35%	15.54%
2019-20	20%	35%	20.45%	15%	35%	15.63%
2020-21	20%	35%	20.50%	15%	35%	15.73%
2021-22	20%	35%	20.56%	15%	35%	15.86%
2022-23	20%	35%	20.63%	15%	35%	16.00%
			Traffic		10 (A.	
2018-19	40,30,559	1,23,821	41,54,379	25,912	841	26,753
2019-20	48,36,670	1,67,158	50,03,828	29,799	1,135	30,934
2020-21	58,04,004	2,25,663	60,29,668	34,268	1,533	35,801
2021-22	69,64,805	3,04,645	72,69,451	39,409	2,069	41,478
2022-23	83,57,766	4,11,271	87,69,038	45,320	2,794	48,113

Table 7: Traffic projections for the first control period as per Authority - Final

5.16 **International traffic projections:** FIA has also commented on international passenger traffic projections. FIA has pointed out that the Authority has assumed a growth rate of 35% for these, which is lower than the first two years' growth rates of 78% and 218%. In absence of any alternate suggestions in this regard, the Authority decides to keep its earlier proposal of 35% growth rate.

Decision No. 3: Regarding traffic forecast

m 8

li ni

- The Authority decides to consider the ATM and passenger traffic as per Table 7.
- 3.b. The Authority decides to true-up the traffic volume (ATM and passengers) on the basis of actual traffic in 1st control period while determining tariffs for the 2nd control period.



6. Allocation of Initial Regulatory Asset Base

- 6.1 Under Hybrid Till, only aeronautical assets are included as part of the Regulatory Asset Base (RAB). Therefore, all airport assets need to be segregated between aeronautical and non-aeronautical. Further, projections of capitalizations during the control period with regard to only aeronautical assets need to be considered as part of RAB.
- 6.2 For the purposes of this segregation, AAI has divided its assets into three components aeronautical, non-aeronautical and common. Common components have been further segregated into aeronautical and non-aeronautical assets by applying one of the following ratios:
 - a) Terminal Area Ratio: This is a ratio of aeronautical area to nonaeronautical area and is applied for all terminal related common assets.
 - b) Employee Ratio: This is a ratio of staff providing non-aeronautical services (i.e. commercial and land management) to total staff employed at the airport excluding ANS and cargo.
 - c) Quarter ratio: This is a ratio based on number of non-aeronautical staff to aeronautical staff residing at the residential quarters at the airport. It is applied to assets pertaining to such residential quarters.
 - d) Integrated office building ratio: This is a ratio based on area reserved for non-aeronautical services (commercial and land management) to total area in the separate administrative building at the airport.
- 6.3 The table below provides the details of these ratios used for allocation.

Dautioulano Ant	Rat	tio
Particulars	FY 2016-17	FY 2017-18
Terminal Area Ratio	7.53%	7.55%
Employee Ratio	7:98	6:100
Quarter ratio	5:55	5:55
Integrated office building ratio	10:72	10:72

6.4 The allocation of gross block of assets as on 01/04/2016 between aeronautical and non-aeronautical services as submitted by AAI is given in the table below:

S. No.	Asset catego	भूमतन आर्थिक स्थिति	Total assets (INR Crores)	Aero assets (INR Crores)	% Aero	Remar ks
Order N	No. 46/2018-19	the Regulatory AM	high and show			Page 22

S. No.	Asset category	Total assets (INR Crores)	Aero assets (INR Crores)	% Aero	Remar ks
· 1.	Freehold Land	3.42		0%	
2.	Runways, Aprons and Taxiways	42.05	42.05	100%	
3.	Road, Bridges & Culverts	42.49	33.49	79%	Refer Table 10
4.	Building – Terminal	74.45	70.01	94%	Refer Table 10
5.	Building – Residential	6.21	6.00	97%	Refer Table 10
6.	Boundary Wall – Operational	3.46	3.46	100%	
7.	Boundary Wall – Residential	3.47	3.47	100%	51
8.	Computer - End user	0.75	0.75	100%	
9.	Computer - Servers and networks	0.59	0.59	100%	
10.	Intangible Assets – Software	0.38	0.38	100%	
11.	Plant & Machinery	17.56	17.53	100%	Refer Table 10
12.	Tools & Equipment	0.93	0.92	99%	
13.	Furniture & Fixtures: Other Than Trolley	3.01	2.95	98%	Refer Table 10
14.	Furniture & Fixtures: Trolley	0.54	0.54	100%	
15.	Vehicles	0.75	0.75	100%	34
16.	Electrical Installations	51,68	50.93	99%	Refer Table 10
17.	Other Office Equipment	0.81	0.78	. 97%	
18.	X Ray Baggage System	1.85	1.85	100%	
19.	CFT/Fire Fighting Equipment	12.79	12.79	100%	
*	Total	267.19	249.24	93%	

Authority's Examination at Consultation Stage

AAI submitted the workings for the calculation of the terminal area 6.5 ratio, i.e., ratio of non-aeronautical portion to the aeronautical portion of the terminal building. This has been presented in the table below.

S. No.	Category	Area (Sq. meters)
1.	Commercial entities - domestic	1,483
2.	Commercial entities - international	271
3.	Airlines - domestic	1226
4.	Airlines - international	122
5.	Regulatory & allied agencies - domestic	25
Order N	o. 46/2018-19	Page 23

nic Regulatory Autho

S. No.	Category	Area (Sq. meters)
6.	Regulatory & allied agencies - international	262
7.	Ground handling	39
8.	Total non-aeronautical area (1)	2,429
9.	Total area of terminal (2)	32,244
10.	Terminal area ratio (1/2)	7.53%

- 6.6 The Authority verified the above working, with details of exact area given to various entities commercial, airlines, and regulatory and allied agencies. The Authority observed that the proportion of non-aeronautical area is on similar lines as those of other AAI airports of similar nature. In view of this, the Authority accepted the terminal area ratio as proposed by AAI.
- 6.7 The Authority verified the workings provided by AAI for other three ratios, i.e., employee ratio, quarter ratio, and the integrated office building ratio. On the basis of its verification, the Authority accepted these ratios as proposed by AAI.
- 6.8 The Authority observed the use of various ratios for segregation of common assets into aeronautical and non-aeronautical. These are explained in the table below.

S. No.	Asset category	Common assets (INR cr.)	Ratio used for allocation of common assets	Remarks
1.	Freehold Land		-ICI Y	-
2.	Runways, Aprons and Taxiways	- H - H H		
*	A		RA 86% -	There are assets worth INR 8.97 crores that pertain to the car parking area. These have been considered as exclusively non- aeronautical.
3.	Road, Bridges & Culverts	0.36	Quarter ratio 14% - Terminal area ratio	Out of total common assets of INR 36 lakh, INR 31 lakh (i.e. 86%) pertains to strengthening of colony road at
r.	A STREET	Autra entitivo Antino	A Star File and	employee quarters, thereby requiring a quarter ratio based allocation. Remaining assets (worth INR 5
Orde	r No. 46/2018-19	Reads and	and the second	Page 24

Regulatory AV

S. No.	Asset category	Common assets (INR cr.)	Ratio used for allocation of common assets	Remarks
	6			lakh) have been allocated as per terminal area ratio.
4.	Building – Terminal	55.95	90.5% - Terminal area ratio 9.0% - Integrated office building ratio 0.3% - Quarter ratio 0.3% - Employee ratio	Majority of these assets (INR 51 lakh out of INR 56 lakh) have been allocated as per terminal area ratio.
5.	Building – Residential	2.57	,100% - Quarter ratio	Residential building pertains to employee quarters, which is allocated on the basis of quarter ratio.
6.	Boundary Wall – Operational	सत्यमव ज 0.02	-100% - Employee ratio	-
7.	Boundary Wall – Residential	1 <u>1</u>		-
8.	Computer - End user	-	-	-
9.	Computer - Servers and networks	20 -	-	-
10.	Intangible Assets – Software	-	- (~	- 1
11.	Plant & Machinery	0.48	99% - Terminal area ratio 1% - Employee ratio	Allocation of plant and machinery, which is majorly located inside the terminal building, is on the basis of terminal area ratio.
12.	Tools & Equipment	0.09	73% - Employee ratio 27% - Integrated office ratio	-
13.	Furniture & Fixtures: Other Than Trolley	0.50	99% - Integrated office building ratio 1% - Quarter ratio	Almost all office furniture is located in the administrative building, and hence allocated on the basis of integrated office building ratio.
14.	Furniture & Fixtures: Trolley	विमानवत्तन आर्थिक	A LANGE	-
15.	Vehicles	and all	1 Bill	-
Order	r No. 46/2018-19	Read and Regulatory PA	All	Page 25

S. No.	Asset category	Common assets (INR cr.)	Ratio used for allocation of common assets	Remarks
16.	Electrical Installations	8.19	61.8% - Terminal area ratio 35.9% - Integrated office ratio 2.4% - Quarter ratio	Allocation of electrical installations has been done on the basis of the location of specific assets - either terminal building or integrated office building. Some assets have been installed in employee quarters, requiring an allocation on the basis of quarter ratio.
17.	Other Office Equipment	0,28	98% - Employee ratio 2% - Terminal area ratio	-
18.	X Ray Baggage System	सत्यमेव ज	यते	-
19.	CFT/Fire Fighting Equipment			

6.9 On the basis of its observations, the Authority proposed the allocation of gross block of assets in accordance with the table below.

S. No.	Asset category	Total assets (INR Crores)	Aero assets (INR Crores)	% Aero
1.	Freehold Land	3.42		0%
2.	Runways, Aprons and Taxiways	42.05	42.05	100%
3.	Road, Bridges & Culverts	42.49	33.49	79%
4.	Building – Terminal	74.45	70.01	94%
5.	Building – Residential	6.21	6.00	97%
6.,	Boundary Wall – Operational	3.46	3.46	100%
7.	Boundary Wall – Residential	3.47	3.47	100%
8.	Computer - End user	0.75	0.75	100%
9.	Computer - Servers and networks	0.59	0.59	100%
10.	Intangible Assets – Software	0.38	0.38	100%
11.	Plant & Machinery	17.56	17.53	100%
12.	Tools & Equipment	0.93	0.92	99%
13.	Furniture & Fixtures: Other Than Trolley	नवत्तन आधिक कि 3.01	2.95	98%
14.	Furniture & Fixtures: Trolley	0.54	0.54	100%

* Airports

Eco.

amic Regulatory Authorito

Table 12: Allocation of assets proposed by the Authority (gross block

Order No. 46/2018-19

S. No.	Asset category	Total assets (INR Crores)	Aero assets (INR Crores)	% Aero
15.	Vehicles	0.75	0.75	100%
16.	Electrical Installations	51.68	50.93	99%
17.	Other Office Equipment	0.81	0.78	97%
18.	X Ray Baggage System	1.85	1.85	100%
19.	CFT/Fire Fighting Equipment	12.79	12.79	100%
	Total	267.19	249.24	93%

6.10 Based on the material before it and the analysis, the Authority had proposed the allocation of gross block of assets as on 1st April 2016 between aeronautical and non-aeronautical assets as detailed in Table 12.

Stakeholder comments

6.11 Federation of Indian Airlines (FIA):

6.11.1Authority has broadly relied on AAI's submission on allocation of RAB additions between aeronautical and non-aeronautical without conducting technical study by independent agency

Allocation of RAB additions				INR crores
	Gross A	llocation	Aero	% to total
Asset	value	ratio	asset	Aero asset
New terminal building	608.0	90:10	547.2	46%
New terminal building-	327.4	90:40	294.6	25%
New link building between T1 & T2-building	56.7	90:10	51.0	ii
New link building between T1 & T2-electrical installation	30.5	90:10	27.5	2%
Solar power plant	41.2	100:0	41.2	. 3%
Runways, Aprons and Taxiways	147.1	100:0	147.1	12%
Other assets	77.3	100:0	77.3	7%
Total	1288.2	92.1%	1185.9	100%



The Authority proposed to allocate the terminal building & new link building in aeronautical & non-aeronautical in the ratio of 90:10. No basis, benchmarking or independent study has been conducted by Authority for ascertaining this ratio.

FIA submits that the allocation of the airport assets between aeronautical or non-aeronautical categories is critical under shared till

approach, hence the same should be carried out on the basis of independent study rather than on tentative basis.

FIA understands entire other assets additions during the control period has been considered as aeronautical by Authority. Although, this has not been specifically mentioned in the CP. Hence, certain additions which could have been allocated to non-aeronautical have not been considered by Authority. Hence, on an overall basis, 92.1% of total additions are considered as aeronautical assets on a tentative basis.

FIA submits that rather than proposing tentative allocation, the Authority to consider the asset allocation ratio of 80% : 20% in the 1st control period to reduce ARR & minimize shortfall and conduct an independent study on asset allocation which may be used for truing up in the 2nd control period.

6.11.2Ratios used for calculating initial RAB are not correct. Authority has accepted the ratios given by AAI without any independent study.

FIA submits that under Para 5.2 of the CP, AAI has divided its initial RAB assets with a gross block of INR 267.19 crores, accumulated depreciation of INR 249.24 crores & net block of INR 96.45 crores as on 01 April 2016 into aeronautical, non-aeronautical and common assets.

FIA submits that aeronautical assets include the clearly identified aeronautical assets and a portion of common assets at the airport bifurcated on the basis of above mentioned ratios.

AAI has allocated the common assets of initial RAB based on four ratios namely terminal area ratio, employee ratio, quarter ratio & integrated office building. However, the basis of calculating two ratios are apparently wrong and accordingly the allocation of initial RAB into aeronautical & non-aeronautical assets have been wrongly computed.

FIA submits that the following two ratios have been wrongly calculated by Authority:-

Employee Ratio: This is a ratio of staff providing non-aeronautical services (i.e. commercial and land management) to total staff employed at the airport excluding ANS and cargo. As per Para 12.7 of the Consultation Paper, the Authority examined the correct ratio for allocation of payroll expenses should be 7:105 instead of 7:98. Hence, the corrected ratio i.e. 7:105 should be used for allocating the common assets into aeronautical and non-aeronautical assets.



Quarter Ratio: This is a ratio based on number of non-aeronautical staff to aeronautical staff residing at the residential quarters at the airport. To arrive at the correct ratio, denominator should be total staff (aeronautical staff & non-aeronautical staff) rather than just nonaeronautical staff. Therefore, the corrected ratio should be 5:60 rather than 5:55. Hence, the correct ratio of 5:60 should be used for allocating the common assets into aeronautical and non-aeronautical assets.

After the allocation of common assets, 93% of total assets are aero assets & balance are non-aero assets as depicted in the table.

(公案后入注:福门三届)将(214)(5)

Table	#11 on Page 17 of CP No. 24/2018-19	STATISTICS STATISTICS			- 14		INR crores
_	Asset category	Ratio used for allocation	Total assets A	ero assets	% Aero Aco	and the second second second	Opening
		ut contimon ustets				reciation	Construction of the local
				(8)		(C)	(8-0
						R. S. WA	
		1. EAGE (1) 14 15 15	(A)		(A/B)		
1	Freehold Land	A AND LADOR DALS	3.42		0%		
2	Runways, Aprons and Taxiways		42.05	42.05	100%	39.33	2.7
3	Road, Bridges & Culverts	865 quarter ratio, 145	42.49	33,49	79%	21,36	12.1
		90.55 terminal area intro,					
		9% integerated office					
4	Building - Terminal	tallangratio 0.35 4	74.45	70,01	9.1%	29.09	40.9
		quarter ratio, 0.3%					
		employee ratio				N.	
5	Building - Residential	100% quarter ratio	6.21	6,00	97%	Z.46	3.5
6	Boundary Wall - Operational	100% quarter ratio	3,-46	3.46	100%	2.62	0.8
7	Boundary Wall - Residential	2	3.47	3.47	100%	0.77	2.7
8	Computer - End user	÷.	0.75	0.75	1003	0.50	0.2
9	Computer - Servers and networks	5 N	0.59	0.59	100%	0.54	0.0
10	Intangible Assets - Software	All and the second seco	0.38	. 0,38	100%	0.37	0.0
t1	Plant & Machinery	995 terminal area ratio, 15 employee ratio	17.56	17.53	100%	13.BI	3.7
12	Tools & Equipment	73% enviroyee ratio, 27% integerated office building ratio	C 0.93	0.92	995	0.65	0.2
		99% integerated office					
13	Furniture & Fixtures: other than trolley	building ratio, 1% quarter	3.01	2.95	98%	2.30	0.6
1-1	Furniture & Fixtures: Trolley		0.54	0.54	100%	0.43	0.1
15	Vehicles	61.65-terninal area ratio.	0.75	0.75	100.5	0.55	0.2
6	Electrical Installations	35.9% integerated office building ratio, 2.4%	51.68	50.93	99%	25.20	25.7
		quarter ratio	10				
7	Other Office Equipment	98% employee ratio,2% terminal area ratio	0.81	0.78	97%	0.49	0.3
8	X Ray Baggage System		1.85	1.85	100%	1.78	0.0
19	CFT/Fire Fighting Equipment		12.79	12.79	100%	10.53	2.2
	Total		267.19	249.24	93%	152.79	96.4

AAI's reply to stakeholder comments

6.12 Regarding employee ratio, the ratio of staff providing Non-aeronautical विमानगतन आहि service to Aeronautical service is 7:98.



Page 29

6.13 Regarding quarter ratio, it is a ratio based on number of nonaeronautical staff to aeronautical staff residing at the residential quarters at the airport, which is 5:55.

Authority's examination of stakeholders comments and AAI's submission to stakeholders comments

6.14 Authority's examination of comments by FIA:

- 6.14.1The Authority has noted the comments from FIA regarding allocation ratios for RAB. FIA has suggested the following:
 - The Authority should conduct an independent study for allocation of RAB.
 - The Authority should consider this ratio as 80:20 for initial RAB as well as for proposed capital additions.

The Authority is the view that an independent study on allocations of assets may be conducted depending upon the size, scale, complexity, and multiple ownerships of overall assets to ascertain the aeronautical part. The Authority exercised its own diligence and sought necessary clarifications from AAI to form its view on the admissible part of the overall assets towards RAB. For the current Control Period, the Authority is not persuaded to conduct an independent study.

Regarding the actual allocation ratios for initial RAB, the Authority has provided detailed justifications for the ratios considered. These can be found on Page 13, Table 9 of the Consultation Paper, which are reproduced in this Order as well.

For other proposed asset additions, the Authority observed each asset addition proposed and appropriately allocated them to aeronautical and non-aeronautical. For example, the Authority considered a ratio of 90:10 for new terminal building and the new link building. The Authority considered the existing terminal building's ratio, which was 92.5:7.5. Considering that the new building is expected and being planned to generate higher non-aeronautical revenues and the typical area allocation by AAI in its master plans for non-aeronautical purposes at other AAI airports, the Authority considered a lower aeronautical ratio of 90:10. FIA has suggested a ratio of 80:20. However, no reasonable justification has been provided to support this ratio. It also does not seem to be supported by analysis of master plans of AAI for BBI airport. In absence of this, the Authority decides to keep the ratio at 90:10. Further, the Authority has decided to revise the allocation ratio for proposed solar power plant at the airport. The revised allocation ratio is 99:1.

- 6.14.2FIA has suggested that there are errors in employee ratio and quarter ratio. However, the Authority has ensured that these ratios are accurate. Please note the following clarifications in this regard:
 - Employee ratio: Number of non-aeronautical employees were 7 and number of aeronautical employees were 98. Therefore, the correct ratio should be 7:98. When this ratio is stated as 7:98, the ratio of non-aeronautical employees to total employees is implied as 7/105. The Authority has correctly computed and applied the same.
 - Quarter ratio: Number of hon-aeronautical employees residing at residential quarters were 5 and number of aeronautical employees were 55. Therefore, the correct ratio should by 5:55. When this ratio is stated as 5:55, the ratio of non-aeronautical employees to total employees is implied as 5/60. The Authority has correctly computed and applied the same.

सत्यमंव जयत

Decision No. 4: Regarding allocation of assets between aeronautical and non-aeronautical

4.a. The Authority decides the allocation of gross block of assets as on 1st April 2016 between aeronautical and non-aeronautical assets as detailed in Table 12.

नवत्तन आधिक

C Regulatory Au



7. Initial Regulatory Asset Base

7.1 As per AAI's submission, the Initial RAB as on 31/03/16 amounted to INR 96.45 crores. AAI submitted the following working for the computation of initial RAB.

Asset category	Opening gross block	Accumulated depreciation	Opening net block
Freehold Land	and the second	-	
Runways, Aprons and Taxiways	42.05	39.33	2.72
Road, Bridges & Culverts	33.49	21.36	12.13
Building – Terminal	70.01	29.09	40.92
Building – Residential	6.00	2.46	3.54
Boundary Wall – Operational	3.46	2.62	0.84
Boundary Wall – Residential	3.47	0.77	2.70
Computer - End user	0.75	0.50	0.26
Computer - Servers and networks	0.59	0.54	0.05
Intangible Assets – Software	0.38	0.37	0.01
Plant & Machinery	1 7.5 3	13.81	3.71
Tools & Equipment	सत्यम् ७ १२ ह	0.65	0.27
Furniture & Fixtures: Other Than Trolley	2.95	2.30	0.65
Furniture & Fixtures: Trolley	0.54	0.43	0.11
Vehicles	0.75	. 0.55	0.20
Electrical Installations	50.93	25.20	25.73
Other Office Equipment	0.78	0.49	0.30
X Ray Baggage System	1.85	1.78	0.07
CFT/Fire Fighting Equipment	12.79	10.53	2.26
Total	249.24	152.79	96.45

Table 13: Initial RAB as per AAI's submission (figures in INR crores)

Authority's Examination at Consultation Stage:

- 7.2 The Authority is undertaking a separate study to analyze the appropriate treatment of the cost of land. Meanwhile, the Authority proposed to exclude the cost of land in initial RAB, as has been done by AAI in its proposal. On the basis of the outcome of the study, the Authority proposed to true-up the RAB during the 2nd control period.
- 7.3 The Authority verified the depreciation rates used by AAI for the Initial RAB. The observations by the Authority on these depreciation rates has been discussed in detail in Chapter 9 of this Order.
- 7.4 The Authority considered the allocation of Initial RAB between aeronautical and non-aeronautical assets. The Authority's observations in this regard have been discussed in Chapter 6 of this Order

Amports

Sulatory Author

- 7.5 The Authority accepted AAI's submission for Initial RAB, and therefore, did not propose a change in the same.
- 7.6 Based on the material before it and the analysis, the Authority proposed to consider the initial regulatory asset base for the first control period as INR 96.45 crores in accordance with Table 13.
- 7.7 The Authority did not receive any comments from the stakeholders in this regard.

Decision No. 5: Regarding Initial Regulatory Asset Base

5.a. The Authority decides to consider the initial regulatory asset base for the first control period as INR 96.45 crores in accordance with Table 13.

121-

लातन आधिक

ROA

Lite Airpo

8. Capital Expenditure for the 1st control period

8.1 AAI in its submission proposed aeronautical capital expenditure of INR 1,002.78 crores for the 1st control period. This has been shown in the table below.

Asset category	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Total
Building – Terminal	0.50	-	87.21	935.39	4	1023.1
Runways, Aprons and Taxiways	-	Films) -	65.65	(1)	81.43	147.08
Electrical Installations	5.62	43.01	5 -	-	-	48.63
Other Buildings	31.99	S DE DE	- (20)	-	-	31.99
Plant & Machinery	25.70	CASSA	-	-	-	25.70
Road, Bridges & Culverts	5.43	1/ASSAR	- 10	-	-	5.43
CFT/Fire Fighting Equipment	92	4.03	-		-	4.03
Vehicles	1.21	1111-1	-	1	1	1.21
Furniture & Fixtures: Trolley	0,61	AN MAN	-		-	0.61
Other Office Equipment	0.14		-	-	-	0.14
Tools & Equipment	0.14		-	-	-	0.14
Office Furniture	0.10		Carlo -	-	-	0.10
Total	71.45	47.04	152.86	935.39	81.43	1288.17

Table 14: Capital expenditures proposed by AAI

8.2 In respect of these proposed items of capital expenditure, AAI submitted supporting documents like administrative approvals, letters of award (if available), and minutes of AUCC consultations.

Authority's Examination at Consultation Stage:

8.3 The Authority observed the following in respect of the some key proposed capital expenditures.

8.3.1 New terminal building (T3) – INR 935.39 crores:

The current capacity of the airport stands at 2.5 million passengers per annum. However, in FY 2017-18, the airport served 3.25 million passengers, exceeding its capacity by 30%. In order to cater to further raise in demand, AAI has proposed a new terminal building (T3), spanning across 78,800 square meters with a capacity of 4.25 million passengers per annum. The combined capacity of the airport would become almost 7 million passengers per annum, which would be sufficient to serve the demand for the next few years.

The Authority examined the submissions made by AAI in this regard. It was observed that the project is in initial stages, with only preliminary approvals in place. Some initial necessary processes like construction schedule, investment planning and phasing, etc. have not been carried out. Due to these reasons, the Authority is of the view that it may not

हिंसी कही महान

Bannie Regulatory Auto

der

CHEATE Airports

be possible to operationalize the new terminal building by FY 2021-22, as has been proposed by AAI. Therefore, the Authority proposed to defer its capitalization by one year, i.e., FY 2022-23. Subsequently, the proposed date of completion of these assets is 30th September, 2022. The Authority notes that should AAI fail to commission the same by 30th September 2022, in addition to the normal true-up with carrying cost, 1% additional penalty, by way of reduction of the said value from ARR, will be imposed on AAI.

The Authority observed that AAI proposed to consider the full expense as aeronautical, which was not found to be appropriate. The Authority understands that AAI endeavors to enhance its share of revenue from non-aeronautical sources and the Authority intends to encourage the same. Accordingly, it proposed to consider a terminal area ratio of 10% for allocation to non-aeronautical RAB.

On examination of the amount of investment required, AAI originally submitted an estimate of INR 650 crores for the building. However, no technical basis for this estimate were provided. On Authority's request, AAI submitted revised investment estimates for the new terminal building. As per the revised estimates, the new terminal building would cost INR 935.39 crores. The Authority considered a normative cost of INR 100,000 per sq. mt. at FY 2018 prices. The area of the proposed building was observed to be planned at 78,800 sq. mt. The normative cost was indexed to 5% inflation. The resultant amount was observed as INR 919.30 crores. The Authority proposed to seek a detailed final estimate of unit area cost with proposed date of completion for assessment of cost for inclusion in the RAB for final determination of tariff. AAI should go through the consultation protocol and present its plans for additions to RAB to the users and airlines as required in the Authority's Guidelines. 9 Ji || 14 S 100 100

Further, it was observed that AAI considered the full asset as part of the asset category 'Terminal Building'. However, the Authority proposed that only 65% of the investment be allocated to 'Terminal Building', and the remaining 35% be allocated to 'Electrical Installations'.

8.3.2 Parallel taxi track, rapid exit taxiway, and apron for parking of 8 Code C aircraft – INR 147 crores:

Due to operational constraints of landing, take-off and taxing at the runway, AAI has planned a parallel taxi track, a rapid exit taxiway, and a new apron for parking of 8 numbers of Code C aircraft at the airport. The Authority examined the rationale behind the proposed capital expenditure, along with its status. AAI submitted that in order to ensure smooth operations, this project is being undertaken in two phases, with phase 1 already awarded, and expected to be completed



BUINTITY STILLAT 1919

ic Regulatory Aut

Alleville /

Aiports

by FY 2020-21. The second phase would be completed by FY 2022-23. The Authority found the proposed amounts and the expected timelines to be appropriate.

8.3.3 New link building between T1 and T2 – INR 87.21 crores:

Currently, there are two terminals at the alrport. T2, the newer terminal operationalized in FY 2013-14, is used for domestic and international operations, whereas T1 is used as a support to T2. AAI submitted that there have been operational issues with these two segregated terminals. To address these operational issues, AAI proposed to construct a new building to link these two terminals, along with two additional passenger boarding bridges. The Authority examined the rationale, along with the estimated investment amount and the project's status. The Authority proposed to consider the expenditure as submitted by AAI.

The Authority observed that AAI proposed to consider the full expense as aeronautical, which was not found to be appropriate. The Authority proposed to consider a terminal area ratio of 90:10 for allocation to aeronautical and non-aeronautical assets.

सत्यमव जयत

Further, it was observed that AAI considered the full asset as part of the asset category 'Terminal Building'. However, the Authority proposed that only 65% of the investment be allocated to 'Terminal Building', and the remaining 35% be allocated to 'Electrical Installations'.

8.3.4 Solar power plant - INR 41.24 crores:

The generation of renewable power is a national agenda. Government of India has set a target of 175 GW of renewable power installed capacity by end of 2022. In line with this larger initiative as well as to benefit from potential savings on electricity bills, AAI submitted that it has undertaken construction of solar power plants in seven airports, with Bhubaneswar being one of them. This power plant will have an installed capacity of 4 MW. To assess the appropriateness of investment proposed, the Authority observed various Indian airports where solar power plant projects have been undertaken, considering the effects of inflation. These include Kolkata, Cochin, Delhi, Hyderabad, among others. The Authority is of the view that the investment proposed by AAI is appropriate, and therefore, the Authority did not propose a change in this regard.

Control and the State of the Capital additions:

Other than the above mentioned assets, AAI has proposed 37 other assets of smaller nature amounting to a total of INR 77.25 crores. The

Regulatory Authoniti

HIRda

's Aliparts
prominent ones among these include the following. For these assets, the Authority verified the administrative approvals and award letters, and discussed the rationale with AAI for proposing them.

- a) Construction of a fire station (category IX) and emergency medical center amounting to INR 17 crores in tariff year 1.
- b) Construction of an Electrical & Mechanical workshop amounting to INR 14.65 crores in tariff year 1.
- c) Establishment of an inline baggage system of INR 12.50 crores in tariff year 1.
- d) Two new passenger boarding bridges amounting to INR 8.26 crores in tariff year 1.
- 8.4 The Authority observed that a capital expenditure of INR 1.82 crores pertaining to 'Rotunda building & fixed finger for two passenger boarding bridges' was not included in the proposed capital expenditure. The Authority found this to be on account of a calculation error. The Authority observed the documents submitted by AAI in this regard, and considered the same to be appropriate. Therefore, the Authority proposed to include this capital expenditure in RAB additions in tariff year 1, i.e., FY 2018-19.

सत्यमव जयत

8.5 In accordance with above, the Authority revised the capital expenditure during the 1st control period as per the table below.

Asset category	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Total
Building – Terminal	0.50	-	51.02	-	547.20	598.72
Runways, Aprons and Taxiways	9	211	65.65		81.43	147.08
Electrical Installations	5.62	43.01	27.47	MF.	294.65	370.75
Other Buildings	31.99		m w m		-	31.99
Plant & Machinery	25.72	-	-	-	-	25.72
Road, Bridges & Culverts	5.43	-		-	-	5.43
CFT/Fire Fighting Equipment		4.03	2 A.S	-	-	4.03
Vehicles	1.21		- 10	- 13	-	1.21
Furniture & Fixtures: Trolley	0.61	-	-	-		0.61
Other Office Equipment	0.14	-		-	-	0.14
Tools & Equipment	0.14	4	-	*) 	-	0.14
Office Furniture	0.10	-	-	-	-	0.10
Total	71.47	47.04	144.14	-	923.28	1185.93

Fable 15: Capital Expenditures proposed by Authority – Consultation Paper

8.6 Based on the material before it and the analysis, the Authority had proposed to adopt the capital expenditures in accordance with Table 15. However, for all the capital expenditures mentioned above in this chapter, the Authority had proposed to seek from AAT a detailed action plan, current status and proposed date of completion for their inclusion in the RAB for final determination of tariff.

Page 37

Stakeholder comments

8.7 Airports Authority of India (AAI):

The total area of proposed new Link Building – INR 87.21 crores is 2500 sq. meters and 100 sq. meters will be allocated for non-aeronautical activities. The Authority is requested to consider the ratio of 96:4 instead of 90:10.

8.8 Federation of Indian Airlines (FIA):

Due process in AUCC meeting not followed. Discrepancies in the capital expenditures projected by AAI in the CP. Authority has accepted the proposed capital expenditure on basis of high level review: a) without firm financial closure b) without detailed technical evaluation & c) without key initial process like construction schedule, phasing etc.

FIA submits that the on the review of the minutes of the meeting of the Airport Users Consultative Committee (AUCC) held at BBI Airport on 3.07.2018 and 9.10.2018, it was observed that BBI Airport has not followed the due process of AUCC as prescribed under AERA Guidelines, in terms of the following:

- (i) BBI Airport has failed to share a Project Investment File (PIF) with the AUCC stakeholders. In terms of the AERA Guidelines, the final PIF submitted to the Authority, should clearly specify the process of consultation undertaken and highlight suggestion, areas of concerns and decision made by the AUCC. The PIF shall need to highlight the rational for the final position and the next steps in the project development;
- (ii) BBI Airport has failed to provide the following information in relation to the capital expenditure projects:
 - (a) Justification for the project, including if it will result in improvement in the quality of service at the airport;

(b) Options for development

(c) Airport traffic forecast and methodology thereof

(d) Relevant benchmark for project costs.

(e) Likely impact on Tariff including UDF/PSF, if any

(f) Proposed funding mechanism



Page 38

(iii)The AUCC conducted by BBI Airport failed to undertake the three stages prescribed under AERA Guidelines i.e. Needs Identification Stage, Options Development Stage and Detail project design stage.

FIA submits that in view of the above deficiencies, it is apparent that the AUCC meetings have not been conducted following the due process laid down under the AERA Guidelines. Accordingly, FIA submits that Authority should direct BBI Airport to re-convene the AUCC by following the due compliance of AERA Guidelines.

Without prejudice to the above, FIA submits the following table on the comparison of certain major capital expenditure project costs as seen from the minutes of meeting of AUCC and compared with costs of projects stated by AAI under the present CP.

		11 11 11 11 11 11	PERMI UTSPEL
fildsær of vank	Operatories 2nd meeting of AUCC minutes	Gase de per Mile Tario 12 Gase de per Mile Tario 12	Car Permarka
Expension of terminal T2 for integerated operation using PEB SITC of substation equipment. Of sets and associated works for link building T1, T2 and new ATC lower(new scheme)			Project cost of Fill 75 cores 5 innitianed in 14 AUCC field on 03.07.2016 which (25) has been subsequently increased to (10.62 cores. No explanation has been mentioned for such increase. 3
Intine army Taginge	12.5	12.5	
Control tower, technical tack, fire station and EBM vectoriop	64.14	ল্লেদৰ সব	D Capital expenditure for control tower & technic at block cannot be mapped in CP24
Parallel task track (PTT), rapid exit has way (RET) it appendix parking of 01 non , code C arcraft	147	147.06	-0.08)
Construction of hangers	10.74	Gould lost be nupped	n
Shaded walking and tensile caupy for lefticular larges in front of T-1	2	Could not be imped	2
Return de building & Roed Anger Including provision and installation of 12 nos-, passenger boarding bindge	10	10.00	0.00)
New domestic terminal building Ta	19	\$25.39	Area renotioned in AUCC PPT is 10,000 spin inscilluting basement. However, area and a mentioned in CP is 78,000 spint. No expanation has been given by AA for such bacresse.
Recarpting of numery Design, supply, indication is done and cosmologicity of most designed and and and and and and and and and an	Ø,		वि.प्रा.
Sub Total	842.48	1265.15	(423)
Other capital expenditure mentioned in OP		23.02	(23.42)
Total	147.48	242.17	(ma)

FIA submits that, from the above table it is observed that in respect of certain projects mentioned in the minutes of AUCC meetings and those claimed by AAI in the CP:

(i) There is an astronomical increase in the costs of project (for example New Terminal building (T3) i.e. from INR 450 cr. To INR 935.39 cr., expansion of Terminal (T2) from INR 62 cr. to INR 87.21 cr.). AAI has not explained as to how the costs shown in the AUCC in October, 2018 has increased manifolds during the consultation stage under the CP; and

(ii) Certain projects were projected in the AUCC, however the same have not been dealt under the CP (for example Construction of hangars, re-carpeting of runway etc.). FIA submits that the status

Order No. 46/2018-19

Aug.

(कर्म

Sumary andra

Nic Regulatory AN

R HEALE

Airpo

of such projects and the manner in which the same will be capitalized under RAB, present or next control period is not known.

FIA would like to submit that the very purpose of conducting an AUCC is to ensure transparency and fairness in the process of executing works for major capital expenditure at an airport. Keeping in view the significant deviation in the projection and submissions of AAI in the AUCC and the CP, it may be stated that AAI has not conducted the AUCC at BBI Airport in an efficient, complete, fair and transparent manner.

In view of the above, FIA reserves its rights to comment on the capital expenditure project which need to be duly scrutinized by the Authority, pursuant to an AUCC which needs to be re-convened by AAI following the due process under AERA Guidelines. Without prejudice to the above, FIA submits its view on the capital expenditure projects considered by the Authority under the CP as below:

(i) New terminal Building of INR 935.39 crores - Deferment of capitalisation to next control period

FIA submits that as highlighted by AAI in Para 7.3.1, a new terminal building (T3) spanning across 78,800 square metres has been proposed with an estimated expenditure of INR 935.39 crores. New terminal building is proposed to be capitalised during FY22 by AAI.

FIA further submits that the Authority has tried to estimate the cost of terminal building by considering normative cost of INR 1,00,000 per sq. mt. at FY18 prices which is further indexed to 5% inflation. However, as per Normative Order No. 07/2016-17 "In the matter of normative approach to building blocks in economic regulation of major airports – capital costs reg." dated 13.06.2016, the ceiling cost per sq. metre for terminal building is INR 65,000. FIA submits that no basis has been provided by Authority to calculate the normative cost of INR 1,00,000 per sq. mt. Also, based on Authority's calculation, projected cost of terminal building is INR 919.3 crores. But no consideration to Authority's own calculation has been given while calculating average RAB.

Hence, per Proposal 4, new terminal building has been capitalised considering the total cost of INR 935.39 crores (as projected by AAI). Authority has proposed to split the cost of new terminal building between terminal building and electrical installation in the ratio of 65:35. No basis or benchmarking has been mentioned by Authority to split the total capex under two heads. FIA would like to highlight that this split cannot be on a high level basis, as it will impact depreciation as the useful life of electrical installation (10 years) is different from other assets like building (30/60 years), Plant & machinery (15 years).

rder No. 46/2018-19

Coxol

Bannutri allitis Aria

Reader and Antonio Provide Regulatory

Per Para 7.3.1, Authority has examined "the project is in initial stages, with only preliminary approvals in place. Some initial processes like construction schedule, investment planning and phasing etc. have not been carried out." Therefore, Authority has proposed to defer the capitalisation to FY23.

Hence, it is very clear that basic planning & financial closure for the said expansion has not been initiated. Also, per Para 10.3, Authority understands the fact " it may not be reasonable to expect AAI to contract large amounts of debt over a short period of time" and there are losses in previous years & in first few years of control period. Accordingly, Authority has assumed that project can be delayed by one year i.e. FY23, however, no basis has been mentioned in the CP for this assumption.

It is evident that Authority has considered AAI proposal without conducting a technical evaluation. As the project is in initial stages, FIA cannot comment upon the numbers computed by Authority in absence of detailed breakup. It is submitted to Authority to conduct detailed technical evaluation, although we have requested for deferment of capex.

It is submitted that lack of basic planning, financial closure for new terminal building has not been achieved yet for capex to be incurred in first control period, this can lead to deferment of capex to subsequent control period.

Hence it is submitted that the Authority to consider the proposed capitalisation of new terminal building in next control period and true up the expenditure/capitalisation based on actuals in second control period.

(ii) Runways, Aprons and Taxiways

FIA submits that AAI has proposed to construct a new apron for parking of 8 numbers of Code C aircraft. Phase 1 of the project has already been awarded and will be completed by FY21 and phase 2 will be completed by FY23.

No area of aprons has been mentioned in the CP and the Authority has accepted the cost as projected by AAI. No benchmarking with similar airports/ normative order has been conducted by Authority to check the reasonableness of the proposed capital expenditure.

It is submitted to Authority to mention the area and conduct benchmarking study with comparable airports and normative order. In



er No. 46/2018-19

the absence of key information, FIA cannot comment on proposed capital expenditure on aprons proposed by Authority.

(iii) Other assets

FIA submits that the Authority has not mentioned the detailed breakup of other assets of INR 77.25 crores. Also, the split of these other assets under various categories mentioned in table 13 of the CP has not been provided. These assets have been considered 100% aeronautical, for which no basis has been given by Authority. Also, the categorisation for these assets has not been provided under the CP & no allocation has been proposed by Authority into aeronautical & nonaeronautical assets.

It is submitted to Authority to give a detailed breakup of each category of additions along with year of capitalisation & the same shall be considered for the purpose of calculation of depreciation.

8.9 State Government of Odisha:

The suggestions on behalf of State Government in the matter of determination of aeronautical tariff in respect of Biju Patnaik International Airport, Bhubaneswar are as follows:

1. E-Visa facility

2. Embarkation point for Haj Pilgrims

3. Additional X-Ray baggage system

228

4. Common men tea stall with minimum cost

31

- 5. More international flights / domestic flight may be started
- 6. To enhance the car parking problem

AAI's reply to stakeholder comments

8.10 AAI's reply to comments by FIA:

- 8.10.1 Regarding increase in cost estimates of the new terminal building, the initial costs were based on the estimates and revised later based on operational requirements.
- 8.10.2 As the costs of project (Terminal Building-T3) have been revised, AUCC would be re-convened as per Authority's guidelines.

8.11 AAI's reply to comments by State Government of Odisha:

It is noted for further compliance.



Authority's examination of stakeholders comments and AAI's submission to stakeholders comments

8.12 Authority's examination of comments by AAI:

The Authority has noted AAI's request to consider a terminal area ratio of 96:4 instead of 90:10 proposed by the Authority. The Authority has provided the rationale for allocating the assets pertaining to proposed link building into aeronautical and non-aeronautical. While computing such a ratio, the Authority needs to consider an efficient use of space at terminal building, more specifically for use in non-aeronautical activities. The terminal area ratio of the existing terminal building is 92.5:7.5. For a new building, with more modern facilities, a ratio that is more than that of the existing terminal building will incentivise an even more inefficient use of space for non-aeronautical activities. Therefore, the Authority decides to consider the ratio of 90:10 for the proposed link building.

8.13 Authority's examination of comments by FIA:

8.13.1 The Authority has carefully examined FIA's comments regarding the AUCC process. As per the suggestions put forth by FIA, the Authority directed AAI to re-convene the AUCC meeting. In response, AAI conducted this meeting, the details of which were furnished to the Authority. These have been discussed below.

Date of meeting: 17th January, 2019

Venue: Bhubaneswar Airport

Attendants: 16 AUCC members, 15 AAI officials, two members from CISF and one observer from the Authority.

The Authority observed that no comments were made in the AUCC that would require a change in tariff determination in the reconvened AUCC meeting.

8.13.2 The Authority considered a ratio of 65:35 for allocation of new terminal building and new link building between terminal building category and electrical installations category. FIA has commented that this ratio is without any basis or benchmarking.

In this regard, the Authority would like to state the analysis it underwent to arrive at this ratio. The Authority first consulted AAI to provide its own estimate of this ratio. AAI provided the ratio of 65:35.

To verify the appropriateness of the same, the Authority performed the following checks:



- Basis: The Authority observed the ratio of terminal building and electrical installations at Bhubaneswar Airport on an overall basis. These ratios were observed as follows:
 - o FY 2015-16: 61:39
 - o FY 2016-17: 61:39
 - o FY 2017-18: 64:36
 - o FY 2018-19: 67:33 (estimates)
 - o FY 2019-20: 65:35 (estimates)

Beyond FY 2019-20, there were additions proposed specific to electrical installations, and hence the ratio was not comparable. An average of these 5 years suggested a ratio of 64:36. The Authority found this to match very closely with the ratio proposed by AAI of 65:35.

Benchmarking:

While the Authority considered the above basis to be sufficient, nevertheless, a separate benchmarking exercise was carried out to check with other airports. Therefore, the Authority observed such ratios at other AAI airports, specifically those for which the Authority has in recent past issued tariff orders. These airports were Kolkata, Jaipur and Trivandrum. Following were the findings:

Airport	Terminal Building	Electrical Installation	Ratio	Reference
Kolkata	1,891	C ₆₅₉	74:26	Order No. 23, 2017-18; Page 33, Table 23
Jaipur	103	57	65:35	Order No. 10, 2017-18; Page 29, Table 23
Trivandrum	A 1 91	-144	57:43	Order No. 03, 2017-18; Page 37, Table 23
		Average Ratio	65:35	

 Table 16: Ratio of terminal building and electrical installations at other

 AAI airports (Figures in INR crores)

As can be seen from the table above, the average of these three airports, 65:35, matched with the ratio suggested by AAI.

Due to the above two reasons, the Authority agreed for the ratio of 65:35 and therefore, the Authority decides to keep this ratio.

Regarding the normative approach towards determination of cost of terminal building, the Authority had considered a normative cost of INR 100,000 per sq. meters instead of INR 65,000 as per Order No. 2017-17. The Authority has given clarification regarding this revised

order No. 46/2018-19

8.13.3

Regulatory Autho

ANT

cost in previous tariff orders pertaining to other airports such as Guwahati, Lucknow. The Authority undertook studies for a few major airports for determining the reasonableness of the capital expenditures for their respective terminal buildings. As per these studies, the cost worked out to be in the range of 0.95 to 1.25 lakhs per sq. meter. Accordingly the Authority decides to adopt INR 100,000 per sq. meter for terminal buildings of this design and specifications. This cost is subject to review during the determination of tariff for the 2nd control period.

On the basis of this revision, the cost of terminal building considered by the Authority is INR 788 crores.

- 8.13.4 FIA has requested to defer the capitalization of the terminal building towards the 2nd control period. However, the Authority has already stated reasons as to why deferment by one year is sufficient. Moreover, the Authority has proposed a penalty of 1% during true-up for the 2nd control period, in case of delay in operationalization of the new terminal building beyond the proposed date of completion.
- The Authority carefully examined the comments by FIA regarding the 8.13.5 capital expenditure proposed for aprons and taxiways. In this regard, the Authority has now inspected the area for various facilities that are part of this proposed package. As per information received from AAI, total area under Phase 1 (FY 2021) is 116,160 sq. mt. For Phase 2 (FY 2023), the area is 73,840. Considering a normative cost of INR 4,700 as on 1st April, 2016 and annual indexation of 5%, the normative cost comes out to be INR 118.51 crores. The normative cost excludes earth work and drainage work. The expected cost of these works, as per information received from AAI, was INR 11.83 crores and INR 8.89 crores. Adding these to the normative cost, the total cost of the proposed capital expenditure works out to be INR 139.23 crores. Because this is lower than INR 147 crores as proposed by AAI, the Authority decides to consider the normative cost of INR 139.23 crores for these assets.

8.13.6 Other assets:

The Authority, in the consultation paper, had discussed that AAI had proposed 37 other assets of smaller nature amounting to a total of INR 77.25 crores. For these assets, the Authority verified the administrative approvals and award letters, and discussed the rationale with AAI for proposing them. The Authority also provided a list and description of the most prominent of these assets. However, in response to the comment received from FIA, the Authority is providing a complete list of these other assets, as provided to It by AAI as part of MYTP. This list of assets (in descending value) is given in the table below.



Asset category	Constituents	Year 1	Year 2	Total
Other Buildings	Fire station, emergency medical centre, E&M workshop	32.0	-	32.0
Plant & Machinery	Baggage handling system, 2 numbers PBBs, Rubber removal machine, BDDS (12 numbers), Fire alarm	25.7	-	25.7
Electrical Installations	Replacement of lights at terminal building, replacement of cables, apron flight lights, airfield ground lighting system, LED wall lights, exhaust fans	5.6	1.8	7.4
Road, Bridges & Culverts	Box culvert, widening and strengthening of perimeter road	5.4	-	5.4
CFT/Fire Fighting Equipment	ACFT	0.0	4.0	4.0
Vehicles	Grass collecting machine, ambulance	1.2	-	1.2
Furniture & Fixtures: Trolley	600 Trolleys	0.6		0.6
Building - Terminal	External signage, reading platform	0.5	-	0.5
Other Office Equipment	Explosive trace detector (2 numbers)	0.1	-	0.1
Tools & Equipment	Bird scaring device, sanitary napkin vending machines (6 numbers)	0.1	-	0.1
Office Furniture	Decorative furniture	. 0.1		0.1
	Grand Total सत्यमव जयत	71.4	5.8	77.2

Table 17: Other capital expenditure (Figures in INR crores)

Further, the Authority evaluated the appropriate allocation of these assets between aeronautical and non-aeronautical. A major portion of these assets were found to be purely aeronautical. There were a few assets which may require an allocation. However, considering the immaterial nature of these assets, any allocation would have a negligible impact of ARR. Therefore, the Authority has decided to consider these as aeronautical.

8.14 Authority's examination of comments by State Government of Odisha:

The Authority has noted the comments made by State Government of Odisha on capital expenditure at Bhubaneswar airport. The Authority does not have any further comments to provide.

8.15 Authority's examination post consultation stage:



Apart from the suggestions put forth by the stakeholders, the Authority re-evaluated the cost of proposed solar power plant. The Authority benchmarked the costs of solar power plants installed at various airports in India. From this exercise, the Authority observed that the cost works out to be in the range of INR 6 to 7 crores per MW capacity. AAI has proposed a capacity of 4 MW. Therefore, the cost should range from INR 24-28 crores. The Authority asked for revised cost estimates from AAI. According to the response received from AAI, the contract

Order No. 46/2018-19

has now been awarded at INR 31.14 crores. This was found to be considerably less than the amount initially proposed by AAI, i.e. INR 41 crores. Therefore, the Authority proposes to revise the cost estimates of the proposed power plant to INR 31.14 crores. Further, the Authority decides to allocate the cost among aeronautical and nonaeronautical in the ratio of 99:1.

Based on all the above changes, the following table presents revised schedule of capital expenditure decided by the Authority for the 1st control period.

Asset category	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Total
Building - Terminal	0.50		51.02	-	460.98	512.50
Runways, Aprons and Taxiways	-[]	TYPETINE	62.15	-	77.09	139.23
Electrical Installations-Non Solar	5.62	1.77	27.47	-	248.22	283.08
Electrical Installations- Solar	Et.	31.14	5			
Other Buildings	31.99		<u> </u>	-	-	31.99
Plant & Machinery	25.72		y -	-	-	25.72
Road, Bridges & Culverts	5.43	Koopinismin 22	-	-		5.43
CFT/Fire Fighting Equipment	सत	यमेव 4,03	- 1	-	-	4.03
Vehicles	1.21	-	-	-	-	1.21
Furniture & Fixtures: Trolley	0.61	-	-	-	-	0.61
Other Office Equipment	0.14	-	-	-		0.14
Tools & Equipment	0.14	-	-	· -	(=)	0.14
Office Furniture	0.1	e =	-	-	-	0.11
Total	71.47	36.94	140.64		786.29	1004.20

Table 18: Capital expenditure for the first control period as per Authority - Final (in INR crores)

Decision No. 6: Regarding capital expenditure

6.a. The Authority decides to adopt the capital expenditures in accordance with Table 18.



9. Depreciation

9.1 AAI follows its own set of rates of depreciation for different asset classes, which are approved by its Board. While submitting the Multi-Year Tariff proposal for the first control period, AAI has taken cognizance of the rates of depreciation approved by the Authority in previous tariff orders. Accordingly, AAI proposed three different sets of rates. These are based on three different periods – up to FY 2015-16, from 01/04/16 to 31/03/18, and beyond 01/04/18.

autor and

- 9.2 In the first period, i.e., up to FY 2015-16, the airport was not under the definition of a Major Airport as per Section 2(i) of Airports Economic Regulatory Authority of India Act. Therefore, the depreciation rates for this period has been proposed by AAI to be as per AAI's accounting policy. For the second period, i.e., from 01/04/16 to 31/03/18, the airport was dovered under the definition of the Major Airport. Therefore, the depreciation rates for this period has been proposed by AAI to be as per the Authority's examination. For the 3rd period, i.e., beyond 01/04/18, the depreciation rates has been proposed by AAI to be as per the Authority's order No. 35/2017-18 titled "In the matter of Determination of Useful life of Airport Assets", which defines the normative useful lives for various airport assets.
 - 9.3 Further, depreciation has been computed separately on opening block of assets and on proposed additions.
- 9.4 The depreciation rates considered by AAI have been summarized in the table below.

11	Up to FY	Between FY 201	Bouond	
Asset category	2016	For opening block of assets	For proposed additions	Beyond FY 2018
Freehold Land	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Runways, Aprons and Taxiways	13.00%	3.33%	3.33%	3.33%
Road, Bridges & Culverts	13.00%	3.33%	3.33%	10.00%
Building – Terminal	8.00%	3.33%	3.33%	3.33%
Building – Residential	5.00%	3.33%	3.33%	3.33%
Boundary Wall – Operational	8.00%	3.33%	3.33%	10.00%
Boundary Wall – Residential	5.00%	3.33%	3.33%	10.00%
Other Buildings	8.00%	3.33%	3.33%	3.33%
Computer - End user	20.00%	16.67%	16.67%	33.33%
Computer - Servers and networks	20.00%	16.67%	16.67%	16.67%
Intangible Assets – Software	20.00%	20.00%	20.00%	20.00%
Plant & Machinery	11.00%	6.67%	6.67%	6.67%

Nic Regulatory Autho

Table 19: Depreciation rates proposed by AAI

Order No. 46/2018-19

	Up to EV	Between FY 2010	5 and FY 2018	Royand	
Asset category	Up to FY 2016	For opening block of assets	For proposed additions	Beyond FY 2018	
Tools & Equipment	20.00%	6.67%	6.67%	6.67%	
Office Furniture	20.00%	10.00%	10.00%	14.29%	
Furniture & Fixtures: Other Than Trolley	20.00%	10.00%	10.00%	14.29%	
Furniture & Fixtures: Trolley	20.00%	6.67%	10.00%	33.33%	
Vehicles	14.00%	12.50%	12.50%	12.50%	
Electrical Installations	11.00%	6.67%	10.00%	10.00%	
Other Office Equipment	18.00%	20:00%	20.00%	20.00%	
X Ray Baggage System	11.00%	6.67%	6.67%	6.67%	
CFT/Fire Fighting Equipment	13.00%	6.67%	6.67%	6.67%	

The depreciation proposed by AAI for the 1st control period has been 9.5 presented in the table below.

Destiguiare	Pre control regulatory period		regulatory period				control perio	bd	
Particulars	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019 0	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023		
Depreciation	8.12	8.63	13.91	17.54	21.92	39.94	54.60		

Table 2	20:	Deprec	ation	propo	sed	by	AAI	
10010 0		at the particular the	A CONTRACTOR	102 14.26	and the second	~/	1 17 14	_

Authority's Examination at Consultation Stage:

PIRatis

C Regulatory N

- 9.6 The Authority noted the submission of three different rates of depreciation by AAI for different periods under consideration and duly examined these for consideration towards determination of aeronautical tariff.
- 9.7 For period up to FY 2016, the BBI Airport did not come under the regulatory ambit of the Authority. Therefore, the Authority determined that the depreciation rates used by AAI according to its internal accounting policies are allowed to be followed in order to compute the net block of opening RAB. The Authority observed that the depreciation rates used by AAI up to FY 2016 were in line with its accounting policies, and hence the Authority did not propose any change in these.
- 9.8 As far as the period between 01/04/2016 and 31/03/2018 is considered, the Authority has had reference to its previous Tariff Orders for various AAI airports (Order No. 23/2017-18 dated 27/11/2017 for Kolkata airport, Order No. 10/2017-18 dated REAL CONTRACTOR PARTY 04/08/2017 for Jaipur airport, and Order No. 03/2017-18 dated 02/06/2017 for Trivandrum Airport). In these Tariff Orders, the Authority considered the depreciation rates as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013 for the purposes of tariff determination. ontinuing with this approach, the Authority proposed to consider er No. 46/2018-19 Page 49

these rates of depreciation for the period between 01/04/2016 and 31/03/2018 for the purposes of tariff determination of BBI Airport as well.

9.9 Upon examination of rates of depreciation proposed by AAI for this period, the Authority observed that except in case of two asset categories, the rates proposed by AAI were in line with the above mentioned previous tariff orders. These two asset categories, and the rates used for them are presented in the table below.

Asset category	Rate as per Authority's previous orders for AAI airports	Rate used by AAI
Furniture and fixtures – trolley	10%	6.67%
Electrical installations	10%	6.67%

- 9.10 Therefore, the Authority proposed to change the depreciation rates in these two asset categories, from 6.67% to 10%.
- 9.11 For the period from 01/04/2018 onwards, the Authority has had reference to its study, which was commissioned to determine appropriate depreciation rates for regulation of airports in line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
- 9.12 As a result of this study, the Authority, vide its Order No. 35/2017-18 titled "In the matter of Determination of Useful life of Airport Assets", spelled out the normative depreciation rates which need to be used for computation of Aggregate Revenue Requirement.
- 9.13 These normative depreciation rates of airport assets as per the above mentioned Order, relevant to Bhubaneswar Airport, have been presented in the table below.

Table 22: Depreciation rates as per Authority's Orde Asset category	Beyond FY 2018
Freehold Land	0.00%
Runways, Aprons and Taxiways	3.33%
Road, Bridges & Culverts	10.00%
Building – Terminal	3.33%
Building – Residential	3.33%
Boundary Wall – Operational	10.00%
Boundary Wall – Residential	10.00%
Other Buildings	3.33%
Computer - End user	33.33%
Computer - Servers and networks	16.67%
Intangible Assets – Software	20.00%
Plant & Machinery	6.67%
Order No. 46/2018-19	Page 50

Regulatory Auth

Asset category	Beyond FY 2018	
Tools & Equipment	6.67%	
Office Furniture	14.29%	
Furniture & Fixtures: Other Than Trolley	14.29%	
Furniture & Fixtures: Trolley	33.33%	
Vehicles	12.50%	
Electrical Installations	10.00%	
Other Office Equipment	20.00%	
X Ray Baggage System	6.67%	
CFT/Fire Fighting Equipment	6.67%	

- 9.14 The Authority observed that the depreciation rates used by AAI for the period beyond 01/04/2018 are in line with the rates as per the above mentioned Order. Therefore, the Authority did not propose any change in these.
- 9.15 Combining its observations across the three periods, the Authority proposed the depreciation rates to be considered for tariff determination in respect of BBI Airport as per the following table.

Asset category	Up to FY 2016	Between FY 2016 and FY 2018	Beyond FY 2018
Freehold Land	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Runways, Aprons and Taxiways	13.00%	3.33%	3.33%
Road, Bridges & Culverts	13.00%	3.33%	10.00%
Building – Terminal	8.00%	3.33%	3.33%
Building – Residential	5.00%	3.33%	3.33%
Boundary Wall – Operational	8.00%	3.33%	10.00%
Boundary Wall – Residential	5.00%	3.33%	10.00%
Other Buildings	8.00%	3.33%	3.33%
Computer - End user	20.00%	16.67%	33.33%
Computer - Servers and networks	20.00%	16.67%	16.67%
Intangible Assets – Software 🥒 🔪 🜆	20.00%	20.00%	20.00%
Plant & Machinery	11.00%	6.67%	6.67%
Tools & Equipment	20.00%	6.67%	6.67%
Office Furniture	20.00%	10.00%	14.29%
Furniture & Fixtures: Other Than Trolley	20.00%	10.00%	14.29%
Furniture & Fixtures: Trolley	20.00%	10.00%	33.33%
Vehicles	14.00%	12.50%	12.50%
Electrical Installations	11.00%	10.00%	10.00%
Other Office Equipment	18.00%	20.00%	20.00%
X Ray Baggage System	11.00%	6.67%	6.67%
CFT/Fire Fighting Equipment	13.00%	6.67%	6.67%

reciation rates proposed by the Authority - Consultation Pa

Order No. 46/2018-19

· Airports Ec Thic Regulatory Author

- 9.16 The Authority further observed that in case of two asset categories, the depreciation computed by AAI for FY 2022 and FY 2023 exceeded the opening net block plus additions. The Authority proposed to correct this error.
- 9.17 On account of changes in depreciation rates, and the changes in proposed capital expenditure, the Authority proposed the following depreciation to be considered for tariff determination in respect of BBI Airport during the 1st control period.

Particulars	Pre co regulator	6	SALE Manual	Control period						
Particulars	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023			
Depreciation	9.49	9.87	13.85	17.47	22.67	25.26	48.49			

COUNTER.

- 9.18 Based on the material before it and the analysis, the Authority had proposed the following:
 - 9.18.1 To adopt depreciation rates as per Table 23 for the 1st control period.
 - 9.18.2 To consider depreciation amounts as per Table 24 for the 1st control period.

Stakeholder comments

9.19 Federation of Indian Airlines (FIA):

Useful life of 30 years considered for terminal building and aprons accepted by Authority is a conservative view. Considering terminal building & aprons have useful life up to 60 & 99 years respectively in international airports, 60 years useful life for terminal buildings and aprons ought to be considered by Authority.

FIA submits that on an overall basis, average useful life ranging between 10-15 years during control period accepted by the Authority, is lower considering the international airports & new additions.

FIA's review of RAB additions & its allocation indicated that shorter useful lives, incorrect capitalization have been broadly considered by Authority. Further, a detailed component level breakup has not been provided by Authority & accordingly the same has been considered for the purpose of depreciation. Broad heads of capitalization has been provided. Hence, we understand that depreciation has also been computed as per depreciation order on basis of useful life of these asset heads rather than useful life of these components. This might lead to accelerated depreciation. For instance, solar power plant has been classified under electrical installation rather than component level.

der No. 46/2018-19

Bannung-amera

Regulatory Au

Air.

Depreciation on new terminal building:

FIA submits that as per Para 8.12 of the CP, depreciation from FY18 onwards has been computed as per rates prescribed under the Authority's Order No. 35/ 2017-18 "In the matter of Determination of Useful life of Airport Assets" dated 12 January 2018. Further, half yearly rates of depreciation have been considered for additions to RAB in the first year of capitalization. For terminal building and other buildings, while Order No. 35 states useful life as 30 or 60, the useful life considered by AAI and accepted by Authority in the CP is 30 years. For reference FIA would like to highlight, life of buildings as 30 years, considered by Authority is not in accordance with Part C of Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013, which provides useful life of buildings having Reinforced Concrete Cement (RCC) frame structure to be 60 years. It is submitted that there is no mention with respect to the structure of buildings, although it is highly unlikely that the terminal buildings are not built with RCC technology.

Hence, Authority has taken a conservative view with respect to useful life of terminal and other buildings. Accordingly FIA submits that, in the interest of consumers, the Authority should consider useful life of buildings as 60 years instead of taking a conservative view.

신스럽다 가격히

Further, our review of useful life of assets at various international airports like London Heathrow, Sydney airport and Amsterdam airport indicated that terminal building have useful life of as long as 60 years and aprons have it as long as 99 years. Also, the useful life of terminal building for Kannur & Cochin airports have been considered 60 years by Authority. However as per the present CP, average life of airport assets additions between FY18 to FY23, which primarily comprises Terminal & other buildings and Aprons, is ranging between 10-15 years. FIA accordingly submits that, in the interest of consumers, Authority could consider useful life of buildings as 60 years.

As submitted under RAB section, to defer the capitalization of new terminal building of INR 841.85 crores (90% of INR 935.39 crores) to control period in absence of key necessary processes next (construction schedule, investment planning and phasing etc.) performed till date. It is submitted to Authority to not to consider new terminal building for the purpose of capitalization and accordingly, revise depreciation calculation for FY23.

Depreciation on correct allocation ratio:

Allocation of assets: The Authority has given a tentative allocation of 177 311018 1919 1919 177 311018 1919 177 311018 1919 RAB additions for first control period. As submitted under RAB of Ration allocation section, "to consider the asset allocation ratio of 80%:20% in the 1st control period", it is submitted that Authority to re-compute र मारलीय the depreciation basis the allocation of RAB assets in the ratio of 80:20 for this control period. Also, the allocation of initial RAB assets under : Airpor Ndia Ndia deronautical and non-aeronautical assets has been done on incorrect 1 Stand Regulatory Order No. 46/2018-19

ratios. Hence, FIA submits that the Authority should revise the depreciation on initial RAB based on revised/corrected ratios.

Depreciation on solar power plant:

FIA noted that solar power plant of INR 41.24 crores has been considered as electrical installation by virtue of which its useful life has been considered as 10 years. However, FIA submits that as per CERC (Terms and Conditions for Tariff determination from Renewable Energy Sources) Regulations, 2017, the useful life of solar power plants is 25 years whereas the Authority has considered the life of such assets as 10 years under electrical installation. Hence, FIA submits to revise the depreciation on solar plant considering the life of solar power plant as 25 years instead of 10 years.

FIA further submits that Authority should provide detailed calculations for depreciation charged on opening RAB & additions made therein, rather than just giving a consolidated number. In the absence of detailed calculations for depreciation, FIA cannot comment on the depreciation considered for tariff determination.

AAI's reply to stakeholder comments

सत्यमद जस्रत

- 9.20 Regarding further deferment in capitalization of new terminal building: Work of construction of New Terminal Building will be awarded in July 2019 with 3 year completion period. (P.D.C: July 2022). The Authority is requested to consider the same in the control period.
- 9.21 Regarding terminal area ratio: The actual usage/space allocation ratio of Aero/Non aero of Terminal Buildings T1 and T2 are as under:

162

18 V

T1: 92.20(Aero):7.80(Non-Aero)

T2: 93.02(Aero):6,98(Non Aero)

Even the new proposed Link Building would have ratio of 94(Aero):6(Non-Aero).

The Authority is requested to consider the ratio 95:5 as Aero/Non-Aero as proposed by AAI in MYTP.

Authority's examination of stakeholders comments and AAI's submission to stakeholders comments

9.22 Authority's examination of comments by FIA:



The Authority has carefully examined the comments received from FIA regarding depreciation. The Authority understands that FIA has two suggestions regarding useful life of assets:

- Terminal building 60 years instead of 30 years, and
- Solar power plant 25 years instead of 10 years
- 9.22.1 **Regarding the terminal building,** the Authority has followed its Order No. 35 / 2017-18 dated 12th January, 2018. Following are the relevant extracts from this Order:

COULCE.

- As per Annexure I Useful life of assets, the Authority decided to consider useful life of terminal building as either 30 years or 60 years. The choice between 30 years and 60 years should be evaluated by the airport operator (AAI). AAI has evaluated the useful life of terminal building at Bhubaneswar Airport as 30 years.
- As part of the consultation proceedings before the Order was made effective, the Authority invited suggestions from various stakeholders. Various airport operators submitted their suggestions regarding useful life of terminal buildings. These are reproduced below.
 - BIAL commented, "We would like to draw reference to Para 2.2.5 of Consultation Paper wherein Part-C Building and Roads, Companies Act 2013 rates for different types of buildings has been specified as RCC frame structure/ Other than RCC frame structure/ factory buildings etc. In the final rates proposed under Annexure-5, the useful lives have been specified as 30/60 years. As the Terminal Building, even though RCC frame structure, because of 24* 7 usage for 365 days and due to high wear and tear, we request the Authorities to consider the Terminal Buildings to be equated to Factory Building with life of 30 years in line with Companies Act 2013."
 - GHIAL commented, "In the above-mentioned consultation paper, Authority has proposed useful life of 60 years for the building with RCC Frame Structure. However, keeping in mind the airport operations which is 24X7 365 days in a year, building has got higher wear and tear and hence the said structure needs to be treated as factory building and should be depredated as per the rate prescribed by Companies Act for factory building. Accordingly we suggest that the useful life of asset with respect to building with RCC structure should be lower of 30 years or the residual period of initial concession term."



- HIAL commented, "In the abovementioned consultation paper Authority has proposed useful life of 60 years for the building with RCC Frame Structure. However, keeping in mind the airport operations which is 24X7 365 days in a year, building has got higher wear and tear and hence the said structure needs to be treated as factory building and should be depredated as per the rate prescribed by Companies Act for factory building. Accordingly we suggest that the useful life of asset with respect to building with RCC structure should be lower of **30** years or the residual period of initial concession term.
- The Authority, at that time, had carefully evaluated these comments. In all these comments, the Authority noted that because of 24 hour operations, the airport operator felt that terminal buildings face faster wear and tear as compared to other buildings, despite the RCC Frame structure. It is also noted that most of the new Terminal Buildings are steel and glass structures, and, they have to be rebuilt due to wear & tear, and, capacity expansion, within 30 years. In response to these comments, the Authority decided to keep the provision unchanged. Thereby, the airport operator was given the option to evaluate the useful life of the terminal building as either 30 years or 60 years. Further, considering the fact that Bhubaneswar airport is 24 hours operational, and is being operated beyond its capacity, the Authority does not see a need to re-evaluate the useful life of the building.

Therefore, the Authority decides to keep the useful life of the terminal building at Bhubaneswar Airport unchanged at 30 years.

9.22.2 **Regarding the solar power plant,** the Authority had classified the asset as electrical installations, thereby attracting a depreciation rate of 10%, i.e., a useful life of 10 years. FIA has submitted that as per CERC (Terms and Conditions for Tariff determination from Renewable Energy Sources) Regulations, 2017, the useful life of solar power plants is 25 years. The Authority acknowledges that CERC Regulations are an appropriate source for determination of useful life of solar power plant. Therefore, the Authority decides to change the useful life from 10 years to 25 years.

On the basis of above change in depreciation rate, the Authority decides to adopt the depreciation rates as per the table below.



Asset category	Up to FY 2016	Between FY 2016 and FY 2018	Beyond FY 2018
Freehold Land	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Runways, Aprons and Taxiways	13.00%	3.33%	3.33%
Road, Bridges & Culverts	13.00%	3.33%	10.00%
Building – Terminal	8.00%	3.33%	3.33%
Building – Residential	5.00%	3.33%	3.33%
Boundary Wall – Operational	8.00%	3.33%	10.00%
Boundary Wall – Residential	5,00%	3.33%	10.00%
Other Buildings	8,00%	3.33%	3.33%
Computer - End user	20.00%	16.67%	33.33%
Computer - Servers and networks	20.00%	16.67%	16.67%
Intangible Assets – Software	20.00%	20.00%	20.00%
Plant & Machinery	11.00%	6.67%	6.67%
Tools & Equipment	20.00%	6.67%	6.67%
Office Furniture	20,00%	10.00%	14.29%
Furniture & Fixtures: Other Than Trolley	20.00%	10.00%	14.29%
Furniture & Fixtures: Trolley	20.00%	10.00%	33.33%
Vehicles	14.00%	12.50%	12.50%
Electrical Installations	11,00%	10.00%	10.00%
Electrical Installations: Solar power plant	NA	NA	4.00%
Other Office Equipment	18.00%	20.00%	20.00%
X Ray Baggage System	11.00%	6.67%	6.67%
CFT/Fire Fighting Equipment	13.00%	6.67%	6.67%

Table 25: Depreciation rates as per Authority - Final

The depreciation expense as per revised rates is presented in the table below.

Particulars	Pre co regulator		Control period					
	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019	EY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023	
Depreciation	9.49	9.87	13.85	16.03	19.73	22.26	41.67	

Decision No. 7: Regarding depreciation

- 7.a. The Authority decides to adopt depreciation rates as per Table 25 for the 1^{st} control period.
- 7.b. The Authority decides the depreciation amounts as per Table 26 for the 1st control period.



10. Regulatory Asset Base for the 1st control period

10.1 For determination of aeronautical tariff for the 1st control period for BBI Airport, AAI submitted RAB as follows:

S.	Particulars	Pre-control regulatory period		Control period				
No		FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023
А	Opening RAB	96.5	101.3	103.0	160.5	190.0	320.9	1216.4
В	Capitalizations	13.0	10.3	71.4	47.0	152.9	935.4	81.4
С	Disposals	-			<u> XAN</u> -	-	-	-
D	Depreciation	8.1	8.6	13.9	17.5	21.9	39.9	54.6
E	Closing RAB	101.3	103.0	160.5	190.0	320.9	1216.4	1243.2
F	Average RAB	98.9	102.1	131.7	175.3	255.5	768.7	1229.8

Table 27: RAB for the 1st control period as per AAI's submission

Authority's Examination at Consultation Stage:

- 10.2 The Authority duly examined each element of RAB in the previous sections. It proposed to adopt the opening RAB as per Table 13, the capital expenditures as per Table 15, and the depreciation expense as per Table 24.
- 10.3 Combining all its propositions, RAB to be considered by the Authority for determination of aeronautical tariff for the 1st Control Period in respect of BBI Airport is as follows:

Table 28: RAB for the 1 st contr	ol period after Author	rity's examination	- Consultation Paper (figures
	in INR cro	ores)	

S.	Particulars	No. 288 682 197	regulatory iod	Control period					
No		FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023	
·A	Opening RAB	96.5	99.9	100.3	158.0	187.5	309.0	283.7	
В	Capitalizations	13.0	10.3	71.5	47.0	144.1	0.0	923.3	
С	Disposals	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
D	Depreciation	9.5	9.9	13.8	17.5	22.7	25.3	48.5	
Е	Closing RAB	99.9	100.3	158.0	187.5	309.0	283.7	1158.5	
F	Average RAB	98.2	100.1	129.1	172.7	248.3	296.4	721.1	

- 10.4 Based on the material before it and the analysis, the Authority had proposed to consider average RAB for the 1st control period in respect of BBI Airport as per Table 28.
- 10.5 Based on the changes made in Regulatory Asset Base post suggestions from stakeholders, the Authority decides the following RAB schedule for the 1st control period.



S.	Particulars	Pre-control per	Control period					
No	Particulars	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023
А	Opening RAB	96.5	99.9	100.3	158.0	178.9	299.8	277.5
В	Capitalizations	13.0	10.3	71.5	36.9	140.6	0.0	786.3
С	Disposals	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
D	Depreciation	9.5	9.9	13.8	16.0	19.7	22.3	41.7
Е	Closing RAB	99.9	100.3	158.0	178.9	299.8	277.5	1022.1
F	Average RAB	98.2	100.1	129.1	168.4	239.3	288.6	649.8

Table 29: RAB for the 1st control period after Authority's examination – Final (figures in INR

Decision No. 8: Regarding average Regulatory Asset Base

8.a. The Authority decides to consider average RAB for the 1st control period in respect of BBI Airport as per Table 29.





11. Fair Rate of Return (FRoR)

- 11.1 AAI has considered Fair Rate of Return (FRoR) as 14% in line with the decision taken by the Authority for other AAI airports, including Kolkata, Jaipur and Trivandrum, among others.
- 11.2 AAI has submitted that all financing activities are undertaken centrally at the corporate office of AAI. The funds are apportioned among airports by the corporate office.

Authority's Examination at Consultation Stage:

- 11.3 The Authority recognized that AAI's capital structure may not be regarded as an efficient one in that it doesn't optimize the cost of funds from a regulatory perspective. The Authority desires that the FRoR allowed to AAI should come down over a period of time by optimizing capital gearing. The Authority may also consider a normative capital structure to determine the FRoR at a later date. It may not be reasonable to expect AAI to contract large amounts of debt over a short period of time.
- 11.4 The Authority notes that as per a study conducted in respect of the 'Fair Rate of Return Estimation for AAI' in July 2011, it estimated a figure of 14.96% as Fair Rate of Return for AAI. The Authority notes that it has considered FRoR at 14% for other AAI airports considering the recommendations of another study done by NIPFP.
- 11.5 Based on the above, the Authority had proposed to consider FRoR at the rate of 14% for BBI for the 1st control period as submitted by AAI.
- 11.6 The Authority did not receive comments from stakeholders for this chapter.

Decision No. 9: Regarding Fair Rate of Return

9.a. The Authority decides to consider FRoR at 14% for BBI Airport for the 1st control period.



12. Non-aeronautical revenue

12.1 AAI has forecasted revenue from services other than aeronautical services as below.

Particulars	Pre co regul per	ontrol atory	Control period					
	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023	
1. Trading concession	IS					,		
Restaurant / snack bars	0.88	1.10	1.03	1.13	1.25	1.37	1.65	
T.R. stall	2.08	2,84	6.68	7.35	8.08	8.89	10.67	
Hoarding & display	2.46	5.38	5.91	6.50	7.15	7.87	9.44	
2. Rent and services								
Land leases	4.74	5.17	5.56	5.98	6.43	6.91	7.43	
Building (residential)	0.02	0.03	0,04	0.04	0.04	0.04	0.04	
Building (non- residential)	1.25	0.65	0.72	0.79	0.87	0.96	1.15	
3. Miscellaneous								
Car rentals	0.36	0.65	1.210	1.52	1.67	1.84	2.20	
Car parking	1.81	2.39	2.63	2.89	3.18	3.50	4.20	
Admission tickets	0.61	0.79	0.87	0.95	1.05	1.15	1.39	
Other income	1.33	1.03	0.10	0.11	0.12	0.13	0.15	
Total	15.54	20.03	24.75	27.27	29.84	32.66	38.31	

Table 30: Non-aeronautical revenue projections as per AAL (figures in INR crores)

12.2 The growth rates assumed by AAI have been presented in the table below.

(37) (36)

	93663	Contro	ol period		
Particulars	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023
1. Trading concessions					
Restaurant / snack bars	Bottom up	10%	10%	10%	20%
T.R. stall	Bottom up	10%	10%	10%	20%
Hoarding & display	10%	10%	10%	10%	20%
2. Rent and services					
Land leases	7.5%	7.5%	7.5%	7.5%	7.5%
Building (residential)	5%	5%	5%	5%	5%
Building (non- residential)	10%	10%	10%	10%	20%
3. Miscellaneous	10 All	-	_		
Car rentals	Par Bottom up	10%	10%	10%	20%
Car parking	10%	10%	10%	10%	20%
Admission tickets	10%	10%	10%	10%	20%
otaiv i	SQ III				

Table 31: Growth rates assumed by AAI for non-aeronautical revenue

ਿ

Omic Regulatory Auto

Order No. 46/20

Other income	-90%	10%	10%	10%	10%
Total	24%	10%	9%	9%	17%

Authority's Examination at Consultation Stage:

- 12.3 The Authority examined the non-aeronautical revenues for FY 2017 and FY 2018 from the trial balances of the respective years submitted by AAI. The Authority found these to be in line with the trial balances.
- 12.4 **Revenue from restaurant / snack bars:** The Authority observed that AAI did a bottom-up projection for revenue from F&B outlets for FY 2019. Upon examination, the Authority found that with effect from FY 2018-19, AAI awarded a master concession to develop, market, setup, operate, maintain and manage multiple food and beverages outlets at Bhubaneswar airport. The concession includes a minimum of two international brand outlets, one domestic brand outlet, and two locally popular outlets. The concession was applicable with effect from 1st April, 2018 and applicable for 7 years. The concession fee was decided as INR 101.7 lakh per month, or a certain percentage of net sales, whichever is higher. Further, this would increase by 10% each year. The Authority notes that it is not possible to forecast the actual sales at these F&B outlets. Therefore, the Authority proposed to consider the minimum monthly guaranteed amount of INR 101.7 lakh per month to forecast the revenues to AAI. However, AAI has considered INR 1.03 crores as an annual figure. On further discussions with AAI, it was observed that INR 1.03 crores is indeed a monthly amount and hence the Authority proposes to consider it accordingly. Further, a new concession was awarded for a variety of small outlets. The income accruing to AAI would be INR 16,544 per month from 1st August, 2018.
- 12.5 The Authority observed that for lease rentals, AAI has assumed a growth rate of 7.5%. However, on further discussions with AAI, it was observed that AAI will not be increasing the land lease rates in BBI Airport up to FY 2022. Therefore, the Authority proposed to change the growth rates assumed for land lease revenue from 7.5% to 0% for period up to FY 2022.
- 12.6 The Authority observed that AAI had proposed a growth rate of 20% in last year for most of the non-aeronautical revenue sources. AAI submitted that this was done on account of new terminal building being operationalized. However, because the Authority has proposed to shift the capitalization of this new building by one year, the Authority proposed that the growth rate for non-aeronautical revenues in last year be the same as that for the previous years.

Retail and other stalls: The Authority observed that AAI did a bottom-up projection for revenue from retail and other stalls for FY

Order No. 46/2018-19

RENTERT

A STRATE

STREAM S

2019. Upon examination, the Authority found that with effect from FY 2018-19, AAI awarded a master concession to develop, market, setup, operate, maintain and manage multiple retail outlets at Bhubaneswar Airport. The concession includes a minimum of two international brand outlets and one domestic brand outlet. The concession was applicable with effect from 1st April, 2018 and applicable for 7 years. The concession fee was decided as INR 55.59 lakh per month, or a certain percentage of net sales, whichever is higher. Further, this would increase by 10% each year. The Authority noted that it is not possible to forecast the actual sales at the retail outlets. Therefore, the Authority proposed to consider the minimum monthly guaranteed amount of INR 55.59 lakh per month to forecast the revenues to AAI.

- 12.8 The Authority observed that AAI has awarded a new concession agreement with respect to car rentals at the airport. The Authority verified the agreement and found the projections to be in line with the same.
- 12.9 The Authority requested AAI to provide a basis for assuming a -90% growth in other income. In the absence of a valid basis, the Authority proposed to flat-line this income source.
 - सत्यमंब जयतं

12.10 The revised growth rates as per Authority's examination have been presented in the table below.

Table 32: Growth rates in non-aeronautical revenue considered by the Authority – Consultation

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			Paper						
Particulars	Pre co regul per	atory		Control period					
	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023		
1. Trading concessio	ns	I SZ			Ma				
Restaurant / snack bars	600 SC 3X 7		Bottom up	10%	10%	10%	10%		
T.R. stall			Bottom up	10%	10%	10%	10%		
Hoarding & display			10%	10%	10%	10%	10%		
2. Rent and services			1.100		È				
Land leases			0%	0%	0%	0%	7.5%		
Building (residential)			5%	5%	5%	5%	5%		
Building (non- residential)			10%	10%	10%	10%	10%		
3. Miscellaneous					_				
Car rentals			Bottom up	10%	10%	10%	10%		
Car parking			10%	10%_	10%	10%	10%		
Admission tickets	وسادا القرار تداد الإجرى	of with the second s	10%	10%	10%	10%	10%		
Other income	THUTTH SITTE	125 12 13 13 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%		
Total	A State and a state of the stat	EI ST	82%	9%	8%	9%	9 %		
Order No. 46/2018-1	e ticria are		to the			I	Page 63		

12.11 Based on the material obtained and the analysis, the Authority had proposed to revise the non-aeronautical revenues as per the table below.

Particulars	Pre co regul per	ontrol atory	f		Control period					
	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023			
1. Trading concessions	L	2.19 X.: 1990, A.	2000 A							
Restaurant / snack bars	0.88	1.10	12.22	13.44	14.78	16.26	17.89			
T.R. stall	2.08	2.84	6.68	7.35	8.08	8.89	9.78			
Hoarding & display	2.46	5.38	5.91	6.50	7.15	7.87	8.66			
2. Rent and services				¢			_			
Land leases	4.74	5.17	5.17	5.17	5.17	5.17	5.56			
Building (residential)	0.02	0.03	0.04	0.04	0.04	0.04	0.04			
Building (non- residential)	1.25	0.65	0.72	0.79	0.87	0.96	1.05			
3. Miscellaneous										
Car rentals	0.36	0.65	1,21	1.52	1.67	1.84	2.02			
Car parking	1.81	2.39	2.63	2.89	3.18	3.50	3.85			
Admission tickets	0.61	0.79	0.87	0.95	1.05	1.15	1.27			
Other income	1.33	1.03	1.03	1.03	1.03	1.03	1.03			
Total	15.54	20.03	36.48	39.69	43.04	46.72	51.16			

Table 33: Non-aeronautical	revenues propos	sed by the Authority	/ Consultation Paner
- $ -$	revenues propos		Constitution ruper

Stakeholder comments

12.12 Federation of Indian Airlines (FIA):

Growth in non-aeronautical revenue has been projected on a conservative basis despite an increase of 29% in non-aero revenue in FY 18 and increase in passenger traffic - non-aero revenue per passenger is on a constant decline over the control period.

Alles III

FIA submits that as per proposal 8(a) of the CP, the Authority has proposed to consider non- aeronautical revenues as per table below and to true up the non-aero revenue in second control period based on actual revenue of first control period.



Non-automotical revenues propagan by the a Physik	ś																
12423 (6182) 1254 (618)	207											· · ·	-			H	e riy
		adel -		100.2	. A.	1,25		(a. 1)					ĴĆ.		Ω,		
		. Jeind					1			1.10-						1	
			S. 2., 1		a. 1. j	17.54				17.	deux of projection for first spectra						
	502	Second States	ALA & CONTRACTOR & CONTRACT	5 5 6 6	10000000	14.22.856	20270/075				amod	F C				τρ/	111
atiolas V	6,52			, FRAN								(jegg					
entre and a second and		ļ															
ettaviant / visci tient	0.65	1.10	12.22	13,44	14.78	16.25	17,85	74 54	28.22	39	Planciese (o)		-ON-V		- 105	1(6)	1
A. stali	2.08	2.84	6.65	7.35	5.08	8,57	9,76	-0,78	15.43	195	10% increase incr	375	139	1(%	-10%	105	1
ಅವರ್ಗತ್ರ ಕ್ರಿ ತನ್ನಲ್ಲು	2.4	5.32	1 ,91	- (.5)	7./5	7,87	8.66	36. 3 5	06	175	WEREAR OF	198	19.	104	1,3 ₁	14	;
ar strater																	
and waters	4,74	5.17	517	5.0	50	5.97	5%	26.24	4.8	124	to issuesse et PSD	99	ζh	e,	1	¢-	
ulting respectabl	0.03	0.03	6.64	8,64	QQ4	0.0X	0,6:	0.X	0.06	Ø.	5V increase no 1	50A	- 55	-53	5	5\	
जेवन्द्र एका लाउँलचाध	1.25	0.65	0.Ti				1.05	4.35	1 66	25	Percenter of	(+ ? %)	1th	ι(٩	13.	303	
incontractory				6.	Nard												
ar rentals	0.36	0.65	1. 1940	5	14	<u>ايو (</u>)	1.0	8.2	3.6	29	। विभिन्नेद्रालयको दोन्द्र तथा महत्वमन्द्रवाद	δiA	8/3	26%	64	101	1
a başınış	1.51	2.39	S R (na	ීම						75	(10% increase 10)	325	ť٨	10%	165	10.	1
anasian takets	0.61	62	ST West	વેક્ક).65	\$ 14	- (57	1680	2.01	2%	PS in reserver	38	134	1%	195	10%	1
)ther name	1.35	1.03	Sec. W	1	21.00	1,3	K	8.0	1.95	2.9	Eat moore	(3%)	39	(%	94	<i>0</i> 5,	
64.86	15.54	20.03						217.08	82.13	10.0%		29%	875.	9%	8%	9 %	4
(K of non-memory	T	[S. 39	6.03	12.91	1926	100	9				1					
issengers krimeitik + niteinatrina, k(in mihons)				2.90		(XY)								174	174	174	1
fori-aero neverue per passenger (Nik)	1		96.30	SV 14	63.46	17.55	ny	82.13			1	1		(7%)	(7%)	(75)	(6

Increase in non-aeronautical revenue is a function of passenger traffic growth, inflationary increase and real increase in contract rates. Despite all these factors increasing during the control period, on examination of the non-aeronautical revenue projected for the first control period by Authority, FIA noted that a conservative approach has been taken by the Authority.

Issue 1: Conservative approach while projecting growth in nonaeronautical revenue:

FIA submits that as per agreements entered by AAI with various revenue vendors, five non-aeronautical streams (namely restaurant/snack bar, T.R. stall, hoarding & display, car rentals, car parking) which contributes 81% of total non-aeronautical revenue for first control period, year on year 10% increase has been proposed by Authority between FY20 to FY23. As per Para 11.7 & 11.8, we understand that Authority has verified the agreements with retail store vendors & car rental vendor. However, no further details & breakup pertaining to agreements have been mentioned in the CP. No details has been mentioned with respect to key terms, duration, and tenure of these agreements.

BBI Airport being the 15th busiest airport in India and per table 4 of CP had registered domestic passenger growth over 5 year CAGR is 17.9%. However, as per table 5 of CP, on a conservative basis, passenger growth over the control period has been projected to be 16%-17% p.a. On comparing the passenger growth rate with the escalation clauses in ETTITUTET SILVER ARA agreement, we analyzed that escalation clauses as per agreements is Tifst Regulation No. 46/2018-19 8% to 10% during FY20 to FY23, which is far lower than year on year projected passenger growth over the control period. Therefore, non-Beronautical revenue per passenger was analyzed for each year of the first control period and a decreasing trend was noted in the same,

which clearly indicated that the Authority has taken lower growth rate projections for non-aero revenue.

As per clause 5.6.1 of the AERA Guidelines, the Authority's review of forecast of revenues from services other than aeronautical services may include scrutiny of bottom-up projections of such revenues prepared by the Airport Operator, benchmarking of revenue levels, commissioning experts to consider where opportunities for such revenues are under-exploited, together with the review of other forecasts for operation and maintenance expenditure, traffic and capital investment plans that have implications for such activities.

However, on the review of CP indicated that for the purpose of determining non-aeronautical revenue, Authority, rather than evaluating non-aeronautical revenue in detail as per AERA Guidelines to consider the impact of inflationary increase and real increase while projecting these non-aero revenue has relied on ad-hoc growth rate and basis provided by BBI Airport.

FIA submits that the Authority to reconsider growth rates for non-aero revenues so as to keep them in line with the growth in passengers. Further, Authority has not commented on the real increase, inflationary increase and passenger traffic based increase for the growth rates proposed for the first control period. Since, each of them affect the non-aeronautical revenues, FIA submits that the Authority should re-evaluate the growth rates for non-aeronautical revenue on the basis of an independent expert/consultant study. However, in case of paucity of time for the purpose of issuance of the order, it is submitted that Authority to consider 17.9% YoY growth (being 5-year passenger growth CAGR) in non-aero revenue during the control period except in case of long term contracts where YoY escalation is agreed.

It is submitted that Authority should direct AAI to enter into contracts where an escalation clause is linked with passenger growth and propose true up in second control period based on actuals.

It is submitted to Authority, in the event that the capitalization for new terminal building is done in FY23, then the Authority should re-consider the growth rates projected in FY23 as new contracts will be entered with various vendors which will lead to higher non-aeronautical income.

Issue 2: Authority to check restaurant income for FY17 & FY18:

FIA submits that as per Table 22 of the CP, AAI has given restaurant/snack bar income of INR 0.88 crores, INR 1.10 crores, INR 1.03 crores, INR 1.13 crores, INR 1.25 crores, INR 1.37 crores, INR 1.65 crores for FY17, FY18, FY19, FY20, FY21, FY22, FY23 respectively.

Order No. 46/2018-19

Notia

्रिमान्यसन् आर्थिक क्रिम् हिमान्यसम्

et in the Regulatory Autority

d HINDA

Under Para 11.4, "Authority observed that for restaurant and snack bars, AAI has awarded new master concession to a vendor. The commercial terms as examined by the Authority indicate that AAI will receive a minimum of INR 1.03 crore per month from the vendor. However, AAI has considered INR 1.03 crores as an annual figure. On further discussions with AAI, it was observed that INR 1.03 crores is indeed a monthly amount and hence the Authority proposes to consider it accordingly".

However, the Authority has rectified the revenue figures for FY19 onwards without making any correction in FY17 & FY18. Accordingly, FIA submits that the Authority to rectify the revenue figures for restaurant/snack bars for FY17 & FY18 (if not considered) and adjust the shortfall as computed on page 43 of the CP. Further, the Authority should calculate the ARR for first control period based upon revised figures & propose a new tariff card accordingly.

AAI's reply to stakeholder comments

- 12.13 The copies of all agreement related non aeronautical streams have been shared with the Authonity.
- 12.14 Regarding Issue 1, AAI has proposed additional 10% increase in Non-Aeronautical revenue in FY23 considering the operation of new Terminal Building (T-3).
- 12.15 Regarding Issue 2, the new master concessioner has been awarded in January 2018.

examination of stakeholders comments Authoritv's AAI's and submission to stakeholders comments

12.16 Authority's examination of comments by FIA:

Share a

The Authority has carefully examined the comments received from FIA regarding the non-aeronautical revenue projections. The Authority notes that FIA has commented on two issues. Authority's position on each of these two issues is stated below:



The Authority notes that FIA suggests a growth rate in line with passenger growth rate for those non-aeronautical revenue streams for which long term agreements with vendors do not exist. The Authority evaluated each of such revenue streams. The observations thereon are discussed below:

- Restaurants / snack bars These are bound by long term agreements with vendors.
- Retail stores These are bound by long term agreements with vendors.

S CALL

- Hoarding and display These are bound by long term agreements.
- Land and building leases While these are not bound by long term contracts, the Authority observed that for land leases, AAI will not be increasing the rates in BBI Airport up to FY 2022. Therefore, the Authority had proposed to consider the growth rate only in the last year of the control period. In such cases where the airport operator has decided to not increase rates due to commercial reasons, the Authority should not take a position where an increased rate is forced on the airport operator leading to lesser ARR.
- Car rentals These are bound by long term agreements.
- Car parking These are bound by long term agreements.
- Admission tickets These are not bound by long term agreements. The Authority accepts FIA's suggestion of higher growth rate in line with passenger growth.
- Other income These are not bound by long term agreements. These income streams are very uncertain. They are not regular in nature. As mentioned in Para 11.9 of the consultation paper, AAI had initially proposed a growth rate of negative 90% in the first year of the control period. The Authority had proposed to change the same to 0%. The Authority doesn't find any business logic to consider that these incomes will increase in line with growth in passengers. Therefore, the Authority decides to keep the growth rate unchanged.

FIA has compared growth in non-aeronautical revenues with the passenger growth. From this comparison, FIA has suggested that the passenger growth is assumed at 16%, whereas the growth in most non-aeronautical revenue streams is assumed at 10%, which is less



than the growth in passenger traffic. However, this comparison has not taken into account the growth in non-aeronautical revenues from FY 2017-18 to FY 2018-19, which have been projected to grow at 82%. When this growth is considered, then the growth in non-aeronautical revenues over five years averages 21%, which is more than the passenger growth rate. Doing a selective comparison by excluding the first year of the control period is not appropriate.

FIA has also suggested a higher proportional increase in nonaeronautical revenues during the last year of the control period, when a new termInal building is being assumed to be operationalized. In this regard, the Authority expects a minor off-take in terms of nonaeronautical revenues for the last year. Considering that the building is assumed to be operational only for half of the last year, and that setting up new outlets (retail and food & beverages) will take time, the Authority decides to keep the growth rates unchanged.

Issue 2: Regarding calculations of restaurant income for FY 2017 and FY 2018:

The Authority has duly noted the comments received by FIA in this regard. The Authority hereby clarifies that the new concession agreement was effective from FY 2019. It is not supposed to have an impact on the revenues of FY 2017 and FY 2018, which have been considered on actual basis. Therefore, the Authority decides to keep the projections unchanged.

12.17 After considering the above, the revised projections of nonaeronautical revenues have been presented in the table below.

Particulars	Pre control regulatory period		Control period							
	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023			
1. Trading concessio	ns	7040 8000			<u> </u>					
Restaurant / snack bars			Bottom up	10%	10%	10%	10%			
T.R. stall			Bottom up	10%	10%	10%	10%			
Hoarding & display			10%	10%	10%	10%	10%			
2. Rent and services			_							
Land leases			0%	0%	0%	0%	7.5%			
Building (residential)			5%	5%	5%	5%	5%			
Building (non- residential)			10%	10%	10%	10%	10%			
3. Miscellaneous	and the second	Sector Sector			_					
Car rentals	ATTING SIT	2165 APA	Bottom up	10%	10%	10%	10%			
Order No. 46/2018-1	(- Cysta	Authorn Providence					Page 69			

Table 34: Growth rates in non-aeronautical revenue as per the Authority - Final

Particulars	regul	ontrol atory [.] iod		Control period					
	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023		
Car parking			10%	10%	10%	10%	10%		
Admission tickets			28%	20%	21%	21%	21%		
Other income			0%	0%	0%	0%	0%		
Total			83%	9%	9%	9%	10%		

<u>Table 35: N</u>	on-aerona	nutical re	venties as l	per the Au	<u>thority - Fir</u>	nal			
Particulars	Pre co regula per	atory	Control period						
	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023		
1. Trading concessions									
Restaurant / snack bars	0.88	1.10	12,22	13.44	14.78	16.26	17.89		
T.R. stall	2.08	2.84	6.68	7.35	8.08	8.89	9.78		
Hoarding & display	2.46	5,38	5,91	6.50	7.15	7.87	8.66		
2. Rent and services				<u></u>					
Land leases	4.74	5.17	5.17	5.17	5.17	5.17	5.56		
Building (residential)	0.02	0.03	0.04	0.04	0.04	0.04	0.04		
Building (non- residential)	1.25	0.65	0.72	0.79	0.87	0.96	1.05		
3. Miscellaneous									
Car rentals	0.36	0.65	1.21	1.52	1.67	1.84	2.02		
Car parking	1.81	2.39	2.63	2.89	3.18	3.50	3.85		
Admission tickets	0.61	0.79	1.01	1.21	1.46	1.76	2.13		
Other income	1.33	1.03	1.03	1,03	1,03	1.03	1.03		
Total	15.54	20.03	36.62	39.95	43,45	47.33	52.01		

Table 35: Non-aeronautical revenues as per the Authority - Final

Decision No. 10: Regarding non-aeronautical revenue

10.a. The Authority decides to consider non-aeronautical revenues for the 1st control period in accordance with Table 35.

1995 S



13. Operation and maintenance expenditure

- 13.1 Operation and Maintenance (O&M) expenditure submitted by AAI is segregated into the following:
 - i. Payroll expenses,
 - ii. Admin and general expenditure,
 - iii. Repair and maintenance expenditure,
 - iv. Utilities and outsourcing expenditure, and
 - v. Other outflows
- 13.2 The expenses related to Cargo, AAICLAS and ANS have not been considered by AAI.
- 13.3 AAI has segregated the expenses into aeronautical expenses, nonaeronautical expenses, and common expenses. The common expenses have been further segregated into aeronautical and non-aeronautical on the basis of relevant ratios.
- 13.4 AAI submitted that the allocation of CHQ/RHQ expenses among individual airports has been done on the basis of revenue.
- 13.5 The summary of aeronautical expenses proposed by AAI for the 1st control period has been presented in the table below:

	1	ontrol					
	regul	-	Control period				
Particulars	per					`````	
1996 - 1996 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 -	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023
Payroll expenses - non CHQ/RHQ	11.78	15.24	17.79	18.71	19.64	20.62	21.65
Payroll expenses - CHQ/RHQ	2.74	2.88	3.27	3.43	3.61	3.79	3.98
Administration and General expenses - non CHQ/RHQ	2.19	4.23		4.79	5.11	5.47	5.86
Administration and General expenses - CHQ/RHQ	25.64	26.92	28.26	29.68	31.16	32.72	34.35
Repairs and maintenance	5.88	8.51	9.36	10.29	11.32	12.45	14.95
Utilities and outsourcing expenses	4.75	4.87	4.79	4.84	4.90	4.96	5.88
Other outflows - Collection Charges on UDF	0.11	0.31	0.36	0.41	0.48	0.55	0.60
Total	53.08	62.95	68.33	72.15	76.22	80.56	87.27

13.6 The summary of growth rates assumed by AAI for the operation and maintenance expenses have been presented in the table below

Ne Regulatory Aut

Particulars	regul	e control gulatory Control period period								
	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023			
Payroll expenses - non CHQ/RHQ			17%	5%	5%	5%	5%			
Payroll expenses - CHQ/RHQ			14%	5%	5%	5%	5%			
Administration and General expenses - non CHQ/RHQ			6%	7%	7%	7%	7%			
Administration and General expenses - CHQ/RHQ			5%	5%	5%	5%	5%			
Repairs and maintenance			10%	10%	10%	10%	20%			
Utilities and outsourcing expenses			-2%	1%	1%	1%	19%			
Other outflows - Collection Charges on UDF			16%	16%	16%	16%	9%			
Total		V.S.	9%	6%	6%	6%	8%			

Table 37: Growth rates in O&M as per AAI

13.7 Further, summary of allocation of expenses between aeronautical and non-aeronautical as proposed by AAI has been presented in the table below:

	S. Anocation of Oam expenses as j			
Particulars	Aeronautical	Non-aeronautical		
Payroll expenses - non CHQ/RHQ	94.25%	5.75%		
Payroll expenses - CHQ/RHQ	100%	0%		
Administration and General	96,2%	2.00/		
expenses - non CHQ/RHQ	96,2%	3.8%		
Administration and General	95%	5%		
expenses - CHQ/RHQ	95%	5%		
Repairs and maintenance	97.5%	2.5%		
Utilities and outsourcing	100%	0%		
expenses		0%		
Other outflows - Collection	1000	00/		
Charges on UDF	100%	0%		

Authority's Examination at Consultation Stage:

13.8 The Authority examined the trial balances for FY 2017 and FY 2018 to ensure that the actuals considered by AAI are accurate. In all instances except one, the numbers were found to be consistent with the trial balances. In case of utilities and outsourcing expenses, the expense pertaining to consumption of stores and spares amounting to INR 29 lakh was left out from the trial balance for FY 2018. Therefore, the Authority proposed to include the same.
- 13.9 The Authority observed the employee ratio considered by AAI for allocation of payroll expenses between aeronautical and nonaeronautical. For FY 2017, AAI used a ratio of 7/98. However, it was examined that the correct ratio to use would be 7:98, i.e. 7/105. The Authority proposes to use 7/105 instead of 7/98. This would change the allocation of payroll expenses to aeronautical and non-aeronautical for FY 2017. The Authority found the ratio used for FY 2017-18 to be correct.
- 13.10 The Authority observed that for two categories of employees, i.e. HR and Finance, which serve both the aeronautical and non-aeronautical services at the airport, AAI did not reduce the expenses pertaining to non-aeronautical portion of these common staff. The Authority considered to reduce these from the payroll expenses.
- 13.11 The Authority further observed that the ratio used to compute the nonaeronautical portion of the common staff expenses was not consistent throughout the control period. The ratio used by AAI for this purpose and the ratio proposed by the Authority on the basis of consistent formula have been presented in the table below.

Partículars	For FY 2017	For FY 2018	For FY 2019 and beyond
Ratio used by AAI	1.35%	1.26%	1.03%
Ratio considered by the Authority	1.26%	1.19%	0.97%

Table 30, Difference in ratio of period acception of common staff evnences

allocation of expenses between 13.12 The Authority examined the aeronautical and non-aeronautical. The Authority compared the allocation proposed by AAI to its recent orders for other AAI airports. A summary of these has been presented in the table below.

Expense category	BBI	Kolkata	Jaipur	Trivandrum
Payroll expenses - non CHQ/RHQ	94%	88%	94%	95%
Payroll expenses - CHQ/RHQ	100%	88%	95%	95%
Administration and General expenses - non CHQ/RHQ	96%	96%	88%	94%
Administration and General expenses - CHQ/RHQ	95%	85%	90%	90%
Repairs and maintenance	98%	89%	93%	97%
Utilities and outsourcing expenses	100%	91%	93%	98%
Other outflows - Collection Charges on UDF	100%	93%	100%	100%

Table 40: Comparison of allocation of O&M expenses with other AAI airports

Aligon Reculstory Author 13.13 On comparison with the other AAI airports, the Authority observed that the payroll expenses - CHQ/RHQ were not allocated between aeronautical and non-aeronautical. The Authority desired to have an ideal allocation based on actual deployment of staff at CHQ/RHQ for hon-aeronautical purposes. In absences of actual numbers, the Authority proposes to consider 5% of payroll expenses – CHQ/RHQ as non-aeronautical portion.

- 13.14 The Authority noted 100% allocation of the utilities and outsourcing expenses as aeronautical by AAI. The Authority desired to have an ideal allocation based on actual consumption by the non-aeronautical avenues like stalls, kiosks etc. at the airport. In absence of data pertaining to actual consumption by such avenues, the Authority proposed to consider 1% of power charges as non-aeronautical.
- 13.15 The Authority proposed the following allocation of O&M expenses into aeronautical and non-aeronautical.

Particulars	Aeronautical	Non-aeronautical
Payroll expenses - non CHQ/RHQ	94.25%	5.75%
Payroli expenses - CHQ/RHQ	95%	5%
Administration and General expenses - non CHQ/RHQ	96.2%	3.8%
Administration and General expenses - CHQ/RHQ	95%	5%
Repairs and maintenance	97.5%	2.5%
Utilities and outsourcing expenses	99%	1%
Other outflows - Collection Charges on UDF	100%	0%

Table 41: Allocation of O&M expenses as per the Authority

- 13.16 The Authority examined the growth rates assumed by AAI. For payroll expenses, AAI has assumed an overall growth rate of approximately 17% for FY 2019. The revised pay commission was implemented in FY 2018 for executive grade employees. The implementation for non-executive grade employees is proposed to be done in FY 2019. Therefore, the Authority proposed that it should be assumed that the growth in overall payout of non-executive grade employees should be similar to the actual growth in payout of executive grade of employees in FY 2018 based on revised pay commission. The Authority found this to be 37.16% increment. Based on the proportion of employees in the two grades, the Authority found the overall growth of 17% in FY 2018-19 to be reasonable.
- 13.17 AAI assumed a growth rate of 5% in payroll expenses beyond FY 2019. The Authority found this to be reasonable.
- 13.18 The Authority examined actual growth trend of other expenses for the past few years at the airport. Further, the Authority examined a few contractual agreements with vendors on a sample basis to understand the escalation dynamics. On the basis of these checks, the other growth rates were found to be reasonable.

der No. 46/2018-19

Studia Airports Ecol

Phile Regulatory Pullin

- 13.19 The Authority observed that AAI considered a growth rate of 20% in FY 2023 for repairs and maintenance expenses and power charges. This was twice the growth rate assumed up to FY 2022. AAI submitted that a new terminal building (T3) has been planned and is expected to be in operation by FY 2023. Therefore, to accommodate for increased expenses, AAI assumed a growth rate of 20% for FY 2023. The Authority however noted the provisions of Defect Liability Period to be applicable for the initial period since the commencement of operations of T3. Further as the Authority proposed to shift the capitalization of this new building by one year, the corresponding growth rates in expenses are also proposed to grow as per the previous years.
- 13.20 For other outflows, i.e., collection charges on UDF, AAI considered the growth rate assumed for ATM traffic. The Authority found the same to be a reasonable driver of expense. Therefore, the Authority proposed to change the same in accordance with its proposal of ATM growth rate.
- 13.21 Based on above considerations, the Authority proposed the following growth rates in operation and maintenance expenses.

Table 42. Growth fates in t	Pre co	ontrol		<u></u>			- <u> </u>
Particulars	-	atory iod		C	ontrol per	iod	
Farticulars	FY FY 2017 2018		FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023
Payroll expenses - non CHQ/RHQ			17%	5%	5%	5%	5%
Payroll expenses - CHQ/RHQ			14%	5%	5%	5%	5%
Administration and General expenses - non CHQ/RHQ			6%	6%	7%	[.] 7%	7%
Administration and General expenses - CHQ/RHQ			5%	5%	5%	.5%	5%
Repairs and maintenance		l German	10%	10%	10%	10%	10%
Utilities and outsourcing expenses			0%	2%	2%	2%	2%
Other outflows - Collection Charges on UDF			16%	16%	16%	16%	16%
Total			9%	6%	6%	6%	6%

Table 42: Growth rates in O&M expenses considered by the Authority - Consultation Paper

13.22 After incorporating the above observations by the Authority, the Authority had proposed to revise the O&M expenses as per the table below.



Particulars	Pre co regul per	ontrol atory	Control period						
	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023		
Payroll expenses - non CHQ/RHQ	11.65	15.02	17.59	18.49	19.41	20.38	21.40		
Payroll expenses - CHQ/RHQ	2.60	2.73	3.11	3.26	3.43	3.60	3.78		
Administration and General expenses - non CHQ/RHQ	2.19	4.21	4,47	4.76	5.08	5.43	5.82		
Administration and General expenses - CHQ/RHQ	25.64	26.92	28,26	29.68	31.16	32.72	34.35		
Repairs and maintenance	5.88	8.51	9.36	10.29	11.32	12.45	13.70		
Utilities and outsourcing expenses	4.71	5.12	5.11	5.20	5.29	5.39	5.50		
Other outflows - Collection Charges on UDF	0.11	0.31	0.36	0.41	0.48	0.55	0.64		
Total	52.77	62.81	68.25	72.09	76.16	80.52	85.19		

Table 43: Operation and maintenance (O&M) expenses as revised by the Authority - Consultation

13.23 During consultation with the stakeholders, the Authority acknowledged that the new solar power plant proposed at the airport will be used for AAI's internal consumption of electricity. This would lead to a reduced electricity bill. However, this reduced electricity expense was not factored up till the consultation stage. Therefore, the Authority requested from AAI a detailed revised computation of estimated electricity cost, after taking into consideration the electricity production and consumption from the proposed solar power plant.

13.24 AAI submitted the revised electricity cost computations. However, there were a number of calculation errors in the computations provided by AAI. Pointing out the calculation errors, the Authority subsequently requested a further revised computation. This computation, as proposed by AAI and accepted by the Authority, is provided below.

5I. No.	Particulars	Units	FY 2019 (2018- 19)	FY 2020 (2019- 20)	FY 2021 (2020- 21)	FY 2022 (2021- 22)	FY 2023 (2022- 23)
a	Capacity of solar plant	MW	4	4	4	4	4
b	Annual electricity production (and consumption) planned by AAI from solar plant	kWh lakh	51.26	51.26	51.26	51.36	51:26

gulatory Autho

Table 44: Revised electricity expense after considering proposed solar power plant

SI. No.	Particulars	Units	FY 2019 (2018- 19)	FY 2020 (2019- 20)	FY 2021 (2020- 21)	FY 2022 (2021- 22)	FÝ 2023 (2022- 23)
с	Electricity requirement	kWh	70.40	70.40	70.40	70.40	70.40
d	Electricity to be purchased (c-b)	kWh	19.14	19.14	19.14	19.14	19.14
е	Unit cost of electricity purchased	INR per kWh	6.22	6.22	6.22	6.22	6.22
f	Total electricity cost	INR crores	1,19	1.19	1.19	1.19	1.19
g	Aeronautical portion of total electricity cost	INR crores	1.18	1.18	1.18	1.18	1.18

Stakeholder comments

13.25 Airports Authority of India (AAI):

AAI has proposed 5% increase in payroll expenses for FY2018-19 to FY2022-23 in the MYTP, whereas the projection has to be 7%. The Authority is requested to consider 7% as has been considered in other airports.

13.26 Federation of Indian Airlines (FIA):

Without considering past trends, productivity improvements and cost drivers, the Authority has accepted the operating expenditure submitted by AAI on an "as is" basis, which was forecasted on very broad basis. Basis of allocation of operating expenditure has not been mentioned by the Authority

	Operation we maintenence (COM) expenditure 5, 100 Tailee 213 on Jage 13 of U.S.N. 24 (2011) 19	lea by tra	Nistool	J		8900											服用	Wes
			y.	14			a			Į.	a.				Ť			
	Pertinues:	- Fill	- 6 (i)	1719		m	Ma	Sm				bale of projecting for first centrel period		5 40	ii.)	m	ini i	
A STATISTICS	Partok espenses - noa (highistig	- presentation of the				0002264578	**************************************		tenueri 2046		23% 23%	into bie operativne of at reveal para compo In one-existe grave neral granth of Disha comassioned for 2014. For bits regarded 35 bas		17	51	999 135,4	51	
िमामित आधिक जिल	Payroll expenses (42,0740)	0.65 2,65	15.02 2.73	J.11	(8.4) 3.26	3 43	2038 140	21.49 3.78	· ·7.43	36 80 5 50	- R	teen proprised Start eine hat	51		51.7	57 F	1	2
/// @> \\	 Administration and General Expension (into (HO-RH)) Administration and General Expension (HC-RH) Administration and General Expension (HC-RH) Administration and Center and Center (HC-RH) 	2 19 2.64 5 82	121 २८२२ १९२१			31.14	54) 12.5 14.5 14.5	5.82 34 35 19.76	198 S	9.07 59.08 29.01	1.	in eeneen het hen finiskerende Suiteenen for Suiteeneen en	1921 54 252	4		7. 54 67.	ę	1
	S Literational and a state of the second state	4,71 	512	4 14 2 16	523		5 19 10 55	5.50 8 44	26.43	1946 (85)	Y	an an ann an far far far an	3. - 87	- 16. 16.	25 15\	1. A.	2	7
Col marine made	Aud	52.77	62.01	68.75	72.09	76.16	<i>c</i> 0.52	\$5.19	387.21	144.60	1003		-193	98	6%	65	64	63
Construction and a start of the	/ Issue 1: Reaso	nal	ble	ene	SS	of	ор	er	ati	ng	e	xpenditure:						
															_			

Issue 1: Reasonableness of operating expenditure:

Order No. 46/2018-19

FIA submits that the operating expenditure is one of the major component for determining ARR (56% of ARR), hence, the Authority should have evaluated these expenses in detail rather than accepting projections and basis provided by AAI on an "as is" basis. The Authority should have scrutinized the expenses in detail instead of leaving it for true-up in the next control period.

As per clause 5.4.2 of AERA Guidelines, while reviewing forecast of operating expenditure the Authority has to assess (a) baseline operation and maintenance expenditure based on review of actual expenditure indicated in last audited accounts and check for underlying factors impacting variance over the preceding year; and (b) efficiency improvement with respect to such costs based on review of factors such as trends in operating costs, productivity improvements, cost drivers as may be identified, and other factors as maybe considered appropriate.

Accordingly, FIA submits that keeping in view the approach of the Authority, it is submitted that in order to assess efficient operating expenditure the Authority should have conducted independent analysis in accordance with AERA Guidelines.

सत्यमव जयत

FIA submits that the BBI Airport has already completed a significant period of operations, hence benchmarking the costs would not be difficult for the Authority. Therefore, rather than truing up, price cap should be mandated by the Authority for each of the operating expenditures depending on the evaluation of past trends, cost drivers, productivity movements, future expansions otherwise the airport operator would not make palpable efforts to contain the costs. This would lead to additional burden on the passengers for the next control period.

Issue 2: Bifurcation of expenditure into aeronautical & nonaeronautical:

FIA submits that as per Proposal 9 of the Consultation Paper, the Authority has proposed the allocation of aeronautical and non-aeronautical expenses in the following ratios:



Allocation of OEM expenses as per the Authority

Table #31 on Page 37 of CP No. 24/2018-19

Particulars	onautical aer	Non- onautical	Basis provided
Payroll expenses - non CHQ/RHQ	94.25%	5.75%	Employee ratio
Payroll expenses - CHQ/RHQ	95%	5%	Employee ratio
Administration and General expenses - non CHQ/RHQ	96,20%	3.80%	Not provided
Administration and General expenses - CHQ/RHQ	95%	5%	Hot provid e d
Repairs and maintenance	97.50%	2.50%	Not provid e d
Utilities and outsourcing expenses	99%	1%	Hot provided
Other outflows - Collection Charges on PSf	100%	0%	Hot provided

FIA submits that apart from payroll expense ratio, other ratios have been accepted without conducting an independent analysis for the expenses in the first control period, Also, we noted as per Para 12.1.12, certain expenditures have been considered tentative, no data is available by virtue of which Authority ought to have done proper analysis. Accordingly, the Authority ought to have sought the information for the purpose of computing the ratios. Hence, FIA submits that the present ratios does not have any basis and is tentative, which depicts a very lenient approach of the Authority.

FIA submits that the allocation of the operating expenditure between aeronautical or non-aeronautical categories is critical under shared till approach. However, till the time study is conducted, FIA would like to highlight aero allocation ratio proposed as per CP 5/2014-15 of Normative approach of 80% should be used, hence it is submitted that aero expenditure should be considered at 80% for the first control period.

Further, it is submitted that the Authority should order for independent study for determining the reasonableness of allocation ratios and consider the same at the time of passing order on Consultation Paper (on basis of that study) on issues like 'bifurcation of expenditures into aeronautical & non aeronautical instead of leaving it for truing up without assigning any cogent reasons.

AND SEPARA

AAI's reply to stakeholder comments

13.27 Regarding allocation of expenses: The actual usage/space allocation ratio of Aero/Non aero of Terminal Buildings T1 and T2 are as under:

T1: 92.20(Aero):7.80(Non-Aero)

T2: 93.02(Aero):6.98(Non Aero)



Even the new proposed Link Building would have ratio of 94(Aero):6(Non-Aero).

The Authority is requested to consider the ratio 95:5 as Aero/Non-Aero as proposed by AAI in MYTP.

Authority's examination of stakeholders comments and AAI's submission to stakeholders comments

13.28 Authority's examination of comments by AAI:

Because the Authority had considered a rate of 7% growth rate for payroll expenses at other AAI operated airports as well, the Authority decides to accept AAI's suggestion.

13.29 Authority's examination of comments by FIA:

The Authority has carefully examined the comments made by FIA for operation and maintenance expenses. FIA has raised two issues. Authority's examination of these is discussed below.

सत्यमय जयत

13.29.1 Issue 1 - Reasonableness of expenses:

FIA has suggested a separate independent study for determination of efficient operating and maintenance expenses. In this regard, the Authority would like to state that it carefully examines the requirement of an independent study vis-à-vis its own diligence based on size, scale, complexity, and involvement of multiple agencies in provision of airport services / operations. Having carefully examined the proposals submitted by AAI and sought necessary clarifications from it, the Authority has proceeded with its own diligence.

13.29.2 Issue 2 – Allocation of expenses:

FIA has commented that other than payroll expenses, the allocation of any other expense has not been discussed in the consultation paper, thereby implying that the allocation has been done without any basis. However, the Authority undertook a careful assessment of allocation for all expenses. These are discussed below:

Administration and general expenses:

 First, the Authority compared the allocation of these expenses with other AAI airports. Refer Para 12.10 of the consultation paper. Comparing with similarly placed other AAI airports, allocation of administration and general expenses was proposed at 96%.



Second, the Authority examined the Trial Balance \cap provided by AAI for these expenses. The Authority observed that all common expenses were allocated on an actual basis, or through an appropriate ratio. For example, common office expenses pertaining to administrative block were allocated in integrated office building ratio of 10:72. Similarly, upkeep expenses were assessed on an individual basis and allocated as per actual use derived out of such expenses. On an overall basis, 8% of upkeep expenses were allocated to nonaeronautical, mostly based on terminal area ratio.

Repairs and maintenance expenses:

- First, the Authority compared the allocation of these expenses with other AAI airports. Refer Para 12.10 of the consultation paper. Comparing with similarly placed other AAI airports, allocation of repairs and maintenance expenses was proposed at 97.5%.
- Other than this, the Authority assessed the Trial Balance 0 provided by AAI for repairs and maintenance expenses. Individual items were checked for the appropriateness of their allocation. For example, repairs and maintenance expenses pertaining to terminal building were allocated as per terminal area ratio. Expenses pertaining to residential quarters were allocated as per quarter ratio. Expenses at completely aeronautical places were not allocated.
- Utilities and outsourcing expenses:

83...8 \$¢∛∰ ∰ († ∰ The second 9 et 1

AAI initially proposed an allocation of these expenses as 0 100% aeronautical. In absence of data regarding consumption of units at exact places of the airport and comparing with similarly placed other AAI airports, the Authority proposed to consider 99% aeronautical.

Other outflows:

Order No. 46/2018-19

(Helle

These expenses pertain to charges paid by AAI to airline 0 operators for collecting UDF from passengers. These are purely aeronautical expenses and hence no allocation is needed.

EATHER SITTER FIA has further suggested a ballpark ratio of 80% for allocation of Authority decides to not consider this suggestion. expenses. In the absence of any reasonable justification to do so, the The Regulatory Author

FIA has also suggested that the Authority should conduct an independent study to determine allocation of expenses. In this regard, the Authority does not see the need to conduct an independent study for BBI Airport.

Due to above reasons, the Authority decides to not change the allocation ratios of operating and maintenance expenses.

13.30 Based on the change in growth rate of payroll expenses from 5% during consultation stage to 7%, and the change in electricity cost due to consumption of captive power, the Authority computed the O&M expenses for the first control period. These are presented in the two tables below.

Particulars	regul	ontrol atory iod	Control period						
	FY 2017	EY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023		
Payroll expenses - non CHQ/RHQ		Han	19%	7%	7%	7%	7%		
Payroll expenses - CHQ/RHQ			15%	7%	7%	7%	7%		
Administration and General expenses - non CHQ/RHQ		/	6%	6%	7%	7%	7%		
Administration and General expenses - CHQ/RHQ		à	5%	5%	5%	5%	5%		
Repairs and maintenance	1 (A (A ()		10%	/ 10%	10%	10%	10%		
Utilities and outsourcing	8		-61%	4%	4%	5%	· 5%		
Other outflows - Collection Charges on UDF			16%	16%	16%	16%	16%		
Total			4%	7%	7%	7%	7%		

Table 45: O&M expenses' growth rates as considered by the Authority - Final

Table 46: Operation and maintenance (O&M) expenses considered by the Authority - Final

Particulars	Pre co regula per	atory	Control period				
	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023
Payroll expenses - non CHQ/RHQ	11.65	15.02	17.80	19.07	20.41	21.83	23.36
Payroll expenses - CHQ/RHQ	2.60	2.73	3.15	3.37	3.60	3.86	4.13
Administration and General expenses - non CHQ/RHQ	2.19	4.21	4.47	4.76	5.08	5.43	5.82



Order No. 46/2018-19

							•
Total	52.77	62.81	65.41	69.68	74.24	79.13	84.40
UDF							
Collection Charges on	0.11	0.31	0.36	0.41	0.48	0.55	0.64
Other outflows -							
expenses	4.71	5.12	2.01	2.10	2.19	2.29	2.40
Utilities and outsourcing	4,71	5.12	2.01	2.10	2.19	2.29	2.40
maintenance	5.00	0.01	9.50	10.29	11.52	12,45	15.70
Repairs and	5.88	8.51	9.36	10.29	11.32	12.45	13.70
CHQ/RHQ							
General expenses -	25.64	26.92	28.26	29.68	31.16	32.72	34.35
Administration and							

Decision No. 11: Regarding Operating and Maintenance expenses

11.a. The Authority decides to consider O&M expenses as per Table 46.



14. Taxation

14.1 To compute depreciation for tax purposes, AAI considered the depreciation rates in accordance with the following table:

	IT Depreciation rates for tax purposes a IT Depreciation rate - up	IT Depreciation rate -
Asset category	to FY 18	from FY 19
Freehold Land	0%	0%
Runways, Aprons and	15%	15%
Taxiways	AGA CAL	
Road, Bridges & Culverts	10%	10%
Building – Terminal	10%	10%
Building – Residential	5%	5%
Boundary Wall – Operational	15%	10%
Boundary Wall – Residential	5%	5%
Other Buildings	10%	10%
Computer - End user	60%	40%
Computer - Servers and networks	60%	40%
Intangible Assets – Software	60%	40%
Plant & Machinery	15%	15%
Tools & Equipment	सत्यमध्य ग्रेन्ट्री 15%	15%
Office Furniture	10%	10%
Furniture & Fixtures: Other Than Trolley	10%	10%
Furniture & Fixtures: Trolley	10%	10%
Vehicles	15%	15%
Electrical Installations	10%	10%
Other Office Equipment	10%	10%
X Ray Baggage System	15%	15%
CFT/Fire Fighting Equipment	15%	15%

Table 47: Depreciation rates for tax purposes as per AAI

14.2 The tax calculation as submitted by AAI has been presented in the table below:

Dautioulaus	Pre co regulato		Control period					
Particulars	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023	
Aero revenue with revised rates	27.17	36.83	72.10	119.31	140.42	165.51	184.49	
O&M expenses	-53.08	-62.95	-68.33	-72.15	-76.22	-80.56	-87.27	
Depreciation	-10.80	-11.07	-14.64	-19.64	-29.10	-81.71	-125.72	
Profit before tax	-36.71	-37.20	-10.86	27.53	35.11	3.24	-28.51	
Tax rate (%)	34.068	34.068	34.944	34.944	34.944	34.944	34.944	
Taxes	-	and tratter	317/32	9.62	12.27	1.13	_	

Table 48: Taxation as per AAI

Order No. 46/2018-19

urborts Econor Soulatory Authority

Authority's Examination at Consultation Stage:

- 14.3 The Authority observed that AAI had proposed 01/10/2018 as the implementation date of the new tariffs. The Authority proposes to revise the same to 01/01/2019. This had an impact on the projected aeronautical revenues, leading to difference in tax computation. After consultation process, the Authority has decided to further revise this date to 01/04/2019.
- 14.4 The Authority examined the depreciation rates considered by AAI and compared them with the rates prescribed in the Income Tax Act, 1961. The Authority observed that in case of two categories of assets, the depreciation rates proposed by AAI were not in line with the Income Tax Act. These have been presented in the table below.

	Up to FY 2018	Beyond	FY 2018
Asset category	Rate used by AAI Act	Rate used by AAI	Rate as per Income Tax Act
Runways, aprons and taxiways	15% 10%	15%	10%
Boundary wall- operational	15%	10%	10%

Table 49: Difference in depreciation rates for tax purposes

- 14.5 The Authority observed that the tax treatment of losses by AAI is not appropriate. AAI did not consider carry-forward of losses and their set –off in subsequent years of profit. In the period between FY 2016-17 and FY 2017-18, existing airport charges were levied. Further, in the first year of the control period, i.e. FY 2018-19, existing charges are being levied until the implementation of revised charges. The Authority observed that the existing charges led to aeronautical losses in these years. In its computation of tax expenses, AAI did not consider the benefit of these losses on taxable aeronautical profits of subsequent years, leading to increase in overall projected tax expenses. The Authority proposed to consider the carry forward and set-off of these losses.
- 14.6 The Authority observed that the tax rate considered by AAI for FY 2017 and FY 2018 was not correct. AAI used 34.068%. However, the correct tax rate would be 34.608% (30% plus 12% surcharge plus 3% cess). The Authority found the tax rate for FY 2019 and beyond to be correct. (30% plus 12% surcharge plus 4% cess).

The Authority observed that for FY 2017, the aeronautical revenues considered for computation of taxes did not include income from extension of watch hours. These amounted to INR 4.22 lakh. The Authority proposed to consider the same.

Regulatory Author der No. 46/2018-19

TENTERT 31/1878

14.7

2

- 14.8 The Authority proposed to consider the O&M expenses in accordance with Table 43 for computation of tax expense.
- 14.9 The Authority proposed to consider the capital expenditures for computation of depreciation in accordance with Table 15.
- 14.10 The projected aeronautical revenues for the control period are based on the charges proposed by AAI as part of its initial submission of Multi-Year Tariff Proposal.
- 14.11 After considering the above, the Authority had proposed the following tax expense during the 1^{st} control period.

Table 50: Tax expense	as per Authority	[,] – Consultation Paper	figures in INR Crores, except those	
Table 50: Tax expense	as per Authority	- Consultation Paper	"(figures in five crores, except those	

Pre control regulatory Particulars period		atory		С	ontrol peri	period		
	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023	
Aero revenue with revised rates	27.21	36.83	57.74	119.47	140.61	165.74	195.71	
O&M expenses	-52.77	-62.81	68.25	72.09	-76.16	-80.52	-85.19	
Depreciation	-10.50	-10.59	-14.26	-19.37	-26.83	-31.13	-73.99	
Profit before tax	-36.06	-36.57	-24.77	28.02	37.61	54.09	36.53	
Set-off of loss	-	-	-	28.02	37.61	31.77	-	
Profit before tax after set-off of loss	-36.06	-36.57	-24.77	-	-	22.32	36.53	
Tax rate (%)	34.61%	34.61%	34.94%	34.94%	34.94%	34.94%	34.94%	
Taxes	- 10	8 /4 -	-		- 11	7.80	12.77	
				1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		**************************************	••	

Stakeholder comments

14.12 Airports Authority of India (AAI):

As AAI is not filling tax return on standalone basis, the Authority is requested not to carry forward and set off the losses.

14.13 Federation of Indian Airlines (FIA):

Carry forward of losses prior to FY17 should be allowed to be set-off from future profits



FIA submits that as per Proposal 10 of CP, Authority has considered carry forward of losses for prior 2 years i.e. FY17 & FY18 only and setoff the carried forward losses in 3 years (INR 28.02 crores in FY20, INR 37.61 crores in FY21, INR 31.77 crores in FY22).

FIA submits that as per AERA Guidelines Para 5.5.1 which states "Taxation represents payments by the Airport Operator in respect of corporate tax on income from assets/ amenities/ facilities/ services taken into consideration for determination of Aggregate Revenue Requirement." The guidelines are clear that tax payments under Income Tax Act, 1961 will be considered for calculation of target revenue.

FIA submits that Para 5.5.2 of AERA Guidelines states "The Authority shall review forecast for corporate tax calculation with a view to ascertain inter alia the appropriateness of the allocation and the calculations thereof". However as per proviso to sub-section (ii) Section 72 of Income Tax Act, 1961, "if the loss cannot be wholly so set off, the amount of loss not so set off shall, in case the business so re-established, reconstructed or revived continues to be carried on by the assesse, be carried forward to the following assessment year and so on for seven assessment years immediately succeeding". Hence, business losses can be carried forward for 8 years and can be set off with profits in future years. Hence, the actual tax paid by the Company in control period shall be lower due to the set off of carry forward of losses prior to FY17.

FIA submits that losses for periods prior to FY17 (if any) that are allowed to carry forward as per Income Tax Act, 1961 should be considered while computing taxation in the first control period rather than leaving it for true up in the second control period. Also, the actual payment of income taxes should be considered for true up purposes.

AAI's reply to stakeholder comments

14.14 Regarding carry forward and set-off of losses, the Authority has shifted the control period from F.Y.2018-19 to F.Y 2022-23. The carry forward of losses is applicable during the control period and not prior period.

Authority's examination of stakeholders comments and AAI's submission to stakeholders comments

14.15 Authority's examination of comments by AAI:

The Authority has noted the comments made by AAI regarding taxes. AAI has suggested that no carry forward and set-off of aeronautical losses should be done while computing tax expense. The Authority has examined the matter in depth. The Authority's reasoning for considering the carry forward and set-off of aeronautical losses is briefly discussed below.

• AAI operates more than 100 airports. Some of these airports are profitable, while others are not. As a whole, AAI is profitable and pays corporate tax every year.

Order No. 46/2018-19

्रतन आविक Regulatory Author

- Specific to Bhubaneswar, the airport has been making losses up to FY 2017-18. After being categorized as a major airport, it has come under the ambit of the Authority for tariff determination.
- The Authority has considered BBI Airport on standalone basis, as it has done for other AAI airports as well. Treatment on standalone basis for computation of aeronautical taxes as a building block for determination of ARR means computing tax based on levels of profitability of these airports individually and not getting clouded by levels of profitability at the corporate or group level.
- For AAI airports that are profitable and under the ambit of the Authority for tariff determination purposes, the Authority computes aeronautical taxes as a building block on the basis of their levels of profits without any consideration to levels of profits (losses) at other AAI airports.
- Similarly for AAI airports that are making losses and under the ambit of the Authority for tariff determination purposes, the Authority computes aeronautical taxes as a building block on the basis of their levels of losses without any consideration to levels of profits (losses) at other AAI airports.
- Following the suggestion from AAI to not consider these losses will lead to an enhanced ARR for such loss making airports, leading to a double benefit to AAI, which is not logical, and is unjust to the users of the airport.

Due to above reasons, the Authority has decided to consider the carry forward and set-off of losses.

14.16 Authority's examination of comments by FIA:

The Authority has carefully examined the comments made by FIA regarding tax expense. FIA has suggested that aeronautical losses from earlier years (before FY 2016-17) should be considered for carry forward and set off from aeronautical profits during the control period.

The Authority does not agree with this view presented by FIA. Before FY 2016-17, the airport was not under the regulatory ambit of the Authority. Therefore, the Authority does not intend to compute the regulatory building blocks for years prior to FY 2016-17.

14.17 The Authority separately verified the depreciation rate for solar power plant for tax purposes. This was found to be 40%. Therefore, the

तन आध्यक

Andrie Regulatory Autho

Authority decides to change this rate to 40% instead of 10% considered during the consultation stage.

14.18 Based on the revised components of aeronautical income, the Authority computed the tax expense. This has been presented in the table below.

	Pre co regulator	Control period					
Particulars	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023
Aero revenue with revised rates	27.2	37.3	45.5	143.6	172.8	208.0	250.8
O&M expenses	-52.8	-62.8	-65.4	-69.7	-74.2	-79.1	-84.4
Depreciation	-10.5	-10,6	-14.3	-23.5	-32.7	-33.2	-67.2
Profit before tax	-36.1	-36.1	-34.1	50.4	65.8	95.7	99.2
Set-off of loss	0.0	0.0	0.0	50.4	55.9	0.0	0.0
Profit before tax after set-off of loss	-36.1	-36.1	-34.1	0.0	9.9	95.7	99.2
Tax rate (%)	34.61%	34.61%	34.94 %	34.94 %	34.94 %	34.94 %	34.94 <u>%</u>
Taxes	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	3.5	33.4	34.6

Table 51: Tax expense considered by the Authority - Final (figures in INR crores)

सत्यमव जयते

Decision No. 12: Regarding taxation expense

12.a. The Authority decides to consider the tax expense as per Table 51.



15. True-up

- 15.1 As explained in Chapter 3 of this Order, the Authority considered the Aggregate Revenue Requirement, or ARR, for the first two years, i.e. FY 2016-17 and FY 2017-18. This ARR would be compared with the actual aeronautical revenues earned by AAI. Any shortfall (or surplus) would be added (true-up) to the ARR for the five-year control period.
- 15.2 AAI submitted a computation of true-up based on actual figures of FY 2016-17 and FY 2017-18
- 15.3 The shortfall has been compounded up to 1st April, 2019. The true-up computation proposed by AAI has been presented in the table below.

Particulars	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019
ARR	70.37	79.87	
Actual aero revenues	27.21	36.83	
Shortfall	43.16	43.04	
Future value factor at 14%	1.30	1.14	
Future value of shortfall at 14%	पत्यमेव जयते		105.16

Table 52: True up calculation as per AAI (Figures in INR crores)

Authority's Examination at Consultation Stage:

15.4 The Authority proposed to revise the above computation on the basis of its proposals of various regulatory building blocks discussed in this paper. Accordingly, the Authority's computation of true-up is presented in the table below.

Particulars			F	Y 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019
ARR				71.35	80.69	
Actual aero revenues		8		27.21	36.83	
Shortfall				44.14	43.87	
Future value factor at 14%	1990 - 1990.		12	1.30	1.14	
Future value of shortfall	at 14%		_	······································		107.3

Table 53: True up calculation as per the Authority - Consultation Paper (Figures in INR crores)

- 15.5 Based on the material before it and the analysis, the Authority had proposed to consider the true up computation as per Table 53.
- 15.6 After considering the changes in aeronautical revenues (refer Chapter 18), the Authority changed the true up computation, as presented in the table below.

्रियतन आशिक Table \$4: True up calculation as per the A	uthority – Consultation	Paper (Figures i	n INR crores)
Particulars	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019
Order No. 46/2018-19			Page 90

Future value of shortfall at 14%			104.47
Future value factor at 14%	1.30	1.14	
Shortfali	42.95	42.68	
Actual aero revenues	28.40	38.01	
ARR	71.35	80.69	

15.7 The Authority did not receive any comments regarding computation of True-up. During the consultation, the Authority noticed that the cargo operations were with AAI for FY 2016-17 before being handed over to AAICLAS from FY 2017-18 onwards. The Authority has accordingly included the ARR and revenue from cargo operations in its calculation of True-up for FY 2016-17 and outlined its approach in 17.11.5. Therefore, after revising the regulatory building blocks after consultation with stakeholders as per the separate chapters discussed in this Order, the Authority has decided the following true-up, as presented in the table below.

Particulars		FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019
ARR		72.03	80.69	
Actual aero revenues	स्टाके	28.41	37.30	
Shortfall		43.63	43.39	
Future value factor at 14%				
Future value of shortfall at 149	 /o			106.17

Decision No. 13: Regarding true-up

The Authority decides to consider 13.a. the true up calculations as per Table 55. 83



16. Aggregate Revenue Requirement for the 1st control period

- 16.1 AAI has submitted Aggregate Revenue Requirement (ARR) and yield per passenger (Y) for the 1st control period as per the regulatory building blocks discussed.
- 16.2 All cash flows are assumed to occur at the end of the year. Further, all cash flows are discounted to 1st April, 2019.

C.S.W.G.

16.3 The summary of ARR and Yield has been presented in the table below.

		FY	FY	FY	FY
Particulars	FY 2019	2020	2021	2022	2023
Average RAB (INR crores)	131.73	175.25	255.48	768.68	1229.89
Fair Rate of Return	14%	14%	14%	14%	14%
Return on average RAB (INR crores)	18.44	24.54	35.77	107.61	172.19
O&M expenses (INR crores)	68,33	72.15	76.22	80.56	87.27
Depreciation (INR crores)	13.91	17.54	21.92	39.94	54.60
Tax expense (INR crores)	nkalmarih kalaginatis_ u	9.62	12.27	1.13	0.00
Less: 30% NAR (INR crores)	-7.42	8.18	-8.95	-9.80	-11.49
ARR per year (INR crores)	93.25	115.66	137.22	219.45	302.56
Add: True up	105.16				
PV of ARR based @14% (INR crores)	198.41	101.46	105.58	148.12	179.14
Total present value of ARR (INR cr.)	732.72	17 Mar.			
Total traffic	26,043,862	s Anna San			
Yield per passenger (Y) (INR)	281.34		<u>_yı</u>	<u> . </u>	

Table 56: ARR and Yield as per AAL - Consultation Paper

Authority's Examination:

- 16.4 The Authority decides to consider the average RAB in accordance with Table 29.
- 16.5 The Authority decides to consider the FRoR at 14%.
- 16.6 The Authority decides to consider the O&M expenses as per Table 46.
- 16.7 The Authority decides to consider the depreciation expense as per Table 26.

16.8 The Authority decides to consider the tax expense as per Table 51.

The Authority decides to consider the non-aeronautical revenue as per Table 35.

Order No. 46/2018-19

16\9

R.

The Regulatory put

- 16.10 The Authority decides to consider the total traffic in accordance with Table 7.
- 16.11 The Authority did not receive any comments regarding computation of ARR. Therefore, after revising the regulatory building blocks after consultation with stakeholders as per the separate chapters discussed in this Order, the Authority has decided the following ARR and Yield, as presented in the table below.

ANT STATE

Table 57: Al	RR and Yield as	ber Authority	- Final		
Particulars	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023
Average RAB (INR crores)	129.15	168.41	239.31	288.64	649.81
Fair Rate of Return	14%	14%	14%	14%	14%
Return on average RAB (INR crores)	18.08	23.58	33.50	40.41	90.97
O&M expenses (INR crores)	65.41	69.68	74.24	79.13	84.40
Depreciation (INR crores)	13.85	16.03	19.73	22.26	41.67
Tax expense (INR crores)	0.00	0.00	3.46	33.43	34.65
Less: 30% NAR (INR crores)	-10.99	-11.99	-13.04	-14.20	-15.60
ARR per year (INR crores)	86.35	97.30	117.90	161.03	236.08
Add: True up	106.17				
PV of ARR based @14% (INR crores)	स्ट\$6,35	रिंह.35	90.72	108.69	139.78
Total present value of ARR (INR cr.)	617.06				
Total traffic	31,226,363				
Yield per passenger (Y) (INR)	197.61				

16.12 It is to be noted that the above yield is based on total passengers expected at the airport, i.e., departing as well as arriving. The yield per departing passenger in similar terms would be twice of this yield as per the above table, i.e. INR 395.

Decision No. 14: Regarding Aggregate Revenue Requirement

14.a. The Authority decides to consider the ARR and Yield for the 1st control period in accordance with Table 57.



17. Annual Tariff Proposal

- 17.1 As part of the Multi-year Tariff proposal, AAI submitted a tariff card for all five years of the first control period. This tariff card has been reproduced in this chapter. The Authority examined AAI's Multi-year Tariff Proposal, along with all regulatory building blocks. The Authority's examination has been discussed in this Order in the previous chapters. AAI has not revised the tariff card after Authority's examination.
- 17.2 AAI has proposed the implementation date of new tariffs from 01/10/2018. The Authority has proposed to revise the implementation date to 01/01/2019. After consultation with stakeholders, the Authority has further revised this date to **01/04/2019**.
- 17.3 The tariff card proposed for the first control period has been reproduced here. For purposes of comparison, the existing aeronautical charges have been provided along with each charge.

I) LANDING CHARGES

Table 58: Landing charges proposed for the first control period

Weight of the Aircraft	Domestic rate per landing (INR)	International rate per landing (INR)
Up to 25 MT	160 Per MT	240 Per MT
Above 25 MT up to 50 MT	4,000+280 per MT in	6,000+450 per MT in
	excess of 25 MT	excess of 25 MT
Above 50 MT up to 100	11,000+320 per MT in	17,250+520 per MT in
	excess of 50 MT	excess of 50 MT
Above 100 MT to 200 MT	27,000+390 per MT in excess of 100 MT	43,250+600 per MT in
	excess of 100 MT	excess of 100 MT
Above 200 MT		1,03,250+720 per MT in
	excess of 200 MT	excess of 200 MT

Table 59	: Existing	landing	charges

Weight of Aircraft	Domestic flights	International flights
Up to 10 MT	INR 67.10 per MT	INR 141 per MT
Above 10 MT up to 20 MT	INR 671 plus INR 117.70 per MT in excess of 10 MT	INR 1,410 plus INR 207.10 per MT in excess of 10 MT
Above 20 MT up to 50 MT	INR 1,848 plus INR 231 per MT in excess of 20 MT	INR 3,481 plus INR 409.10 per MT in excess of 20 MT
Above 50 MT up to 100 MT	NA	INR 15,754 plus INR 477.80 per MT in excess of 50 MT
Over 100 MT	NA	INR 39,644 plus INR 545.10 per MT in excess of 100 MT

AND STRATES FILTER

Biologic Regulatory Author

< 1770 - 1

No landing charges shall be payable in respect of a) aircraft with a maximum certified capacity of less than 80 seats, being operated by

rder No. 46/2018-19

domestic schedule operators at airport, b) helicopters of all types, and c) DGCA approved Flying school/flying training institute aircrafts.

- 17.3.2 All domestic legs of international routes flown by Indian operators will be treated as domestic flights as far as landing charges is concerned, irrespective of flight number assigned to such flights.
- 17.3.3 Charges shall be calculated on the basis of nearest MT (i.e. 1000 kg).
- 17.3.4 Flights operating under Regional connectivity scheme will be completely exempted from Landing charges from the date of the scheme is operationalized by GOT.

II) PARKING AND HOUSING CHARGES

Weight of the Aircraft	Parking Charges Rates per Hour (in INR)	Housing Charges Rates per Hour (in INR)
Up to 25 MT	3.00 Per Hour Per MT	6.00 Per Hour Per MT
Above 25 MT up to 50 MT	75.00+4.00 per Hour per MT in excess of 25 MT	150.00+8.00 per MT per Hour in excess of 25 MT
Above 50 MT up to 100	175.00+8.00 per MF per Hour in excess of 50 MT	350.00+16.00 per MT per Hour in excess of 50 MT
Above 100 MT to 200 MT	575.00+10.00 per MT per Hours in excess of 100 MT	1150.00+20.00 per MT per Hours in excess of 100 MT
Above 200 MT	1575.00+11.00 per MT per Hours in excess of 200 MT	3150.00+22.00 per MT per Hours in excess of 200 MT

Table 60: Parking and housing charges proposed for the first control period

Table 61: Existing parking, housing and night parking charges

Weight of Aircraft	Domestic flights	International flights
Housing charges:		
Up to 40 MT	INR 3.50 per hour per MT	INR 4.10 per hour per MT
Above 40 MT up to 100 MT	INR 140 plus INR 6.80 per hour per MT in excess of 40 MT	INR 164 plus INR 7.90 per hour per MT in excess of 40 MT
Above 100 MT	INR 548 plus INR 10.30 per hour per MT in excess of 100 MT	INR 638 plus INR 11.90 per hour per MT in excess of 100 MT
Parking charges:		
Up to 40 MT	INR 1.80 per hour per MT	TNR 2.10 per hour per MT



Weight of Aircraft	Domestic flights	International flights
Above 40 MT up to 100 MT	INR 72 plus INR 3.40 per hour per MT in excess of 40 MT	INR 84 plus INR 3.90 per hour per MT in excess of 40 MT
Above 100 MT	INR 276 plus INR 5.20 per hour per MT in excess of 100 MT	INR 318 plus INR 6.00 per hour per MT in excess of 100 MT

Night parking charges (between 2200 hours and 0600 hours):

Up to 40 MT		
001040101	INR 0.90 per hour per MT	INR 1.10 per hour per MT
	INR 36 plus INR 1,70 per hour per MT in excess of 40 MT	INR 44 plus INR 2.00 per hour per MT in excess of 40 MT
Above 100 MT	INR 138 plus INR 2.60 per hour per MT in excess of 100 MT	INR 164 plus INR 3.00 per hour per MT in excess of 100 MT

- No parking charges shall be levied for the first two hours. While 17.3.5 calculating free parking period, standard time of 15 minutes shall be added on account of time taken between touch down time and actual parking time on the parking stand. Another standard time of 15 minutes shall be added on account of taxing time of aircraft from parking stand to take off point. These periods shall be applicable for each aircraft irrespective of actual time taken in the movement of aircraft after landing and before take-off.
- 17.3.6 For calculating chargeable parking time, part of an hour shall be rounded off to the nearest hour.
- 17.3.7 Charges shall be calculated on the basis of nearest MT.
- Charges for each period parking shall be rounded off to nearest 17.3.8 rupee.
- 17.3.9 At the in-contact stands and open stands, after free parking, for the next two hours normal parking charges shall be levied. After this period, the charges shall be double the normal parking charges.
- 17.3.10 It is proposed to waive off the night parking charges in principle for all domestic scheduled operators at Bhubaneshwar Airport if the CALLER LITE ALLER AND State Government has brought the rate of tax (VAT) on ATF < 5%. The above waiver of night parking charges (between 2200 hrs. to 0600 hrs.) will be made applicable from the date of implementation Resultation Autornation No. 46/2018-19 of \leq 5% tax on ATF by the State Govt. In the event of upward revision in the tax rate of ATF by the State Govt., the relief of free

night parking charges will also be deemed to be withdrawn for all the airports within the jurisdiction of the said State.

17.3.11 Tariff for flights operating under Regional Connectivity Scheme will be governed by AIC issued on this subject by DGCA.

III) THROUGHPUT CHARGES

Proposed Rate Per KL (IN INR)	Country
322.52	

IV) PASSENGER SERVICE FEE (PSF) - FACILITATION/USER DEVELOPMENT FEES (UDF)

Passenger	Existing rate – PSF (FC) - INR per embarking passenger	Proposed rate – UDF - INR per embarking passenger	
Domestic	77	400	
International Passenger	89	450	

Note:

- At consultation stage, the Authority had proposed a UDF of INR 350 for domestic passengers and INR 400 for international passengers. This was leading to a shortfall of INR 112 crores. Considering all changes made to the regulatory building blocks after stakeholder consultation stage, such UDF would have led to a shortfall of approximately INR 54 crores. The Authority acknowledges that such a shortfall is at a higher side, and must be brought down in the interests of the airport operator. With a revised UDF of INR 400 for domestic passengers and INR 450 for international passengers, the shortfall works out at INR 21.45 crores.
- PSF (FC) is proposed to be subsumed under UDF. PSF (SC) would be applicable as prescribed by the Ministry of Civil Aviation.
- 17.3.12 Collection charges: If the payment is made within 15 days of receipt of invoice then collection charges at INR 5 per departing passenger shall be paid by AAI. No collection charges shall be paid in case the airline fails to pay the UDF invoice to AAI within the credit period of 15 days or in case of any part payment. To be eligible to claim this collection charges, the airlines should have no overdue on any account with AAI. Wherever collection charges are payable the amount shall be settled within 15 days.

17.3.13 No collection charges are payable to casual operator/non-scheduled operators.

For conversion of UDF in foreign currency, the RBI reference conversion rate as on the last day of the previous month for tickets

Order No. 46/2018-19

myts EC

13. Ho Reputatory Author

issued in the 1st fortnight and rate as on 15th of the month for tickets issued in the 2nd fortnight shall be adopted.

17.3.15 Revised UDF charges will be applicable on tickets issued on or after 01/04/2019.

V) EXEMPTION FROM LEVY AND COLLECTION FROM UDF AT THE AIRPORTS

The Ministry of Civil Aviation, Govt. of India vide order no. AV.16011/002/2008-AAI dated 30.11.2011 has directed AAI to exempt the following categories of persons from levy and collection of UDF

- 17.3.16 Children (under age of 2 years),
- 17.3.17 Holders of Diplomatic Passport,
- 17.3.18 Airlines crew on duty including sky marshals & airline crew on board for the particular flight only (this would not include Dead Head Crew, or ground personnel),
- 17.3.19 Persons travelling on official duty on aircraft operated by Indian Armed Forces,

सत्यमेव जयते

- 17.3.20 Persons traveling on official duty for United Nations Peace Keeping Missions,
- 17.3.21 Transit/transfer passengers (this exemption may be granted to all the passengers transiting up to 24 hours. A passenger is treated in transit only if onward travel journey is within 24 hours from arrival into airport and is part of the same ticket. In case two separate tickets are issued, it would not be treated as transit passenger), and
- 17.3.22 Passengers departing from the Indian airports due to involuntary re-routing i.e. technical problems or weather conditions.

VI) GENERAL CONDITION:

All the above Charges are excluding GST. GST at the applicable rates are payable in addition to above charges.

Aeronautical revenue under the proposed tariff card:

17.2 17.2 17.2 17.2 17.2 17.2 17.2 17.2 No. 46/2018-19

17.3.23 The Authority observed that with the proposed tariff card, AAI will incur a shortfall of INR 112.92 crores. This has been further detailed below. The Authority proposed that any shortfall or surplus in aeronautical revenues for the 1st control period based on proposed tariffs by AAI to be considered while determining aeronautical tariffs for the 2^{nd} control period.

Table 62: Computation of shortfall or surplus from proposed aeronautical charges (in INR crores) – Consultation Paper

Consultation Paper						
Particulars	FY 2019 - up to 31/12/18	FY 2019 - from 01/01/19	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023
Total PV of ARR including true up	611.40					
Landing charges:						
Domestic	14.16	6.18	29.57	35.37	42.30	50.59
International	0.75	0.32	1.78	2.50	3.50	4.92
Parking and housing c	harges:	and the same of				
Domestic	0.09	0.06	0.31	0.37	0.44	0.52
International	0.00	0.00	0.01	0.02	0.02	0.03
Fuel Throughput charges	2.12	0,78	3.59	4.15	4.81	5.58
Ground handling charges	0.74	0.25	1.14	1.32	1.53	1.78
Land lease - Oil companies	1.07	0.36	1.54	1.66	. 1.78	1.91
Land lease - Ground Handling	0.08	0.03	0.11	0.12	0.13	0.14
CUTE charges	2.37	0,79	3.69	4.31	5.03	5.89
Total - before UDF	21.39	8.76	41.74	49.81	59.56	71.37
PV factor	1.00	1.00	0.88	0.77	0.67	0.59
PV of above	21.39	2.76	36.62	38.33	40.20	42.26
Σ PV of above	187.55					
Shortfall before UDF	423.85					
UDF:						
Domestic	10.58	16.03	74.39	86.29	100.09	116.11
International	0.36	0.62	3.34	4.51	6.09	8.23
PV of UDF	10.94	16.65	68.18	69.87	71.67	73.62
Σ PV of UDF	310.93					
Shortfall	112.92					

Authority's Examination at Consultation Stage:

17.4 The Authority had proposed to accept Annual Tariff Proposals as given in Section 17.3 for determination of tariff during 1st control period as the present value of proposed revenues by AAI was lower than the present value of ARR as per Authority. The Authority had proposed that any shortfall or surplus in revenues for the 1st control period based on proposed tariffs by AAI would be considered while determining aeronautical tariffs for the 2nd control period.

Stakeholder comments

Federation of Indian Airlines (FIA):

Authority has not discussed the means to recover shortfall in aeronautical revenue (18% of ARR). Shortfall stems from acceptance of AAI's submission in all building blocks leading to

F.N.o. 46/2018-19

higher ARR. If shortfall is met through increase in tariffs, viability and affordability of the airport for airlines and passengers will be

ARR and Yield as per Authority

Table #41 or	Page 45	of CP No.	24/2018-19
--------------	---------	-----------	------------

Table	#41 on Page 45 of CP No. 24/2018-19						INR crores	
5. N(i)	Particulars	FY 19	F¥20	FY21	FY22	FY23	Total	% of ARR
А	Average RAB	129.15	172.74	248.26	296.37	721.14		
В	Fair Rate of Return	14%.	14% -	14%	14%	14%		
C.	Return on average RAB	18.08	24.18	34.76	41.49	100.96	219.47	32%
D	O&M expenses	68.25	72.09	76.16	80.57	85.19	382.21	56%
Ε	Depreciation	13.85	17,47	22.67	25.26	48.49	127.74	19%
F	Tax expense				7.80	12.77	20.57	3%
G	Subtotal [C+D+E+F]	100.18	. 113.74	133.59	155.07	247.41	749.99	110%
н	Less: 30% NAR	(10.94)	(11.91)	(12.91)	(14.02)	(15.35)	(65.12)	(10%)
ł	Aggregate Revenue Requirement (ARR) [G+H]	89.24	101.84	120.68	141.05	232.08	684.87	100%
J	Add: True up	107,37						
к	PV of ARR based @14%	<u> </u>	34-31	92.86	95.20	137.41	611.40	
L	PV of Aeronautical revenues	\$7.74	104.80	108.20	111.87	11,5.88	498.49	
м	Shortfall (L-K)	(138.87)	15.47	15.34	16.67	(21.53)	(112.91)	(18%)
И	Total traffic [in millions]	3:79	4,42	5.16	6.02	7.05	26.43	
0	Yield per passenger (Y) (INR) ((K/N)*10)	519,00	202.21	180.08	158.03	195.01	23 1.3 1	
Ρ	Shortfall per passenger (Y) (INR) ((M/N)*10)	(366,58)	35.02	29,76	27.67	(30.55)	(42.72)	,

hampered.

सत्यमेव जयते

FIA submits that as per Proposal 12 of the CP, Authority has considered the ARR and its resultant shortfall of INR 112.91 crores. This shortfall represents 18% of the ARR (refer table below).

The Authority has not discussed or suggested the means to recover such a significant shortfall. FIA submits that if the shortfall of 18%, is met through increase in tariffs, viability and affordability of airport for airlines and passengers will be significantly hampered. u. M. VII. M. M.

FIA further submits that the one of the key reasons of shortfall is acceptance of AAI's submission in all building blocks like higher RAB, higher FRoR, operating expenditure, and lower non-aero revenue. All such factors have led to a higher ARR. If the current shortfall is to be recovered from airlines and passengers through increase in tariffs, the rates will be higher than that of other comparable airports.



Also, FIA has noted that revenue from cargo operations and air navigation services have not been formed part of tariff proposal, which has led to an increase in shortfall during control period. FIA has conducted analysis on each of the building blocks in subsequent issues mentioned below.

FIA submits that the Authority should expressly comment about the measures to contain this shortfall by adjusting the current building blocks as it will impact the viability and affordability of BBI Airport vis.-a-vis. tariffs, for airlines and passengers.

17.5.2 Tariff card for 1st control period – increase in charges borne by airlines and UDF as proposed by BBI airport has been accepted by the Authority. Proposed percentage increase has not been mentioned in CP. Authority should consider 17.9% y-o-y growth rate for domestic passengers, other components of ARR to revaluate increase in charges.

FIA noted that the Authority has accepted the tariffs proposed by AAI. However, Authority has not mentioned the percentage increase in proposed tariff versus existing tariffs.

Further, the Authority has also proposed INR 350 as UDF per domestic and INR 400 per international embarking passenger, an increase of 133% from the existing rate of INR 150 per domestic passenger. In this regard, FIA submits that Authority should reduce the proposed rates of UDF, bearing in mind the YoY growth rate of 17.7% for domestic passengers while computing aeronautical tariffs.

Further, as per "Charges for airport services (major / non major airports) effective from 1 April 2017" as issued by AAI, it was noted that existing tariff rates at BBI Airport are based on the following slabs: (i) up to 40 MT, (ii) Above 40MT up to 100MT and (iii) Above 100MT. Since, weight slabs mentioned for existing charges as per AAI tariff card are different from the ones mentioned in Schedule of charges on Page 46-49 of the CP and no bridge has been provided between these slabs, FIA requests the Authority to substantiate the percentage increase for first control period over the existing tariff rates.

FIA submits that the Authority ought to confirm applicable tariff for CUTE charges. Further, the Authority should consider 17.9% YoY growth rate for domestic passengers while computing the said charges.

FIA also submits that to give due consideration to other issues highlighted by FIA in the present submission, while proposing a new tariff card in the Order.

17.5.3 FIA submits that Authority should consider the revenue from cargo services while determining tariff for first control period & propose a new tariff card accordingly.

Business Aircraft Operators Association (BAOA):



Authority's order may please elaborate the rationale behind authorising the amount of INR 322.52 as FTC, as to the service being provided by airport operator for levying charge and, how it has been calculated to be INR 322.52 per KL. Further, Authority may please provide for Airport Operator to levy the charge directly to the aircraft operator,

uplifting ATF, rather than FTC being charged thorough the Fuel Supplier Company.

17.7 Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited (HPCL):

The Authority has proposed Throughput charges as INR 322.53 per KL. We shall abide by the decision taken by the Authority. However, any revision in Fuel Throughput Charges should be approved on prospective basis only.

AAI's reply to stakeholder comments

17.8 AAI's reply to comments by FIA:

- 17.8.1Revenue from cargo operations cannot be the part of tariff proposal as the cargo operations have been hived off to AAICLAS, and air navigation services cannot be formed part of tariff proposal as the same is determined by MoCA.
- 17.8.2AAI has proposed increase in Parking and Housing charges based on as average increase in parking/housing charges and same rate has been proposed for Domestic and International flights.
- 17.8.3As per agreement with M/s SITA, the CUTE charges payable by M/s SITA are Rs.17.55 per passenger.

17.9 AAI's reply to comments by BAOA:

Throughput Charges are akin to royalty charges and as per agreement between the airport operator and the oil companies, these are services and come under GST.

17.10 AAI's reply to comments by HPCL:

AAI agrees with the comments of HPCL and accordingly the new rates will be made applicable from a prospective date by issuance of AIC.

Authority's examination of stakeholders comments and AAI's submission to stakeholders comments

17.11 Authority's reply to comments by FIA:

- 17.11.1 **Recovery of shortfall:** The Authority hereby clarifies that the shortfall will be carried forward to the second control period. The compounded value of this shortfall will be considered in computation of Aggregate Revenue Requirement for the 2nd control period.
- 17.11.2 **Comparison with existing tariff card:** The Authority acknowledges that a comparison with existing tariff card of

Order No. 46/2018-19



Bhubaneswar Airport was not provided in the Consultation Paper. Such a comparison has now been provided in this Order.

- 17.11.3 **Cargo revenues:** The Authority acknowledges that monies earned by AAI from AAICLAS for transfer of cargo business at Bhubaneswar Airport should be accounted for in this Order. The Authority accordingly asked AAI for agreement between AAICLAS and AAI for such details in terms of revenue share / other nature of payments to be made by AAICLAS to AAI in lieu of transfer of cargo business. AAI confirmed that the agreement is in progress, and as of now, there are no payments exchanged between the two entities. The Authority is of the view that an at-arms-length business transaction would involve monies to be paid by AATCLAS to AAT in lieu of transfer of business and assets thereof. Therefore, the Authority decides to consider notional revenue from AAICLAS to be included in projected revenue for AAI at Bhubaneswar Airport. The Authority will true this up once actual details are shared by AAI at the time of determination of aeronautical tariff for Bhubaneswar Airport for the next Control Period.
- 17.11.4 To estimate this notional revenue from AAICLAS to AAI for Bhubaneswar Airport, the Authority has considered the past trend in revenue from cargo operations at Bhubaneswar Airport and sought this information from AAI. AAI informed that revenue from cargo operations accrued to AAICLAS from FY 2017-18 onwards. Revenue from cargo operations were as follows:

Table 63: Revenue from cargo operations at Bhubaneswar Airport- Final (in INR crores)

	FY 2017#	FY 2018	FY 2019*
(INR crores)	1.20	1.57	1.80
% per annum growth rate		31%	15%
CAGR			23%
* - Projected for FY 2019 based o		19	

Revenue for FY 2017 accrued to AAI

The Authority has considered the CAGR mentioned in Table 63 as the estimated growth in revenue from cargo operations at Bhubaneswar airport and considered 30% of this estimated revenue as the notional revenue from AAICLAS to AAI. The computation of this has been presented below:

£00 (C)

Table 64: Notional revenue from AAICLAS- Final (in INR crores)

Notional revenue from AAICLAS	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023
Estimated revenue from cargo operations (INR crores)	1.57	1.80	2.21	2.72	3.35	4.12
Notional revenue from AAICLAS to AAI (@ 30%)	0.47	0.54	- 317/9,66	0.82	• 1.00	1.24



The Authority decides to treat the above notional revenue as aeronautical revenue.

17.11.5 The Authority observed that management of cargo operations was transferred to AAICLAS from FY18. Because for FY 17, these operations were still under AAI, ARR for cargo operations for FY 17 has been calculated separately and added to its total ARR. The calculation of ARR for cargo operations has been presented in the table below.

Cargo ARR Calculations		FY 17
Average RAB (INR crores)		_
Fair Rate of Return		14%
Return on average RAB (INR crores)		-
O&M expenses (INR crores)		0.42
Depreciation (INR crores)		
Tax expense (INR crores)		0.27
ARR (INR crores)	The first of the second se	0.69

Table 65: Computation of ARR for Cargo Operations- Final (in INR crores)

17.11.6 The ARR and revenue for cargo operations have been included in True-up calculations shown in section 15.7.

17.12 Authority's reply to comments by BAOA:

The Authority has noted the comments from BAOA. The Authority has discussed the matter of FTC a number of times in the past. FTC is a result of an agreement between the airport operator and the oil marketing companies providing fuel to the aircraft at the airport. The contractual terms, including the charges to be exchanged, are discussed and agreed between the two parties and the Authority does not intend to interfere in the same. Therefore, the Authority ensures that such charges lead to aeronautical revenues that are within the ARR.

17.13 Authority's reply to comments by HPCL:

The Authority has noted the comments from HPCL. The Authority clarifies that all tariff proposed will be on prospective basis only.

17.14 Based on revised regulatory building blocks, ARR, yield and aeronautical tariffs, the Authority computed the projected aeronautical revenues. These are presented in the table below.

,				`
	crores)			
Particulars	FY 2019 FY 2020	FY 2021	FY 2022	FY 2023
Total PV of ARR including true up	617.064 7 31/4			

Regulatory Authorit

subotts

Table 66: Final computation of shortfall or surplus from proposed aeronautical charges (in INR

Order No. 46/2018-19

Landing charges:

Domestic	18.88	29.57	35.37	42.30	50.59
International	1.01	1.78	2.50	3.50	4.92
Parking and housing charges:					
Domestic	0.12	0.31	0.37	0.44	0.52
International	0.00	0.01	0.02	0.02	0.03
Fuel Throughput charges	2.82	3.59	4.15	4.81	5.58
Ground handling charges	0.99	1.14	1.32	1.53	1.78
Land lease - Oil companies	1.43	1.54	1.66	1.78	1.91
Land lease - Ground Handling	0.10	0.11	0.12	0.13	0.14
CUTE charges	3.65	4.39	5.29	6.38	7.69
Notional revenue from AAICLAS to AAI	0.54	0,66	0.81	0.99	1.22
Total - before UDF	29,54	43.10	51.60	61.89	74.39
PV factor	1.00	0.88	0.77	0.67	0.59
PV of above	29.54	37.81	39.71	41.78	44.05
Σ PV of above	192.88				<u> </u>
Shortfall before UDF	424.19	()) .			
UDF:	ali kila ili	19 Jac	_		•
Domestic	15.52	96.73	116.08	139.30	167.16
International	0.48	<u>.</u> 3.76	5.08	6.85	9.25
PV of UDF	15.99	88.15	93.23	98.65	104.45
Σ PV of UDF	400.47	ni si kani			
Shortfall	23.72	N/~4(1			

- 17.15 The Authority observed that with the revised tariff card and projections considered in this Order with respect to traffic, non-aeronautical revenues, operating expenses and proposed asset additions, AAI will incur a shortfall of INR 23.86 crores. The Authority is of the view to carry this shortfall forward into the next Control Period taking into consideration the projected profitability of the airport (as presented in Table 51: Tax expense considered by the Authority) and the need to have stability in tariff regime.
- 17.16 The Authority further recognizes that variation between projections considered in this Order and the actuals, as these may turn out to be during the first control period, will lead to a different value of shortfall. Hence the Authority will suitably consider this value at the time of determination of aeronautical tariffs for the second control period adjusting for actuals during the first control period. The Authority decides to consider such shortfall or surplus in aeronautical revenues for the 1st control period based on proposed tariffs by AAI while determining aeronautical tariffs for the 2nd control period.

Decision No. 15: Regarding tariff rate card

15.a. To fix the tariff for 1st Control Period as per Tariff Card given in Annexure-1. The Authority decides to consider the projected shortfall in aeronautical revenues for the 1st control period while determining

Order No. 46/2018-19



aeronautical tariffs for the 2nd control period based on actuals during the 1st control period and accordingly required true-ups.

18. Annual Compliance Statement

- 18.1 The Airport Guidelines issued by the Authority have laid down the error correction mechanism with reference to the adjustment to the Estimated Maximum Allowed Yield per passenger, calculated using the error correction term of Tariff Year t-2 and the compounding factor. The error correction calculated as per the Airport Guidelines indicated the quantum of over-recovery or under-recovery due to increase or decrease respectively of the Actual Yield per passenger with respect to Actual Maximum Allowed Yield per passenger in the Tariff Year.
- 18.2 Accordingly, any recovery / over recovery during the first control period will be accounted for in the second control period.
- 18.3 Further, the Authority has noted that in view of all the corrections/truing up to be carried out at the end of the control period, Bhubaneswar Airport may submit Annual Compliance Statements for the tariff years FY 2018-19 to FY 2022-23 of the first control period.

Decision No. 16: Regarding Annual Compliance

 16.a. Bhubaneswar Airport shall submit the Annual Compliance Statements as per the Guidelines for all the tariff years from FY 2018-19 to FY 2022-23 of the first control period along with the MYTP for the next Control Period.



19. Summary of Decisions

Decision No. 1: Methodology for Tariff Determination	11
Decision No. 2: Regarding consideration of ANS and AAICLAS operations	14
Decision No. 3: Regarding traffic forecast	21
Decision No. 4: Regarding allocation of assets between aeronautical and non- aeronautical	31
Decision No. 5: Regarding Initial Regulatory Asset Base	33
Decision No. 6: Regarding capital expenditure	47
Decision No. 7: Regarding depreciation	57
Decision No. 8: Regarding average Regulatory Asset Base	59
Decision No. 9: Regarding Fair Rate of Return	60
Decision No. 10: Regarding non-aeronautical revenue	70
Decision No. 11: Regarding Operating and Maintenance expenses	83
Decision No. 12: Regarding taxation expense	89
Decision No. 13: Regarding true-up	91
Decision No. 14: Regarding Aggregate Revenue Requirement	93
Decision No. 15: Regarding tariff rate card1	105
Decision No. 16: Regarding Annual Compliance 1	106





20. Order

20.1 In exercise of power conferred by section 13(1)(a) of the AERA Act, 2008 and based on the above decisions, the Authority hereby determines the aeronautical tariffs to be levied at Bhubaneswar Airport for the First Control Period from 01.04.2018 to 31.03.2023 effective from 01.04.2019 and the rate card so arrived at has been attached as Annexure 1 to the Order . The UDF rates indicated in the tariff card are also in accordance with section B(1)(b) read with rule 89 of the Aircraft Rules, 1937. The rates approved herein are the ceiling rates, exclusive of taxes if any.



To,

Airports Authority of India, Rajiv Gandhi Bhavan, Safdarjung Airport,

New Delhi - 110003



Order No. 46/2018-19

AGM (F)

Annexure 1 – Tariff card for Bhubaneswar Airport for the 1st **Control Period**

1. Landing charges:

Weight of the Aircraft	Domestic rate per landing (INR)	International rate per landing (INR)		
Up to 25 MT	160 Per MT	240 Per MT		
Above 25 MT up to 50 MT	4,000+280 per MT in excess of 25 MT	6,000+450 per MT in excess of 25 MT		
Above 50 MT up to 100	11,000+320 per MT in excess of 50 MT	17,250+520 per MT in excess of 50 MT		
Above 100 MT to 200 MT	27,000+390 per MF in excess of 100 MT	43,250+600 per MT in excess of 100 MT		
Above 200 MT	66,000+440 per MT in excess of 200 MT	1,03,250+720 per MT in excess of 200 MT		

- No landing charges shall be payable in respect of a) aircraft with a . maximum certified capacity of less than 80 seats, being operated by domestic schedule operators at airport, b) helicopters of all types, and c) DGCA approved Flying school/flying training institute aircrafts.
- All domestic legs of international routes flown by Indian operators will be ٠ treated as domestic flights as far as landing charges is concerned. irrespective of flight number assigned to such flights.
- Charges shall be calculated on the basis of nearest MT (i.e. 1000 kg). •

2. Parking Charges

Weight of the Aircraft	Parking Charges Rates per Hour (in INR)	Parking Charges Rates per hour (beyond four hours) (in INR)
Up to 25 MT	3.00 Per Hour Per MT	6.00 Per Hour Per MT
Above 25 MT up to 50 MT	75.00+4.00 per Hour per MT in excess of 25 MT	150.00+8.00 per MT per Hour in excess of 25 MT
Above 50 MT up to 100	175.00+8.00 per MT per Hour in excess of 50 MT	350.00+16.00 per MT per Hour in excess of 50 MT
Above 100 MT to 200 MT	575.00+10.00 per MT per Hours in excess of 100 MT	1150.00+20.00 per MT per Hours in excess of 100 MT
Above 200 MT	1575.00+11.00 per MT per Hours in excess of 200 MT	3150.00+22.00 per MT per Hours in excess of 200 MT

No parking charges shall be levied for the first two hours. While calculating . free parking period, standard time of 15 minutes shall be added on प्रति करन

10201

Sulatory Author

Page 109

account of time taken between touch down time and actual parking time on the parking stand. Another standard time of 15 minutes shall be added on account of taxing time of aircraft from parking stand to take off point. These periods shall be applicable for each aircraft irrespective of actual time taken in the movement of aircraft after landing and before take-off.

- For calculating chargeable parking time, part of an hour shall be rounded off to the nearest hour.
- Charges shall be calculated on the basis of nearest MT.
- Charges for each period parking shall be rounded off to nearest rupee.
- At the in-contact stands and open stands, after free parking, for the next two hours normal parking charges shall be levied. After this period, the charges shall be double the normal parking charges.
- Night parking charges are waived off in principle for all domestic scheduled operators at Bhubaneshwar Airport if the State Government has brought the rate of tax (VAT) on ATF \leq 5%. The above waiver of night parking charges (between 2200 hrs. to 0600 hrs.) will be made applicable from the date of implementation of \leq 5% tax on ATF by the State Govt. In the event of upward revision in the tax rate of ATF by the State Govt., the relief of free night parking charges will also be deemed to be withdrawn for all the airports within the jurisdiction of the said State.
- Tariff for flights operating under Regional Connectivity Scheme will be governed by AIC issued on this subject by DGCA.

3. Fuel Throughput Charges - INR 322.52 per kilolitre

4. User Development Fees (UDF)

Passeng	er			UDF - nbarking	passenger	
Domestic	2397 - ¥397	5 788 - 1 975	. 2000 - 1022			400
International Passenger						450

- **Collection charges for UDF:** If the payment is made within 15 days of receipt of invoice then collection charges at INR 5 per departing passenger shall be paid by AAI. No collection charges shall be paid in case the airline fails to pay the UDF invoice to AAI within the credit period of 15 days or in case of any part payment. To be eligible to claim this collection charges, the airlines should have no overdue on any account with AAI. Wherever collection charges are payable the amount shall be settled within 15 days.
- No collection charges are payable to casual operator/non-scheduled operators.

Order No. 46/2018-19



- For conversion of UDF in foreign currency, the RBI reference conversion rate as on the last day of the previous month for tickets issued in the 1st fortnight and rate as on 15th of the month for tickets issued in the 2nd fortnight shall be adopted.
- The UDF charges will be applicable on tickets issued from 01/04/2019.

5. Exemption from levy and collection from UDF at the Airports

- The Ministry of Civil Aviation, Govt. of India vide order no. AV.16011/002/2008-AAI dated 30.11.2011 has directed AAI to exempt the following categories of persons from levy and collection of UDF.
 - (i) Children (under age of 2 years),
 - (ii) Holders of Diplomatic Passport,
 - (iii) Airlines crew on duty including sky marshals & airline crew on board for the particular flight only (this would not include Dead Head Crew, or ground personnel),
 - (iv) Persons travelling on official duty on aircraft operated by Indian Armed Forces, 전국대학 과학전
 - (v) Persons traveling on official duty for United Nations Peace Keeping Missions,
 - (vi) Transit/transfer passengers (this exemption may be granted to all the passengers transiting up to 24 hours. A passenger is treated in transit only if onward travel journey is within 24 hours from arrival into airport and is part of the same ticket. In case two separate tickets are issued, it would not be treated as transit passenger), and
 - (vii) Passengers departing from the Indian airports due to involuntary rerouting i.e. technical problems or weather conditions.

6. Passenger Service Fee (PSF)- Facilitation

PSF (FC) is subsumed under UDF. PSF (SC) would be applicable as prescribed by the Ministry of Civil Aviation.

7. General condition

- All the above Charges are excluding GST. GST at the applicable rates are payable in addition to above charges.
- Flights operating under Regional connectivity scheme will be completely exempted from charges as per Order No. 20/2016-17 dated 31/03/2017 of the Authority from the date the scheme is operationalized by GOI.

